Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you'll enjoy
the following benefits:

- Efficient, integrated PDF viewing
- Easy printing

« Quick searches

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8,
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.



http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


New Business #13

Minutes
Fayette County / City of Fayetteville Called Meeting
Fayette County Commission Chambers
140 Stonewall Avenue West, Suite 100
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214
April 9, 2014
6:00 p.m.

Fayette County Commissioners Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow

Fayette County Commissioners Absent: Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio

Fayetteville City Council Greg Clifton, Mayor
Mickey Edwards
Ed Johnson
Paul Oddo, Jr.
Jim Williams
Scott Stacey

County and City Staff Steve Rapson, Fayette County Administrator
Joe Morton, Fayetteville City Manager
Floyd Jones, Fayette County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Fayette County Deputy Clerk

1. Call to Order — Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown

Fayette County Commissioner Chairman called the April 9, 2014 Joint Meeting of the Fayette Commission
Board of Commissioners and the City of Fayetteville City Council to order at 6:03 p.m.

2. Discussion concerning Fayette County’s Fire Consolidation Proposal

Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown gave opening comments on Fayette County’s Fire
Consolidation Proposal and how both the City of Fayetteville and Fayette County has worked in the past in
order to bring Pinewood Studios to Fayette County.

Fayette County Administrator Steve Rapson provided the joint elected officials and the audience with a
PowerPoint presentation on Fayette County’s Fire Consolidation Proposal. A copy of the PowerPoint
presentation, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown stated that reallocating the existing resources more
efficiently is one of the benefits of the proposed consolidation since consolidation provides a service delivery
model that is more efficient to fire operations. He said the consolidation format would eliminate issues
concerning automatic aid and future annexations with no decrease in existing service deliveries. He
explained that the boundaries for the City of Fayetteville are not stable, and as the city pushes out through
annexation then the County has to pull back its services. He said the proposed consolidation, as presented
is balanced, requiring using the existing fire tax rate with no fire tax rate increase either proposed or



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #13





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 2

warranted. Chairman Brown said Fayetteville residents would not pay more for the consolidation than they
do currently for fire services. He explained that the County’s fire tax is a separate, distinct tax that shows up
individually on the tax bill in addition to other city and county taxes. He said the proposed consolidation
would retain all the full-time City of Fayetteville fire staff at a better pay rate than their existing salaries, while
leaving all the fire stations operational. He said all fire staff would become Advanced Life Support (ALS)
rated under the proposed consolidation. Chairman Brown said Fayette County would expedite building the
Veteran’s Parkway Fire Station saying the building process would begin in 2015 and it becoming operational
the following year. He stated that the unincorporated County’s Insurance Service Organization (ISO) ratings
would be enhanced, and that consolidation would help the County in aiding with its economic development
capacity. He said consolidation would provide a Fayette County homestead exemption for qualified City of
Fayetteville residents. He said the long-term approach showed that in 2018, the City of Fayetteville’s fund
balance is projected to be depleted; although the economy does fluctuate.

County Administrator Steve Rapson added that the proposed consolidation would allow for qualified City of
Fayetteville residents to apply for homestead exemptions; meaning money would be returning indirectly
back to the City of Fayetteville.

Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown and Fayette County Administrator Steve Rapson
provided additional comments. Chairman Brown then opened the floor for public comments.

Steven Woodworth: Mr. Woodworth, an Assistant Chief of the Atlanta Fire Department, who resides in
Brooks, spoke for approximately 26 minutes. He said he was concerned about misinformation that had
been provided on this subject. He then spoke about the Insurance Services Organization (ISO) ratings
saying the City of Fayetteville has an ISO rating of Class 4 and Fayette County has an ISO rating of Class
4/8B, while explain some of the criteria used to make the ratings calculations. He spoke about the
differences in the ratings, reasons for the different ratings, and his concerns with the ratings and
consolidation. He asked why the County Commissioners were taking on the City of Fayetteville’s fire
problem when the County has not fixed his fire problem. He said the Commissioners were elected to serve
him, not the City of Fayetteville, and that he has been asking to have his fire protection problem fixed. He
also asked why the County was buying golf courses when he has a fire protection problem since fire
protection is a higher priority. He suggested the County should have invested $1.3 million in fixing fire
protection in Fayette County before it bought a golf course.  Commissioner Brown responded to some of
the issues Mr. Woodward spoke about. He told the Fayetteville City Council that its Fire Department is
operating at a higher level than the County’s Fire Department. He stated that diluting a diluted system will
only dilute it more. He said the papers were reporting that consolidation would enhance and improve ISO
scores, but he told the elected members that there would not be an improvement of the scores. He stated
that in over his 32 years of experience with nine separate fire departments, including both the City of
Fayetteville’s Fire Department and the Fayette County Fire Department, that that city’s fire department is the
most fiscally minded, well managed and well led department he has ever been a part of. He attributed its
success to the City of Fayetteville’s Fire Department's leadership.

County Commissioner Chairman Steve Brown stated that there was a problem with the water pressure in
Brooks, and that the Water Committee was talking about that very issue seeking to bring appropriate water
capacity to the area for the hydrants. Chairman Brown also stated that the golf course was purchased with
Special Purpose Local Option Tax (SPLOST) funds that are set aside for road projects due to the 2004
SPLOST. He said the project was the number one transportation project in the county with unanimous
jurisdictional support. He said the money could not be used for fire protection, so there was not choice in
how the money was spent between either fire protection or constructing a road for future use.

Larry Dell: Mr. Dell spoke for approximately 21 minutes. He reminded Commissioner Brown that one
Commission Board cannot bind another Commission Board. He then spoke to the individual city council
members, beginning with Mayor Greg Clifton, asking if they were in a private meeting with members or a
member of the County Commission that was not published. Each council member replied that they had met





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 3

in private meetings with members of the County Commission. It was pointed out that there was no quorum
so that the meetings did not have to be advertised or published to the local media, and that the meetings
took place in a public restaurant. Mr. Dell asked if fire consolidation was such a great deal, while did the
elected members have to meet in private. Mr. Dell also asked if the city council members were able to carry
a copy of the proposal home for further study if it was such a great proposal. He then asked each city
council member if they saw an advantage to consolidation. The city council members responded to each of
Mr. Dell's questions. Mayor Clifton said a couple of years ago Pinewood Studios was not in Fayette County
or in Fayetteville, and the needed growth to stand up a new fire station at Pinewood would deplete the city’s
fund balance causing the city to raise taxes. Mayor Clifton added that it was telling to him that only two
percent of the calls made to the City of Fayetteville’s Fire Department involved fire, and this consolidation
would grade the employees with Advanced Life Support. Mr. Dell asked, if someone looked at Fayetteville’s
financial figures, how $1 million for fire impact fees was missed, even after the fire fund was paid off. He
also stated that $300,000.00 in grant money was also “missed” in the financial calculations.

Fayette County Administrator Steve Rapson replied that no one overlooked the $1 million and it was
understood that there was $1 million from impact fees. He said that $1 million would be added to build the
Veterans Parkway Fire Station, and the County did not count any of the fire grants that it has because the
Impact Fee money is treated just like a capital fund and the Vehicle and Equipment Fund meaning not all
funds are reflected in the PowerPoint presentation material. He explained that the provided material
showed operational dollars, but that no other funds were missed.

Mr. Dell spoke about how the City of Fayetteville has historically spent its money very well and very
prudently, and he asked how the city council could believe the information provided to them about the city
going broke without doing their own individual research. Mr. Dell stated that it was true that Pinewood
Studios was not in Fayette County two years ago, but it was unknown how much revenue it and the ancillary
businesses would bring to the county. Mr. Dell also questioned a statement saying the county’s fire
departments had to work around the city’s jurisdictional borders; creating the need for consolidation. He
said he had not seen a toll booth or gate for people entering the City of Fayetteville. Mr. Dell reported that
the city has reduced staffing due to the lagging economy, that the City of Fayetteville has outstanding staff
and an outstanding Fire Department, and that they know what they are doing. He said when he was in the
military most of the medics were not paramedics, but they would “save your butt” since they were trained in
basic medical practices. He said the guys on the fire trucks do a great job, are able to do a quick
assessment, and may even stop a medical transport. Mr. Dell was in opposition to the proposed fire
consolidation.

Jessica Leonard: Ms. Jessica Leonard of the Fayette County Fire Department reminded everyone that the
county runs all the calls with the city. She said one jurisdiction could not do without the other, and that they
already work together.

Al Hovey-King: Mr. Hovey-King spoke for approximately 19 minutes. He said he was able to find the
same information that Mr. Woodward found on the internet, and that he has an issue with the proposed
staffing. He spoke about the County’s Insurance Services Organization (ISO) rating. He also spoke about
the number of calls that the city made into the county as well as the average county to city calls, saying the
city went into the county more often than the county came into the city. He spoke about how the millage
rates are paid for the services provided to the City of Fayetteville. He suggested that the citizens of
Fayetteville would have a higher tax burden without improvement to their services. Mr. Hovey-King stated
that there has been virtually no public information presented on this matter, and virtually no one knew about
this matter coming up. He stated if the city council were to approve the consolidation then it would be doing
a disservice to the citizens of Fayetteville.





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 4

Betty McKibben: Ms. McKibben said the figures and recent conversation had blown her mind. She said
that after hearing the concerns and figures, it should be evident that the people are concerned about the
City of Fayetteville. She said the issue was about an individual department with individuals working in it,
and that the individuals have heavy burdens. She asked what would happen to the years of service for the
Fayetteville firefighters who would become a part of the Fayette County Fire Department.

County Administrator Steve Rapson replied that if an employee was currently enrolled in the Defined
Benefits Plan with three years vested, that same vesting would roll over into the County’s retirement plan.
Additionally, he said whatever seniority a City of Fayetteville employee had would carry over to the County.
He stated that the employee would be placed on the same vacation and sick leave time as well, with
accruals matching county employees.

Ms. McKibben addressed the City of Fayetteville’s Council, saying she wanted the council to assure the
citizens that it supports the city, its citizens, and its employees. She asked the council to vote no to the
consolidation, saying the members of the Fayetteville Fire Department represent many years of service, that
they have families, that they lay their lives on the line. She asked the council to consider the members and
all their work, and to keep the Fayetteville Fire Department. She suggested that the city council would be
making a life changing decision. She asked the city council not to succumb to the political pressure being
applied to it by the county government, and to vote against consolidation. She asked if the county would
then go after the City of Fayetteville’s Police Department and even other departments from other
jurisdictions.

Ken Holland: Mr. Holland said he was concerned that the county was planning to take over the city, and he
asked how the county was planning to pay for all of the extra employees. He also asked if the city’s funding
would come with the consolidation to the county. He pointed out that a Commissioner’s house burned down
recently, and he spoke about a fire that he experienced where the County responded with two firefighters.

County Administrator Steve Rapson replied that this proposed Fire Consolidation effort was being done at
the request of the City of Fayetteville’s mayor and council. He said the City of Fayetteville’s Fire
Department employees would be brought over to the County at the County’s pay scale so that the
employees would not be harmed. He said the money would come from the City of Fayetteville’s $2.1 million
digest; similar to how EMS and E-911 works throughout the county. He said the proposal assumes that the
3.07 Fire Millage Rate the County could bring the firefighters over with County salaries while negating
shortfalls. He said that, in theory, a citizen of City of Fayetteville would see a line item on their bill for the
County at 3.07 millage rates with a corresponding reduction in the millage rate of 3.07 for the City of
Fayetteville. He stated that the consolidation would not cost the citizens of Fayetteville any extra money.

Ms. Wilbanks: Ms. Wilbanks, from the Lakemont subdivision, said everybody had just gone through the
school board fiasco where schools were closed, children and parents were uprooted, and then, suddenly,
money was found. She said the teachers were paid, but not one school was reopened. She stated that
when the city gets rid of its fire department, it will never get the fire department back.

Ken Steele: Mr. Steele stated that Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville both have outstanding fire
departments. He was surprised to hear that the mayor and city council asked for the consolidation proposal,
and he said the city council was shortchanging its citizens. He spoke about the quality and good work of the
city fire department. Mr. Steele said innocence, like the fire department, once surrendered, is never
recovered. He could not understand why the city council would get rid of the fire department; especially
since maintaining a fire department is one of the ten criteria needed to be and remain a city. He said no one
had expressed a problem or concern that can only be solved by consolidation. He said he opposed
consolidation saying short-term solutions do not cure long-term challenges. He suggested that the two new
members on the city council were not qualified to make a decision on the matter due to their lack of
experience. He clarified that he was not trying to be divisive in his statement, and he wished them well.





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 5

Michael Green: Mr. Green, a City of Fayetteville firefighter, said he had a lot of questions that needed to be
answered. He told the city council that he was the person they were affecting with their decision, and that
he would be taking a $2,400.00 pay cut with Fayette County if consolidation was approved. Fayette County
Commissioner Chairman Steve Brown encouraged the City of Fayetteville’s firefighters to meet with the
County Administrator and the County’s Human Resources Director concerning their proposed positions and
pay in the County.

Ken Steele: Mr. Steele returned to the podium saying city residents pay 3.07 mils for fire services and that
he was told that if the consolidation was approved that the city would reduce the 3.07 mils for those fire
services so there is not a tax increase for city residents. He said he had not heard a city council member tell
about that statement, and he asked the city council if they were committing to a reduction of the millage rate
in the amount of 3.07 mils. A council member replied that he had not thought that far ahead, and Mr. Steele
asked if he thought that should be thought about.

Fayette County Commission Chairman Brown stated that the City of Fayetteville had to face economic
reality, as reflected with its part-time staffing.

Chris Stanley: Mr. Stanley, a firefighter for Lamar and Pike Counties, and whose family lives and has
worked for both the city’s and county’s fire departments, asked Fayette County Administrator Steve Rapson
if, in his capacity in other cities, had this consolidation issue arisen. He also asked if other jurisdictions were
similarly talking about consolidation. He said his father, a resident of Fayette County, was concerned about
taxes since he has property in both the city and the county. He also asked about the numbers of time calls
were issued from both the city and the county. Mr. Stanley said he and his father were concerned that the
city would annex more land, but would be subject to the county’s financial needs. Mr. Stanley also asked if
the county had approached the City of Peachtree City in order to consolidate its fire department as well.

Josh Collins: Mr. Josh Collins, a City of Fayetteville firefighter, said he saw his proposed raise of $500.00
if the consolidation goes through, and he asked about his pension and retirement with the County. He also
asked about the County’s healthcare benefits. He also asked why the City of Fayetteville’s command staff
was being downgraded to a lesser level due to the consolidation. He asked what benefit the city firefighters
would have should the proposed consolidation be approved. He said the city and county already works well
together, and he asked what the problem was with the current situation. Mr. Collins said he did not know
why this was a big issue and why the firefighters were not valued anymore by the city. He spoke about the
financial sacrifices the firefighters have taken over the years, and he asked the city council to allow them to
keep working for the city.

Carl Scottman: Mr. Scottman pointed out that the city council has not spoken much, that it has allowed the
county to be out front and speak on this matter, and that the information was all one-sided. He asked the
new council members to get with the system and figure out why this was going to a countywide operation
with minimal information from the city council. He asked the city council to put this matter to a public
referendum for the citizens of the city and county to vote on the matter. He suggested that City Hall would
be full when the vote occurs, and that there was the potential for recall efforts to take place should the vote
go through without public input. He said the County’s fire service has grown and done a great growth
model, but that it was not ready for “takeover mode” despite the political entities that were looking for
consolidation. He said everyone who felt the City of Fayetteville could not afford a fire department should
be ashamed.

Bobby Hayden: Mr. Hayden, a City of Fayetteville firefighter, said he had worked for both the city and the
county. He said he worked with Fayette County for 23 years, but through a series of events he went to work
for the City of Fayetteville Fire Department. He spoke about both the unity and distinctiveness of the city’s
and county’s firefighters. He said the consolidation was a wash, and that it would save the city $350,000.00.
He said if saving $350,000.00 was the issue that he would gladly give up whatever it took. He said that
County Administrator Steve Rapson, Commission Chairman Steve Brown, and the other County





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 6

Commissioners have spoken to the city firefighters, but that he had not even had the opportunity to meet
with a city councilmember. He suggested that the firefighters’ input was important. He also asked, if the
consolidation deal was so good, why not turn the consolidation around and give the control to the City of
Fayetteville. He reiterated that these decisions were affecting a lot of people. He said the county’s
firefighters were good people, and so were the city’s firefighters. He questioned the fairness of how the city
and county employees would be affected. He thought it was not fair for Chief Jones to “come down.” He
thought this was a big hit for anyone to get rid of the fire department. He said when the city gives up its fire
department and the county raises the taxes, the citizens of Fayetteville will not have any say in the matter.
He repeated that he has talked to the County Administrator more than the city councilmembers, and that
was disheartening.

Keith Harris: Mr. Harris, a Captain with the City of Fayetteville Fire Department, spoke about having two
families, his home family and his Fayetteville Fire Department family. He said he would receive a $200.00
raise if the proposed consolidation is approved, but that he would actually lose over $400.00 per month. He
said he was looking to retire, and this consolidation would hit his retirement hard. He said the consolidation
would cause a loss of income, putting financial stress on him at a time when his child was preparing for
college. He also asked where his time of service would go if the consolidation was approved. He asked the
elected officials to take these considerations seriously since he has two families and loves them all. County
Administrator Steve Rapson responded to Captain Harris’ concerns.

Jimmy Jones: Mr. Jones said he could appreciate what the firefighters were going through. He also
suggested that the County Commissioners should be let off the hook since it seemed the Fayetteville City
Council was the entity throwing the citizens under the bus. He was strongly concerned that the city
approached the county on this matter. He said the councilmembers could be voted out of office, and he
asked them to vote no on this matter.

Sean Vansis: (Note: audio recording did not clearly capture the speaker’s last name). The speaker, a City
of Fayetteville firefighter, said there were other questions that needed to be answered. He spoke about the
numbers of hours he works, and the strain he and his family are going through. He said he would gladly
work for anyone, but he asked the city council to provide the people with more time to get answers on this
matter. County Administrator Steve Rapson and Fayette County Fire Chief David Scarbrough addressed
the concerns that were expressed. The speaker thanked Mr. Rapson and Chief Scarbrough for answering
his questions and stated that he wished he could get the same amount of time to speak with his city council.

Melina Collins: Mrs. Collins, the wife of a City of Fayetteville firefighter, said the answer to the budgetary
questions that was asked earlier caused her to urge everyone to consider why this initiative was voted down
in the past. She said she wanted to know how many other options have been put on the table to keep the
city out of the red. Chairman Brown said that the options are what is currently had and the proposal, and he
spoke about the financial difficulties that the city is facing. Mrs. Collins asked the elected officials to not be
hasty in their decision in considering only one option.

Brenda Stevens: Ms. Stevens asked why this matter could not be brought before the citizens of the City of
Fayetteville and the Fayette County citizens. Chairman Brown responded to Ms. Steven’s questions.

Sandra Parker-Barnes: Mrs. Parker-Barnes said she knew the city firefighters and that they are great
people. She wished that the City of Peachtree City’s Fire Department had the City of Fayetteville’s
performance. She stated that the City of Peachtree City’s Fire Department had not reached the same
achievement that the City of Fayetteville’s Fire Department has achieved.

Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner suggested that fire services could drive down Lester Road, since it is almost
like a four-lane highway, if they needed a way to get through Fayetteville. He said he came to the meeting
leaning toward approving the consolidation, but that he was given reason to reconsider his position. He said
he had not heard about the percentage of costs, and he asked where the costs would come from. He said





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014

Page Number 7

he did not know what the people of Fayetteville were worried about since in another twenty years the
municipalities would push out the county. Mr. Gardner said he wanted to see the percentage of how much
would be paid per household. He said there was a greater probability for people to get hurt in a condensed
area, but that the county was paying more. He said he was probably in favor of combining the fire services
since Fayetteville is growing and expanding, and since it meant he would be living in Fayetteville due to
future annexations.

Bill Grist: Mr. Grist said he did not know which branch of government brought this matter up, and he asked
why this matter was brought up. He said he did not see any reason for the proposed consolidation. He said
if the proposal came from the city, then there were two members on the city council who have not had time
to figure out what is going on yet.

Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown replied this was a proposal that came up a couple of
years ago, and that when it first came up neither he nor Commissioner Allen McCarty had information on the
initiative. He said some of the city council members had limited information. He stated that when this issue
came up again, he wanted to make sure everyone had information on this matter. He added that this matter
came up due to finances, and he acknowledged that since this matter last came up he has had continuing
conversations with members of the city council on how to work together. He said the presenting issues
were driven by efficiency and finances.

Fayetteville Mayor Greg Clifton agreed that finance was a big part of the discussion. He said the city
thought it would get revenue from Pinewood Studios, but that the tax abatements reduced the expected tax
revenue to the city. He stated that, in the meanwhile, the city has to stand up a fire department. Mayor
Clifton stated that the county came to the city and asked for the proposed consolidation, that the city said it
would be glad to consider the proposal should the County provide the proposal, and the county came up
with the proposal. He stated that nothing has been hidden and everything is in the open for the people to
review and make a decision on. Mayor Clifton then spoke briefly on the financial difficulties and its impacts
that the city is facing.

Chairman Brown spoke briefly about the tax abatement revenue from Pinewood Studios.

Larry Dell: Mr. Dell returned asking Chairman Brown who paid for the other public safety services. He
encouraged the city councilmembers to run for county office if they want to represent the county. Mr. Dell
said people who own property have a choice of annexation, and that annexation could be turned down. He
said the city council was elected to represent the people of the City of Fayetteville and told them that if they
could not fulfill their duties then they should “turn their badge in.” He asked the city council to think seriously
about this matter. Councilman Edwards replied to Mr. Dell's comments.

Councilman Edwards said silence does not imply complicity or agreement, but that it means he was there to
get understanding on the issues. He said he was there to hear from the citizens and he asked the people
not to jump to conclusions. He said he thought the proposal was put to rest a couple of years ago, but he
wanted to make sure all the information was provided and understood. He said Mr. Woodworth gave a
good counter-analysis. He stated this is a democratic process, and he said this meeting was for fact
gathering and hearing from the citizens. He repeated that he took his responsibility seriously.

Al Hovey-King: Mr. Hovey-King returned to the podium saying he went over the 2009 through 2013 mutual
aid responses, and he asked Fayette County Fire Chief David Scarbrough what that was. Chief Scarbrough
replied that Mr. Hovey-King was referencing material that only shows the City of Fayetteville’s Fire
Department’s data set and not quoting both data sets. Mr. Hovey-King agreed that the citizens of
Fayetteville pays for other public safety services through property taxes, and if the consolidation should be
approved, then the citizens would not have a say in its tax structure. He also stated that he would be very
surprised if the elected officials were not aware of the economic deals provided to Pinewood since those are
typical agreements when recruiting economic development to cities and councils. Mr. Hovey-King asked





Minutes

Joint Meeting- Fayette County / Fayetteville
April 9, 2014
Page Number 8

3.

Councilman Williams, who was the City Manager for the City of Fairburn when it started its own fire
department, if he saw the benefits of having a fire department. Councilman Williams replied to Mr. Hovey-
King's question. Mr. Hovey-King asked the citizens in the room who wanted to keep the fire department to
stand in support, and several people stood up.

Adjournment

Fayette County Commission Chairman Steve Brown and Fayette County Commissioner Vice-Chairman
gave closing comments to those in attendance.

No vote was taken at any time during the Joint Meeting of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners and
the City of Fayetteville Council.

Chairman Brown adjourned the meeting at 9:15 p.m.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk Steve Brown, Fayette County Chairman

The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette
County, Georgia, held on the 24t day of April 2014.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk










New Business #14

Board of Commissioners
April 10, 2014
3:00 P.M.

The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on April 10, 2014 at 3:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.

Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Commissioner Absent: Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio
Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney

Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Brown called the April 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting to order at 3:04 p.m. Chairman Brown
stated that the meeting was being held early due to the need to attend early classes with the Association of County
Commissioners Georgia (ACCG) in Savannah, Georgia. He stated that the early meeting would allow the
Commissioners to travel to Savannah and be ready for those early classes.

Commissioner Barlow asked Mr. Darryl Hicks to offer the Invocation, and Mr. Hicks did so.

Chairman Brown led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Acceptance of Agenda

Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda as published and to add two additional items, namely the 2014
Retreat Minutes and the Emerald Lake Dam issue. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion
followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent.

Chairman Brown pointed out that those watching on Channel 23 would only be able to hear the meeting since the

video capability was lost. He added that both the video and audio would be available on the internet, and he
apologized for the technical glitch.



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #14





Minutes

April 10, 2014
Page Number 2

PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:

1.

Proclamation of April 2014 as “Prevent Child Abuse Month.”

Commissioner Oddo read the Proclamation for April 2014 as “Prevent Child Abuse Month.” Ms. Becky
Smith of Fayette FACTOR and others accepted the proclamation as read and presented. The Board did
not take a vote on this matter. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.

Chairman Brown informed the audience that a publication had recently been printed recognizing Fayette
County related to its Pinewood Studios efforts. He said Fayette County had won a state award for its
collaborative efforts with the City of Fayetteville, as well as a regional award. He said it was a nice one-
page article and told those in attendance that the article was entitled “Fayette Does the Impossible to Help
an International Film Company.”

PUBLIC HEARING:

2.

Consideration of staff’'s recommendation to transfer an existing retail alcohol, beer and wine license
from Duaa, Inc. to Arif Keshwani of Keshwani Investments, LLC., also known as Shell Food Mart,
which is located at 1183 Highway 54 East.

Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs informed the Board about staff's recommendation, and she said
that the applicant has met all requirements as required by the County ordinances.

No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.

Commissioner Oddo moved to approve staff's recommendation to transfer an existing retail alcohol, beer
and wine license from Duaa, Inc. to Arif Keshwani of Keshwani Investments, LLC., also known as Shell
Food Mart, which is located at 1183 Highway 54 East. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No
discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent. A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent.

3.

Approval of staff's recommendation to dispose and destroy old uniforms and other items that are no
longer serviceable. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.

Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a Project Framework Agreement with the Georgia
Department of Transportation for a multi-use bridge and accompanying path system project over
State Route 54 near Piedmont Fayette Hospital (GDOT PI No. 0012878). Copies of the request and
Project Framework Agreement, identified as “Attachment 4,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.





Minutes
April 10, 2014
Page Number 3

5. Approval of staff’'s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of
Fayetteville for the Georgia Department of Transportation’s multi-use bridge and accompanying
path system project over State Route 54 near Piedmont Fayette Hospital (GDOT Pl No. 0012878).
Copies of the request and Intergovernmental Agreement, identified as “Attachment 5,” follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.

OLD BUSINESS:
There was no item under Old Business for consideration.

NEW BUSINESS:

6. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Darryl Hicks, Pat Hinchey,
Margaret Laton and Todd Strickland to the Fayette County Development Authority for four year
terms, with said appointments beginning April 10, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2018.

Commissioner Barlow moved to approve the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Darryl
Hicks, Pat Hinchey, Margaret Laton and Todd Strickland to the Fayette County Development Authority for
four year terms, with said appointments beginning April 10, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2018. Commissioner
Oddo seconded the motion.

Ms. Dawn Oparah expressed some concern and asked questions about the appointments. She pointed out
that four positions were posted for people to apply for, but five positions were being appointed. She said
she did not see where the fifth advertisement was advertised, and she asked if that position had been
posted. She asked who would be the Chairman of the Development Authority. Chairman Brown replied
that the Development Authority would appoint its own Chairman. Ms. Oparah expressed concern that
letters of approval and letters of decline are mailed prior to the actual approval of the County Board of
Commissioners, and she thought sending the letters prior to formal Board vote for approval would leave
virtually no room to appoint another applicant should additional information be discovered in the interim
between the letters being mailed and the vote to appoint taking place. Ms. Oparah recommended that
letters be sent out after the Board made its vote to appoint to positions, just in case. Ms. Oparah asked if
there was a vetting process to ensure that there is no conflict of interest. She also asked, if there is a policy
on this matter if it is public. She reminded the Board that she is serving on a committee concerning ethics
in government, and she wanted to make sure every candidate is vetted to ensure there is no conflict of
interest. She said she did not want to assume anything, but she wanted to make sure. She also asked if
there was a statement that explained what constitutes what is a conflict of interest.

Chairman Brown addressed Ms. Oparah’s concerns by saying the letters are received from the Selection
Committee and not the Board of Commissioners. He said it was professional etiquette to let the applicants
know whether or not they have been selected before they read their names in the newspaper, and that was
why the letters were mailed. He stated that the applicants get the same vetting that the elected officials
receive, namely, they are provided with a copy of the Ethics Ordinance and they are asked on the
application and in the interview whether they have any ethics concerns related to serving in that position.
He said the ethics questions are given to every applicant regardless of what board, committee, or authority
they are seeking to fill. He said if the applicant or an appointed representative is found guilty of an ethics
violation then they will be immediately extracted from the body they serve. Chairman Brown explained that
there was a resignation from the Fayette County Development Authority, and that there were thirteen





Minutes
April 10, 2014
Page Number 4

applicants for the positions on the authority. He said he asked each Commissioner if they had any
objections to going ahead and appointing the fifth member since there would be a wholly new board and a
new Chief Executive Officer of the Development Authority. He stated that no Commissioner objected to
appointing the fifth position, and that the applicants who responded to a public advertisement were vetted.
He said the process was open and in the same timeframe as when the applicants were sending
applications for a position on the Fayette County Development Authority.

Commissioner Oddo stated that the resignation came at the time that the other terms expired.

The motion to approve the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Darryl Hicks, Pat Hinchey,
Margaret Laton, and Todd Strickland to the Fayette County Development Authority for four year terms, with
said appointments beginning April 10, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2018 was passed 3-0-2 with
Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6,”
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.

1. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Dennis Dorsey to the
Fayette County Development Authority to the unexpired term of Randy Hayes, with said
appointment beginning April 18, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2016.

Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Dennis
Dorsey to the Fayette County Development Authority to the unexpired term of Randy Hayes, with said
appointment beginning April 18, 2014 and expiring April 9, 2016. Commissioner Barlow seconded the
motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being
absent. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.

8. Consideration of the Fayette County Humane Society’s request to conduct a trial Trap / Neuter/
Return feral cat program and to apply for Trap / Neuter / Return grant funds to pay for the trial
project.

Ms. Sharon Marchisello, Secretary of the Fayette County Humane Society spoke to the Board and gave a
PowerPoint presentation on this issue. Fayette County Animal Control Officer Rani Rathburn also spoke in
favor of the request from the Fayette County Humane Society.

Chairman Brown moved to create an exemption to Fayette County’s Leash Law for the purpose of creating
four test Trap / Neuter / Return sites, with the permission of the City of Fayetteville and the City of
Peachtree City for their prescribed sites, with the sites being the Fayette Pavilion Shopping Center
Business District area, Bryson Lane in Fayetteville, Highway 85 Connector, and Paschal and Dividend
Drive Industrial area, for adequate reports are provided to the Fayette County Animal Control on a regular
basis as determined by the Fayette County Animal Control Department, and for funding for the project to
come through the Fayette County Humane Society. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.

County Attorney Dennis Davenport suggested that the motion include duration so that there would be a
definite starting and stopping point for this initiative. Chairman Brown asked Ms. Marchisello and Officer
Rathburn for suggestions on how long the test trial should take. After brief discussion, the decision was
made for a duration of six months.





Minutes
April 10, 2014
Page Number 5

Chairman Brown amended his motion to create an exemption to Fayette County’s Leash Law for the
purpose of creating four test Trap / Neuter / Return sites, with the permission of the City of Fayetteville and
the City of Peachtree City for their prescribed sites, with the sites being the Fayette Pavilion Shopping
Center Business District area, Bryson Lane in Fayetteville, Highway 85 Connector, and Paschal and
Dividend Drive Industrial area, for adequate reports are provided to the Fayette County Animal Control on a
regular basis as determined by the Fayette County Animal Control Department, for funding for the project to
come through the Fayette County Humane Society, and for the exemption to last for six months from the
date of the program’s implementation. Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.

Chairman Brown asked Fayette County Animal Control to write a letter to the jurisdictions on this initiative
and that the Administration staff would officially send the letters to the jurisdictions.

Ms. Sharon Douchot, Animal Control Director Fred Sisson, and Ms. Kimberly Davis spoke in favor of this
request. No one spoke in opposition to this request.

Chairman Brown spoke about Ms. Marchisello saying she is working through the Humane Society and
helping Fayette County through its Faith based volunteer program. He also spoke of Officer Rathburn
saying everybody speaks well of her, that he gets nothing but good comments, and that her passion shows.
He thanked Officer Rathburn for her efforts and encouraged her to continue in her good work.

The motion to create an exemption to Fayette County’s Leash Law for the purpose of creating four test Trap
/ Neuter / Return sites, with the permission of the City of Fayetteville and the City of Peachtree City for their
prescribed sites, with the sites being the Fayette Pavilion Shopping Center Business District area, Bryson
Lane in Fayetteville, Highway 85 Connector, and Paschal and Dividend Drive Industrial area, for adequate
reports are provided to the Fayette County Animal Control on a regular basis as determined by the Fayette
County Animal Control Department, for funding for the project to come through the Fayette County Humane
Society, and for the exemption to last for six months from the beginning of the program’s implementation
passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent. Copies of the request and PowerPoint
presentation, identified as “Attachment 8,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.

9. Consideration of staff’'s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-06, adding Chapter 15 to the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances- Public Health.

Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs spoke briefly on this matter and answered questions from the
Board. Officer Hobbs reminded that this item was addressed at the April 4, 2014 Board of Commissioners
Retreat. She said the ordinance contained the new regulations set forth by the Georgia Department of
Public Health for Tourist Accommodations. She said the regulations in the ordinance were verbatim to the
state’s regulations, and she asked for the ordinance’s adoption so it could be enforced through the County’s
Code of Ordinances.

Commissioner Oddo asked if the regulations were commonly used throughout the state. Officer Hobbs
replied that regulations became effective at the state on January 1, 2014, but that the Environmental Health
Department was waiting until this ordinance was adopted before it would begin its work in Fayette County.

Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-06, adding
Chapter 15 to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances- Public Health. Commissioner Oddo seconded the





Minutes

April 10, 2014
Page Number 6

10.

1.

12.

motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being
absent. Copies of the request and Ordinance 2014-06, identified as “Attachment 9,” follow these minutes
and are made an official part hereof.

Approval of the March 27, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. Commissioner McCarty
was not present at that meeting.

Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the March 27, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with
Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent.

Approval of the April 4, 2014 Board of Commissioners Retreat Meeting Minutes.

Chairman Brown informed the audience that the April 4, 2014 Board of Commissioners Retreat Meeting
Minutes were provided to the Board earlier in the day and were present with the Board on the dais. He
stated that the minutes could be obtained from the County Clerk’s office.

Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the April 4, 2014 Board of Commissioners Retreat Minutes.
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with
Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being absent.

Consideration of staff’'s recommendation to complete design and permitting work for repairs and
enhancement of Emerald Lake Dam in The Woodlands subdivision per the “Labyrinth Weir and
Raise Dam” option.

Chairman Brown informed the audience that an additional document for this item was at the dais. He said
the document, consisting of the agenda request form, a memorandum, and a couple of PowerPoint slides,
was provided to the Board members and could be obtained from the County Clerk’s office.

County Administrator Steve Rapson provided a brief summary of this request. He stated this item was
discussed at the County Retreat. He explained that it was part of the $2 million allocation from the Board
out of the General Fund to fund the Category One Stormwater Projects. He said Emerald Lake is more
comprehensive than originally thought, so the request is for approval of $1,720,000.00. Mr. Rapson, in
answering a question from Chairman Brown, replied that it was more complex since the dam had to be
completely redone. He said it was a single point of entry for a large subdivision adjacent to a 20-acre lake,
and that a county road was on top of the dam. He said the intention was to replace a 600-foot long dam
with a bridge, and to do that (based on the short-fallings of the actual structure) the County is providing
long-term fixes. He reminded the Board that there were two recommendations, but that the long-term fix
was the most cost effective for the foreseeable future while providing a long-term repair.

Chairman Brown stated that this effort was one of a number of stormwater issues, and that the County was
trying to address the big problems first. He added that the State of Georgia requires the County to maintain
the dams to state regulations, and that this effort is a step toward fulfilling those obligations. He reminded
the audience that the Board had stated it would own problems and that while the problems will be
addressed slowly and one at a time, the County was tackling some of the bigger problems.





Minutes
April 10, 2014
Page Number 7

Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff's recommendation to complete design and permitting work
for repairs and enhancement of Emerald Lake Dam in The Woodlands subdivision per the “Labyrinth Weir
and Raise Dam” option in an amount not to exceed $1,720,000.00 Commissioner Oddo seconded the
motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio being
absent. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Chairman Brown moved to move the Public Comment section of the Agenda toward the front of the meeting out of
professional courtesy for colleagues who were from Peachtree City who wanted to speak. Commissioner Oddo
seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio
being absent.

Chairman Brown pointed out that two Commissioners were absent from the meeting. He said Commissioner Ognio
had to have emergency surgery and was recovering. He also told those in attendance that Commissioner McCarty
was celebrating his 52" anniversary by going on a cruise. He

Mayor Vanessa Fleisch: Peachtree City Mayor Vanessa Fleisch spoke on behalf of the Peachtree City Council
regarding the makeup of the Fayette County Development Authority. She asked the Board to amend the
Intergovernmental Agreement relating to the Fayette County Development Authority, to eliminate the representative
of the Peachtree City Development Authority, and to replace the position with a citizen representative appointed by
the Peachtree City Mayor and Council. She also asked the Board to provide, through the Intergovernmental
Agreement, for the representative Peachtree City Airport Authority to remain on the Board. She pointed out that the
Peachtree City Airport Authority is a separate governmental agency chartered by State legislation and is the sole
owner of the airport. Mayor Fleisch spoke about the contributions and benefits provided by Peachtree City and the
Peachtree City Airport Authority to Fayette County. She also read an email from Mr. Whiteley, Chairman of the
Peachtree City Airport Authority, which was written to Chairman Brown, concerning the Peachtree City Airport
Authority’s opposition to the possibility of having representation removed from the Fayette County Development
Authority. Copies of Mayor Fleisch’s notes and materials as provided to the County Clerk’s Office, identified as
“Attachment 11,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:

Safe Digging Month: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that April is “Safe Digging Month.” He said there
would be a proclamation on the April 24, 2014 Agenda, but he wanted to get the word out on behalf of the Water
System.

Selection Committee for the Public Facilities Authority: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that the
positions for the Public Facilities Authority had been advertised and that a Selection Committee needed to be
appointed. The Board appointed Chairman Brown and Commissioner Oddo to the Selection Committee.

Update on the Board of Commissioners Retreat: County Administrator Steve Rapson pointed out that the County
was projecting that it would not have any funds with a deficit balance, but rather all the funds would have an increase
to its fund balance. Mr. Rapson also reported that Fayette County is the only county in the State of Georgia with an
overfunded pension plan.





Minutes
April 10, 2014
Page Number 8

ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:

There was no Attorney’s Report.

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:

Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown said it was good to hear from the mayor of Peachtree City, and he spoke about
the Fayette County Development Authority and the Peachtree City Airport Authority. He also spoke about a letter
from Peachtree City Council Member Kim Learnard that was sent to the newspaper, and he wished that she had
spoken to individual Commissioners or the Board before writing the letter. He said the Board had worked hard to
avoid divisiveness with the municipalities, that the Board appreciates and defends her ability to make comments, but
that he wished she had come to the Board first. He added that the County had issued a press release on its position
on the District Voting lawsuit, and that the press release could be obtained from the County Clerk’s office.

EXECUTIVE SESSION.:

There was no Executive Session meeting.

ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Barlow moved to adjourn the April 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting. Commissioner Oddo
seconded the motion. No discussion followed. The motion passed 3-0-2 with Commissioners McCarty and Ognio
being absent.

The April 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 4:12 p.m.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk Steve Brown, Chairman

The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 24th day of April 2014.

Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk










FOUNDED
MAY 15, 1821

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio

*
STAFF

Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk

*

MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214

*

MEETING TIMES
2" and 4" Thursday each month 7:00 pm

*

COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex
Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210

*

WEB SITE
www.fayettecountyga.gov

*

E-MAIL
administration@fayettecountyga.gov

Agenda

Board of Commissioners
April 24, 2014
7:00 P.M.

Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance

Acceptance of Agenda

PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:

1. Proclamation of April 26, 2014 as “Fayette County Pet Appreciation Day,”
and recognition of the Fayette County Humane Society.

2. Proclamation of April 2014 as “Safe Digging Month in Fayette County.”

3. Proclamation of May 2014 as “Foster Care Month,” and the week of May
12-18, 2014 as “Foster Parent Appreciation Week.”

4, Recognition of the Sandy Creek SkillsUSA Chapter.

PUBLIC HEARING:

CONSENT AGENDA:

5. Approval of a request from the Fayette County Juvenile Court for
authorization to file continuation and enhancement grant applications, on
behalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, with the Governor's
Office for Children and Families, and authorization for the Chairman to
execute said documents.

6. Approval of staff's recommendation to declare a walk-in freezer as
unserviceable and to authorize staff to sell the walk-in freezer on
GovDeals.com with proceeds from the sale returning to Fayette County’s
General Fund.

7. Approval of staff's recommendation to add Claudia’s Cove to the Fayette
County Street Light Program.

8. Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-07 enacting
a new County Code entitled “The Code of Fayette County, Georgia.”

OLD BUSINESS:





Agenda

April 24,2014
Page Number 2

NEW BUSINESS:

9.

Consideration of the Selection Committee’s nomination of James L. Preau to the Fayette County Water
Committee.

10. Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-08, establishing Operating Regulations
for Short Term Lodging and Tourist Accommodations by designating Sections 6-165 through 6-205 of
Article Vi as a new Article pertaining to “Tourist accommodations” to Chapter 6 of the Fayette County Code
of Ordinances, becoming effective June 1, 2014.

1. Consideration of staff's recommendation to consolidate the City of Fayetteville’s Fire Department into the
Fayette County Fire Department, and for the consolidation of the departments to become fully operational
on July 1, 2014.

12. Consideration of a request from the Environmental Health Department to adopt proposed Environmental
Health Fee Schedule revisions.

13. Consideration of the April 9, 2014 Joint Meeting Minutes of the Fayette County’s Board of Commissioners
and the City of Fayetteville’s City Council. Commissioners McCarty and Ognio were not present for this
meeting.

14. Consideration of the April 10, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. Commissioners McCarty and
Ognio were not present for this meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

ADMINISTRATOR'’S REPORTS:

ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

ADJOURNMENT:







New Business #10

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Code Enforcement Presenter(s): Officer Kathy Hobbs
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-08, establishing Operating Regulations for Short Term Lodging and
Tourist Accommodations by designating Sections 6-165 through 6-205 of Article VI as a new Article pertaining to "Tourist
accommodations" to Chapter 6 of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, becoming effective June 1, 2014.

Background/History/Details:
This item was discussed at the Board of Commissioners Retreat on April 4, 2014.

Ordinance 2014-08 will establish Operating Regulations for Short Term Lodging and Tourist Accommodations. This ordinance will
establish required permits (including permits for food service), require hotel operators to maintain record for each rental, authorize
specified county officers and departments to review the records, and establishes health, sanitation, and safety standards.

Ordinance 2014 is attached as backup for review.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-08, establishing Operating Regulations for Short Term Lodging and Tourist
Accommodations by designating Sections 6-165 through 6-205 of Article VI as a new Article pertaining to "Tourist accommodations" to
Chapter 6 of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, becoming effective June 1, 2014.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |Yes If so, when?  |Friday, April 4, 2014

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #10





DRAFT

State of Georgia
Fayette County

Ordinance
2014-08

AN ORDINANCE TO ADD TO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE
COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO ESTABLISH OPERATING REGULATIONS FOR SHORT
TERM LODGING AND TOURIST ACCOMMODATIONS; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING
ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR SERVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH,
SAFETY AND WELFARE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSANT TO THE
AUTHORITY OF THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY
AS IT PERTAINS TO REGULATION OF SPECIFIC OCCUPATIONS (CHAPTER 6), BE
AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. By designating Sections 6-165 through 6-205 of Article VI of Chapter 6 as a new

Article pertaining to “Tourist accommodations” to Chapter 6 to be number and
read as follows:

ARTICLE VI: Tourist accommodations

6-165 Definitions
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning.

Bed and Breakfast Inn —means an establishment of 5 guest rooms or less, which serves food to its
registered guests and not to the public at large. Includes serving breakfast or similar early morning meal
and an appropriate light snack in which the price of the food is included price of the overnight
accommodation. For the purpose of these rules, “Bed and Breakfast Inn” refers to an establishment in
which the predominant relationship between the occupants thereof and the owner or operator of the
establishment is that of guest and innkeeper.

County — means unincorporated Fayette County wherein the county is empowered to impose this tax by
0.C.G.A. 48-13-50 et seq.

Finance Director — means The Finance Director appointed by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette
County, Georgia.





Guestroom- means a room occupied or intended, arranged or designed for occupancy by one or more
occupants and used for that purpose and where overnight occupant is allowed.

Hotel- means any structure or any portion of a structure, including any lodging house, rooming house,
motel, studio hotel, auto court, inn, public club, vacation house or private club containing guest rooms and
which is occupied or is intended or designed for occupancy by guest, whether rent is paid in money, goods,
labor, or otherwise, or any other place in which rooms, lodging or accommodations are regularly furnished
for value. The length of stay for hotels as defined is limited to not more than 30 consecutive days.

It does not include any jail, hospital, asylum, sanitarium, orphanage, prison, detention, or
other buildings in which human beings are housed and detained under legal restraint. In
addition to the foregoing, for purposes of this Ordinance, a residence in which
accommodations are furnished for rent is also considered a “hotel”.

Innkeeper — means any person who is furnishing for value to the public any room(s), lodging, or
accommodations.

Monthly period — means the calendar months of any year

Occupancy-transient - means occupancy or use by a paying guest or tenant for a period of less than 30
consecutive days or by the offering or advertising of a residence as being available in whole or in part to be
used for such occupancy. Such occupancy is characteristic of hotel, motels, boarding houses, rooming
houses or what ever called.

Occupant - means any person who, for a consideration, uses, possesses or has the right to use or possess
any guestroom in a hotel under any lease, concession, permit, right of access, license to use or other
agreement or otherwise

Operator — means any person operating a hotel (as defined in this article) in unincorporated Fayette
County, including but not limited to the owner or proprietor of the premises, lessee, sub lessee, lender in
possession, license to or any other person otherwise operating a hotel.

Permanent resident — means any occupant as of a given date who has or shall have occupied or shall have
the right of occupancy of any guestroom in a hotel for at least 30 consecutive days next preceding that date.
The right of occupancy for at least 30 consecutive days is clearly established through the advance payment
of 30 days’ rent or a lease has been signed in excess of 30 days

Premises —means and includes all physical buildings, appurtenances, parking lots, and all property owned
and/or used by the tourist accommodation.

Rent — means the consideration received for occupancy valued in money whether received in money or

otherwise, including all receipts, cash, credits and property or service4s of any kind or nature, and also the
amount for which credit is allowed by the operator to the occupant, without any deduction therefrom.

Special Event — means an organized occasion such as a social function.

Tax- the tax imposed by this ordinance

Tourist, traveler, overnight guest - means anyone who has a home address somewhere else other than
where he/she is spending the night and where he/she pays a fee for the accommodations.





Tourist accommodations —means any facility consisting of two or more rooms or dwelling units providing
lodging and/or other accommodations for tourist, travelers or overnight guest including tourist cabins,
tourist courts, tourist cottages, tourist homes, trailer parks, trailer parks, trailer courts, motels, motor hotels,
hotels, vacation homes and any similar place by whatever name called.

Vacation home — means any residential structure used for transient occupancy not limited to cabins,
single-family dwelling, or other such residential structures as permitted. Occupancy or use by a paying
guest or tenant must be for a period of less than 30 consecutive days.

6-166 Permit required

a. Every person engaging in or about to engage in business as an operator of a hotel in the
county shall immediately apply and obtained approval for the business with the county code
enforcement department on the forms provided by the code enforcement department for such
business. Persons engaged in such business must obtain a permit no later than 30 days after
this section becomes effective; but such grace period for registration after the effective date of
this section shall not relieve any person from the obligation of payment or collection of such
permit fee on and after the date of imposition thereof. The required permit hereunder shall set
forth the name under which the operator transacts business, and other such information as
would be required by code enforcement. The permit application shall be signed by the owner
if a natural person, by a member or partner in case of ownership by partnership, or an officer
in the case of corporation.

b. A separate permit will be required for each location of business.
c. Bed and Breakfast Inn A bed and breakfast Inn shall be permitted subject to the following

1. No food preparation, except beverages, is permitted within individual guest rooms
. Meal service may be provided to registered guest and not open to the public
3. The operator of the bed and breakfast shall be a full-time resident of the structure in
which the bed and breakfast inn is housed.
4. The bed and breakfast shall be permitted by right and a maximum of five guest
rooms may be permitted following approval as a special use.

d. Permit/Food Service
It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, corporation, or other entity to operate a
food service establishment, a mobile food unit, or a temporary food service
operation in Fayette County without a valid food service permit issued by the
Board of Health, as defined in Food Service Rules and Regulations.
It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, corporation, or other entity to operate a
food service establishment, a mobile food unit, or a temporary food service,
operation during any period of time that a permit for such operation has been
suspended by the Board of Health. No person, firm, corporation or other entity
shall operate a food service establishment, a mobile food operation, or a temporary
food service operation in violation of the "Food Service Rules and Regulations" as
adopted by the Board of Health

6-167 Records
Each hotel operator shall keep for a period of at least three (3) years all records, receipts, invoices

and other pertinent papers setting forth rental charged for each occupancy, the date or dates of
occupancy, and such other information as required by code enforcement.





6-168 Examination of records

The Director of Finance, Code Enforcement office, county health department, or any authorized
law enforcement agency shall enforce the provisions of this chapter for the enforcement of this
ordinance.

6-169 Standards for health, sanitation, and safety

a.

The Georgia Department of Public Health and county boards of health shall have the power to
promulgate the rules and regulations to ensure the protection of public health. Such rules and
regulations shall prescribe reasonable standards for health, sanitation and safety of all
applicable locations under this article.

The County board of health is empowered to adopt and promulgate supplementary rules and
regulations consistent with those adopted by the State board of health.

The Georgia Department of Health and the county boards of health and their duly authorized
agents are authorized and empowered to enforce compliance with this article and the rules and
regulations adopted under this chapter and in connection therewith, to enter upon and inspect
the premises of location included in this article at any reasonable time and in a reasonable
manner.

6-170 Alterations to structure, signs

No exterior alterations may be made that would indicate the residence was being used for housing
transient, travelers, and tourists.

Article 2





Division 1
Licensing procedure

6-171 Application

The application shall consist of the following:
a. Application supplied by Code Enforcement
b. The applicant and each individual applying for a license must be a citizen or legal
resident of the United States
Location of business
Copy of set room rates and fees
Consent for background
Fingerprints ran through Fayette County Sheriff Office
Verification of ownership
Corporation papers
Approval of Health Department Fayette County- permitted maximum capacity
Approval of Fire Marshal Fayette County — permitted maximum capacity
Approval Zoning -
Approval of Permits and Building department — compliance with all property
maintenance and building codes
Certified plans of property and structure.
Copy of guest occupancy agreement as required by OCGA 43-21-3.2
Occupational tax certificate
Registration of property for excise and sales tax
Copy of Sales tax certificate number
Any other information as requested by Fayette County Code Enforcement or Fayette
County Board of Commissioners

SETEER e o0

-

6-172 Fees

All fees shall be set by the Fayette county Board of Commissioners and changed as deemed
necessary.

6-173 Issuance of license

a. Upon approval of the application for the license by the Board of Commissioners and the timely
payment of the license fee, Code Enforcement shall issue the appropriate license for the year in
which approval was granted.

b. No license shall be issued to any business listed in this section or person where any individual
having interest either as owner, partner, principal stockholder, or licensee, whether such interest is
direct or indirect, or beneficial or absolute, has been convicted or has taken a plea of nolo
contendere within 5 five years for conviction involving moral turpitude, or (5) five years
immediately prior to the filing date of the application for any felony or (2) years for any
misdemeanor of any state or of the Untied States or any municipal or county ordinance which
would have any effect on the applicant’s ability to properly conduct such business, except traffic
offenses. The term “conviction” as used in this section shall include adjudication of guilty pea,
plea of nolo contendere or forfeiture of a bond when charged with a crime.

c. The board of commissioners on appeal, may waive any conviction as a disqualification if it
finds that it would have no material effect upon the applicant’s ability to properly conduct its
business if such license were granted. Upon payment by the applicant of a fee set by the board of
commissioners the county manager shall schedule a hearing before Fayette County Board of
Commissioners for its consideration as to whether a license can be granted.

6-174 Annual renewal of licenses:

All licenses are annual licenses that run from January 1 to December 31 of each year.





6-175 License transfer
a. No license permitted under this section shall be transferred from one owner to the other
b. Any violation of this section shall constitute due cause for probation, suspension, or
revocation of the license or licenses granted by the Board of Commissioners

6-176 Display of permit.

Every recipient of a permit shall keep such permit conspicuously displayed at all places
where such business is conducted.

Section 6-177-179 Reserved

Division 3





Hotel, motel, lodging, Bed and Breakfast Excise tax
6-180 Hotel, Lodging, Bed and Breakfast Excise tax: report: penalty for failure to file: payment

a. Imposition and Rate of Tax.
There is hereby levied and assessed, and there shall be paid a tax of three percent (3%)
of the rent for every occupancy of a guest room in a hotel, tourist camp, tourist cabin,
campground, or any other place, including residences, in which rooms, lodgings, or
accommodations are furnished for value in the unincorporated area of Fayette County.
The tax imposed by this Ordinance shall be paid upon any occupancy on and after June
1% 2014, although such occupancy is had pursuant to a contract, lease or other
arrangement made prior to such date. Where rent is paid, or charged or billed, or falls
due on either a weekly, monthly or other less than 30 day basis, the rent so paid,
charged, billed or falling due shall be subject to the tax herein imposed to the extent that
it covers any portion of the period from June1, 2014, and any monthly period thereafter.
The proceeds of the lodging tax will be used in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-13-
51(a)(2).

b. Persons Liable for Tax; Extinguishment of Liability.
Every person occupying a guest room in a hotel in the unincorporated area of Fayette County is
liable for the tax. This liability is not extinguished until the tax has been paid to this County except
that a receipt from an operator naming a place of business in this County or from an operator who
is authorized by the Finance Director under such rules and regulations as he may prescribe, to
collect the tax and who is, for the purposes of this Ordinance, regarded as an operator maintaining
a place of business in the unincorporated area of Fayette County, which receipt is given to the
occupancy pursuant to Section 2-14-12 hereof, is sufficient to relieve the occupancy from further
liability for the tax to which the receipt refers.

c. Collection of Tax by Operator; Receipt to Occupant; Rules for Collection Schedules.
Every operator maintaining a place of business in the unincorporated area of Fayette County, as
provided in the next preceding section, and renting guest rooms in the unincorporated area of
Fayette County, not exempted under this Ordinance shall, at the time of collecting rent from the
occupant and on demand shall give to the occupant a receipt therefore. In all cases of transactions
upon credit or deferred payment, the payment of tax to the operator may be deferred in accordance
therewith, and the operator shall be liable therefore at the time and to the extent that such credits
are incurred in accordance with the rate of tax owing on the amount thereof. The Finance Director
shall have the power to adopt rules and regulations prescribing methods and schedules for the
collection and payment of the tax.

d. Unlawful Advertising Regarding Tax.
It is unlawful for any operator to advertise or hold out or state to the public or to any guest directly
or indirectly, that the tax or any part thereof will be assumed or absorbed by the operator or that it
will not be added to the rental of the guest room, or that, if added, it or any part thereof, will be
refunded.

e. Exemptions.
No tax shall be imposed hereunder:

1) Upon fees, rents, or charges made for continuous use of any guest rooms,
lodgings, or accommodations after the first 30 days of continuous occupancy.

2) Upon the fees or charges for any guest rooms, lodging or accommodations
furnished for a period of one or more days for use by Georgia state or local
government officials or employees when traveling on official business.

3) Upon charges made for any guest rooms, lodgings, or accommodations provided to
any persons who certify by affidavit that they are staying in such room, lodging, or





accommodation as a result of the destruction of their home or residence by fire or other
casualty

f. Registration of Operator; Form and Contents; Execution; Certificate of

Authority.
Every person engaging or about to engage in business as an operator of a hotel in the
unincorporated area of Fayette County shall immediately register with the Finance
Director of the County, on a form provided by the Finance Director. Persons engaged
in such business must so register not later than fifteen (15) days after the date this
Ordinance becomes effective and the tax is imposed as set forth in the ordinance, but
such privilege of registration after the imposition of such tax shall not relieve any
person from the obligation of payment or collection of tax on and after the date of
imposition thereof, regardless of registration. Such registration shall set forth the
same name under which such person transacts business or intends to transact
business, the location of his place or places of business and such other information
which would facilitate the collection of the tax as the Finance Director may require.
The registration shall be signed by the owner if a natural person; in case of ownership
by an association or partnership, by a member or partner; in the case of ownership by
a corporation, by an executive officer or some person specifically authorized by the
corporation to sign the registration. The Finance Director shall, after such
registration, issue without charge a certificate of authority to each operator to collect
the tax from the occupant. A separate registration shall be required for each place of
business of an operator. Each certificate shall state name and location of the business
to which it is applicable and shall prominently display therein so as to be seen and to
come readily to the notice of all occupants and persons seeking occupancy. Such
certificates shall be nonassignable and nontransferable and shall be returned
immediately to the Finance Director upon the cessation of business at said location.
Should the Finance Director deem it necessary, in order to facilitate initial
registration hereunder of persons engaged in business, or prior to the date of
imposition of tax as set forth therefore, other than those provided in this section. Such
provisions shall be made to effect the purposes hereof.

g. Determination, Returns and Payments.
1) Due Date of Taxes. The tax imposed by this Ordinance shall
become due and payable from the occupant at the time of occupancy
of any Hotel in the unincorporated area of Fayette County. All amount
of such taxes collected by any operator shall be due and payable to
the Finance Director monthly on or before the twentieth day of every
month next succeeding such respective monthly period as set forth in
this ordinance.
2) Return; Time of Filing; Persons Required to File; Execution. On or
before the twentieth day of the month following each monthly period
shall be filed with the Finance Director in such form as Finance
Director may prescribe, by every operator, liable for the payment of tax
hereunder. For purposes of this section, a return shall be deemed filed
if postmarked on the twentieth day, or, if the twentieth day falls upon a
Holiday recognized by the State of Georgia or upon a Saturday or
Sunday, then a return postmarked on the next business day shall be
regarded as timely filed.





3) Contents of Return. All returns shall show the gross rent, rent from
permanent residents, taxable rent, amount of tax collected or otherwise due
for the related period, and such other information as may be required by the
Finance Director

h. Delivery of Return and Remittance.
The person required to file the return shall deliver the return, together with the
remittance of the Net Amount of Tax Due to the Finance Department at 140
W. Stonewall Ave Suite 101, Fayetteville, Ga. 30214

i. Collection Fee Allowed Operators.
Operators collecting the tax shall be allowed a percentage of the tax due and
accounted for and shall be reimbursed in the form of a deduction in submitting,
reporting and paying the amount due, if said amount is not delinquent at the time
of payment. The rate of the deduction shall be the same rate authorized for
deductions as provided in O.C.G.A. § 48-13-52, as now or hereafter amended.

j- Deficiency Determinations.
1) Recomputation of Tax; Authority to Make; Basis of Recomputation, If the
Finance Director is not satisfied with the return or returns of the tax or the
amount of the tax required to be paid to the County by any person, he may
compute and determine the amount required to be paid upon the basis of any
information within his possession or that may come into his possession. One
or more than one Deficiency Determinations may be made of the amount due
for one or more than one monthly period.
2) Interest on Deficiency. The amount of the determination, exclusive of
penalties, shall bear interest at the rate of one percent per month, or fraction
thereof from the twentieth day after the close of the monthly period for which
the amount or any portion thereof should have been returned until the date of
payment.
3) Offsetting of Overpayments. In making a determination the Finance
Director may offset overpayments, for a period or periods, against
underpayments, for another period or periods, against penalties, and against
the interest on underpayments. The interest on underpayments shall be
computed in the manner set forth in Section 2-14-29(c).

4) Penalty; Negligence or Disregard of Rules and Regulations. Reserved.

5). Penalty for Fraud or Intent to Evade. If any part of the deficiency for which a
deficiency determination is made due to fraud or an intent to evade any provisions of
this Ordinance or other authorized rules and regulations, a penalty of fifty percent
(50%) of the total amount of taxes due, exclusive of penalties, shall be added thereto
in addition to the other penalties provided in this Ordinance.

6) Notice of Finance Director's Determination; Service of. The Finance
Director, or his designated representative, shall give to the operator written
notice of his determination. The notice may be served personally or by mail; if
by mail such service shall be addressed to the operator at his address as it
appears in the records of the Finance Director. In case of service by mail of





any notice required by this Ordinance, the service is complete at the time of
deposit in the United States Post Office.

7) Time Within Which Notice of Deficiency Determination to be Mailed. Except in
the case of fraud, intent to evade this Ordinance or authorized rules or regulations, or
failure to make a return, every notice of a deficiency determination shall be mailed
within three (3) years after the twentieth day of the calendar month following the
monthly period for which the amount is proposed to be determined, or within three
(3) years after the return is filed, whichever period should last expire.

k. Determination if No Return Made.

1) Estimate of Gross Receipts. If any person fails to make a return, the
Finance Director shall make an estimate of the amount of the gross receipts of the
person, or as the case may be, of the amount of the total rentals in the unincorporated
area of Fayette County which are subject to the tax. The estimate shall be made for
the period or periods in respect to which the person failed to make the return and shall
be based upon any information which is or may come to the possession of the
Finance Director. Upon the basis of this estimate the Finance Director shall compute
and determine the amount required to be paid the County, adding to the sum thus
determined any applicable penalties. One or more determinations may be made for
one or for more than one period

2) Manner of Computation; Offsets; Interest. In making a determination the
Finance Director may offset overpayments for a period or penalties, and
against the interest on the under payments. The interest on under payments
shall be computed in the manner set forth in this ordinance

3) Interest on Amount Found Due. The amount of the determination,
exclusive of penalties, shall bear interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per
month, or fraction thereof, from the twentieth day of the month following the
monthly period, for which the amount or any portion thereof should have been
returned, until the date of payment.

4) Penalty for Fraud or Intent to Evade. If the failure of any person to file a
return is due to fraud or an intent to evade this Ordinance or rules and
regulations, a penalty of fifty percent (50%) of the amount required to be
paid by the person, exclusive of penalties, shall be added thereto in
addition to the other penalties provided in this Ordinance) Giving of Notice;
Manner of Service. Promptly after making his determination, the Finance
Director shall give the person written notice to be served personally or by
mail in the manner prescribed for service of notice of a deficiency
determination.

L. Penalties and Interest for Failure to Pay Tax.





1) When any operator fails to make any return or to pay the full amount of the
tax imposed by this Ordinance, a penalty shall be added to the tax in the
amount of three percent (3%) or $3.00, whichever is greater, if the failure is
for not more than 30 days. An additional penalty of three percent (3) or $3.00,
whichever is greater, shall be added for each additional 30days or fraction of
30 days during which the failure continues. The penalty for any single
violation under this Section shall not exceed 25 percent (25%) or $25.00 in
the aggregate, whichever is greater. The penalty imposed herein shall be in
addition to the tax, any other penalties, and interest on the unpaid tax as set
forth in this Ordinance.

2) The amount of the unpaid tax, exclusive of penalties, shall bear interest at the rate
of one percent (1%) per month, or fraction thereof, from the twentieth day of the
month following the monthly period, for which the amount or any portion thereof
should have been returned, until the date of payment.

M. Collection of Tax.
1) Security, the Finance Director May Exact; Amount; Sale Of; Notice of Sale;
Return of Surplus. The Finance Director whenever he deems it necessary to
insure compliance with this Ordinance, may require any person subject
thereto to deposit with him such security as the Finance Director may
determine. The amount of the security shall be fixed by the Finance Director
but shall not be greater than twice the person's estimated average liability for
the period for which he files returns, determined in such a manner as the
Finance Director deems proper, or five thousand dollars ($5,000.00),
whichever amount is the less The amount of the security may be increased
by the Finance Director subject to the limitations herein provided. The
Finance Director may sell the security at public auction, with the approval of
the Board of Commissioners if it becomes necessary so to do in order to
recover any tax or any amount required to be collected, interest or penalty
due. Notice of the sale may be served upon the person who deposited the
security personally or by mail; if by mail, service shall be made in the manner
prescribed for service of a notice of a deficiency determination and shall be
addressed to the person at his address as it appears in the records of the
Finance Director. Upon any sale, any surplus above the amounts due shall be
returned to the person who deposited the security.

2) Action for Tax; Time for. At any time within three (3) years after any tax or
amount of tax required to be collected becomes due and payable and at any time
within three (3) years after the delinquency of any tax or any amount of tax required
to be collected, the Finance Director may bring action in the courts of this State, or
any other State, or of the United States in the name of the County to collect the
amount delinquent together with penalties and interest, court fees, filing fees,
attorney's fees and other legal fees incident thereto. The bringing of such an action
shall not be a prerequisite for the issuance of a fi. fa. under the provisions of
subsection (g) hereof.

3) ) Duty of Successors or Assignees of Operator to Withhold Tax from Purchase
Money.





If any operator liable for any amount under this Ordinance sells out his business
or quits the business, his successors or assigns shall withhold a sufficient portion
of the purchase price to cover such amount until the former owner produces a
receipt from the Finance Director showing that he has been paid or a certificate
stating that no amount is due.

4) Liability for Failure to Withhold; Certificate of Notice of Amount Due; Time
to Enforce Successor's Liability.

If the purchaser of a business fails to withhold purchase price as required in
subsection (c), the purchaser shall become personally liable for the payment
of the unpaid taxes. Within thirty (30) days after receiving a written request
from the purchaser for a certificate, the Finance Director shall either issue the
certificate or mail notice to the purchaser at the address as it appears on the
records of the Finance Director of the amount that must be paid as a
condition of issuing the certificate. The time within which the obligation of a
successor may be enforced shall start to run at the time the operator sells out
his business or at the time that the determination against the operator
becomes final, whichever event occurs the later. Any purchaser that fails to
withhold from the purchase price the amount of unpaid taxes or fails to pay
any amount of such tax for which it becomes liable as a result of said
purchase shall not be permitted to obtain an occupation tax certificate or
alcoholic beverage license until all such taxes, including all penalties and
interest, have been paid in full.

5) Tax Credit, Penalty or Interest Paid More than Once or Erroneously or

or Illegally Collected. Whenever the amount of any tax, penalty, or interest has been
paid more than once, or has been erroneously or illegally collected or received by the
County under this Ordinance, it may be offset as provided in Section 2-14-28(c). If
the operator or person determines that he has overpaid or paid more than once, which
fact has not been determined by the Finance Director he will have three (3) years
from date of payment to file claim in writing stating the specific ground upon which
claim is founded. The claim shall be audited by the Fayette County Finance
Department. If the claim is approved by the Finance Director, the excess amount paid
the County may be credited on any amounts then due and

payable from, the person by whom it was paid, or his administrators or
executors.

6) Lien for Taxes. The lien of taxes collectible under the provisions of this
Ordinance shall date from January 1 of the year in which the taxes become
due, and the lien of such taxes shall be a special lien on the property upon
which the same are due and a general lien against all property of the
taxpayer owing same.

7) County Administrator authorized to issue fieri facias. The Fayette County
Administrator is hereby authorized to issue a fieri facias (fi. fa.) for execution
and levy to satisfy the amount of any tax, penalty, or interest due but not paid
under the provisions of this Ordinance.





8) Eligibility for occupational tax and/or alcoholic beverage license. Any
person who fails to pay the tax imposed herein to the County or fails to pay
any amount of such tax required to be collected and paid to the County shall
not be permitted to obtain or renew their occupation tax certificate or alcoholic
beverage license until all such taxes, including all penalties and interest, have
been paid in full.

N. Administrator of Excise Tax Ordinance.
1) Authority of Finance Director. The Finance Director shall administer and
enforce the provisions of excise tax division of this Ordinance for the levy and
collection of the tax imposed by this Ordinance.

2) Rules and Regulations. The Finance Director shall have the power and
authority to make and publish reasonable rules and regulations not
inconsistent with the Ordinance, other laws or ordinances of Fayette County
and the State of Georgia, or the constitution of this State or the United States
for the administrator and enforcement of the provisions of this Ordinance and
the collection of the taxes hereunder.

3) Records Required from Operators, etc., Form. Every operator renting guest rooms
in the unincorporated area of Fayette County to a person shall keep such records,
receipts, invoices, and other pertinent papers in such form as the Finance Director
may require.

4) Examination of Records; Audits. The Finance Director or any person
authorized in writing by the Finance Director may examine the books, papers,
records, financial reports, equipment and other facilities of any operator
renting guest rooms to a person and any operator liable for the tax, in order to
verify the accuracy of any return made, or if no return is made by the
operator, to ascertain and determine the amount required to be paid.

5) Authority to Require Reports; Contents. In administering the provisions
of this Ordinance, the Finance Director may require the filing of reports by
any person or class of persons having in such person's or persons'
possession or custody information relating to rentals of guest rooms which
are subject to the tax. The reports shall be filed with the Finance Director
when required by the Finance Director and shall set forth the rental
charged for each occupancy, the date or dates of occupancy, and such
other information as the Finance Director may require.

6) Disclosure of Business of Operators, etc., Limitation on Rule. The
Finance Director or any person having an administrative duty under this
Ordinance shall not make known in any manner the business affairs,
operations or information obtained by an audit of books, papers, records,
financial reports, equipment and other facilities of any operator or any
other person visited or examined in the discharge of official duty, or the
amount or source of income, profits, losses, expenditures, or any
particular thereof, set forth or disclosed in any return, or to permit any





return or copy thereof or any book containing any abstract or particulars
thereof to be seen or examined by any person not having such
administrative duty under this Ordinance, except in case of Judicial
proceedings or other proceedings necessary to collect the tax hereby
levied and assessed, or as required by the Georgia Open Records Act.
Successors, receivers, trustees, executors, administrators, assignees and
guarantors, if directly interested, may be given information as to the items
included in the measure and amount of unpaid tax or amounts of tax
required to be collected, interest and penalties.

O. Severability.
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or a portion of this
Ordinance shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional by any court of
competent jurisdiction, or if the provisions of any part of this Ordinance as
applied to any particular situation or set of circumstances shall be declared
invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, or if the
provisions of any part of this Ordinance as applied to any particular situation
or set of circumstances shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional, such
invalidity shall not be construed to affect the portions of this Ordinance not so
held to be invalid, or the application of this Ordinance to other circumstances
not so held to be invalid. It is hereby declared as the intent that this
Ordinance would have been adopted had such invalid portion not been
included herein

P. Violations.
Any person violating any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed
guilty of an offense and upon conviction thereof shall be punished as
provided in this section of the Code of Ordinances of Fayette County. Each
such person shall be guilty of a separate offense for each and every day
during any portion of which any violation of any provision of this Ordinance is
committed, continued, or permitted by such person, and shall be punished
accordingly.
Any operator or other person who fails to register as required herein, or to
furnish any return required to be made, or who fails or refuses to furnish a
supplemental return or other date required by the Finance Director or who
renders a false or fraudulent return shall be deemed guilty of an offense and
upon conviction thereof shall be punished as aforesaid. Any person required
to make, render, sign, or verify any report who makes any false or fraudulent
report, with intent to defeat or evade the termination of an amount due
required by this Ordinance to be made shall be deemed guilty of an offense
and up convictions thereof shall be punished as aforesaid

Q. Effective Date.





This Ordinance shall become effective upon the 1st day of June 2014. Amendments
to this Ordinance shall become effective upon the date specified by the Fayette
County Board of Commissioners when said amendment is adopted.

R. Proceeds of tax:
The proceeds of the hotel, motel, tax will be used in accordance with the provisions
of OCGA 48-13-51(a)(2)

6-181 License transfer
A No license permitted under this section shall be transferred from one owner to the other

B Any violation of this section shall constitute due cause for probation, suspension, or revocation
of the license or licenses granted by the Board of Commissioners

6-182-185 RESERVED





Division 4
OPERATING REGULATIONS

6-186 Employee Health and safety
The health and safety code as written by the Georgia Health Department 511-6-2
6-186 Water Supply

The water supply shall comply with all Federal, state and local laws and or ordinances to include
the Georgia Public Heath department section 511-6-2

6-187 Toilet Facilities

Toilet, lavatory and bathing facilities shall be provided at all tourist accommodations. Such
facilities shall be easily accessible, convenient and available to patron at all times and operated as per Ga.
Department of Health section 511-6-2.

6-188 Sewage

Public sewer is not available in unincorporated Fayette County therefore, sewage disposal shall be
provided to effectively dispose of all water carried wastes in a sanitary manner as stated in Ga. Public
Health section 511-6-2).

6-189 Plumbing

All plumbing in tourist accommodations shall comply with all State and local laws, ordinances, or
regulations.

6-190 Parking

A) All parking at the location shall not exceed 1 vehicle per 2 overnight guests and 1 motorcycle
per 1 overnight guest of which vehicles and/or motorcycles shall not exceed half the maximum
capacity of the home

B) No commercial vehicles over 8,000 Ibs and/or over 2 axles shall be allowed in
residentially zoned neighborhoods

6-191 Insect and Rodent Control

Effective measures, approved by the health authority, intended to eliminate the presence of rodents
and flies roaches and other insects on the premises shall be utilized. The premises shall be kept in such
condition as to prevent the harborage or feeding of insects or rodents. .

6-192 Property maintenance

All structures and facilities at the location must be kept in compliance with all State and local laws
and ordinances to include but not limited to
Fire Safety-Life Safety Code
Swimming Pools
Laundry rooms
Grounds
Food service — as allowed

N





f. HVAC
g. Any outdoor noise shall be subject to the county’s noise control ordinance.
h. International Property Maintenance Code

6-193 Parking

A) All parking at the location shall not exceed 1 vehicle per 2 overnight guests and 1 motorcycle
per 1 overnight guest of which vehicles and/or motorcycles shall not exceed half the maximum
capacity of the home

B) No commercial vehicles over 8,000 Ibs and/or over 2 axles shall be allowed in
residentially zoned neighborhoods, except for deliveries being made for a minimum
period of time not to exceed 15 minutes

6-194 Special events

(a) Only lodging may occur at tourist accommodations.
(b) Special event permits are permitted at commercial zoned property only by permit.

6-195 Registration of Guest

The licensee is required to keep a guest register. Each guest shall register on the date of their
arrival, stating their names, current residence, address and description and license plate number of the
vehicle they are using. The guest register shall be kept by the licensee for at least 3 years and made
available for examination by a representative of the county or any authorized law enforcement agency.

6-196 Violations.

Whenever in this code or in any ordinance of the County any act is prohibited or is
declared to be unlawful, or whenever in such code or ordinance the doing of any act
is declared to be unlawful, and no specific penalty is provided therefore, the violation
of such provision of this code of any ordinance shall subject the person committing
the violation to a fine not exceeding $1000.00 and costs or to imprisonment for a
term not exceeding sixty (60) days, or to both such fine and imprisonment, any or all
of such penalties to be imposed at the discretion of the judge.

The infliction of a penalty under the provisions of this section shall not prevent the

revocation of any permit or of license or the taking of other punitive or remedial
action where called for or permitted under the provisions of the code

Sections 6- 197-199 Reserved





Division 3
SUSPENSION, REVOCATION PROBATION

6-200 Revocation.
a. Causes. The license issued pursuant to this division may be revoked
by the board of commissioners of the county, after notice and hearing,
for any of the following causes:

1. Any fraud, misrepresentation or false statement contained in
the application for license;

2. Any fraud, misrepresentation or false statement made in
connection with any transaction;

3. Any violation of this division; or conducting the business

licensed under this division in an unlawful manner or in such a
manner as to constitute a breach of the peace or to constitute
a menace to the health safety or general welfare of the public.

b. Hearing.
1. Notice of hearing for revocation of a license shall be given in
writing, setting forth specifically the grounds of the complaint
and the time and place of the hearing. The notice shall be
served on the licensee by handling the same personally to the
person in charge of the licensees business, or by mailing the
same, postage prepaid, to the licensee at his last known
address at least five (5) days prior to the date set out for the
hearing.

2. The giving of such notice shall suspend the license pending
the outcome of the hearing, and business operations under the
license shall cease

6-201 Violations; penalties.
a. Violations. It shall be unlawful for any operator to commit any of the
following acts:
1. Fail to make an entry of any material matter in his permanent
book required to be kept by this division;
2. Make any false entry therein;
3. Falsify, obliterate, destroy or remove from his place of





business such permanent record book;

4. Refuse to allow any duly authorized law enforcement officer

after proper identification to inspect such permanent record

book, or any goods in his possession, during the ordinary

hours of business or at other reasonable time;

5. Fail to maintain a record of each purchase transaction for at

least (2) two years and at least (2) years after ceasing to engage in

such business within the county;

6. Failure to obtain the required identification from the guest

7. Penalty. Any person, firm or corporation which shall violate any
of the provisions of the within division shall have their specific
regulation occupation permit revoked.

Section 6-202-205 Reserved

Section 2 That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and
is hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein.

Section 3 a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all
Sections, paragraphs, sentences clauses, and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their
enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and
constitutional.

b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest
extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
ordinance severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to
the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this article
is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this article.

c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this article shall, for any
reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction. It is the express intent of the Board of
Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality, or unenforceability shall, to the greatest
extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, or unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to
the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and
Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.

Section 4. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith
are hereby expressly repealed.

Section S. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise
specified herein.

IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS 24th DAY OF April 2014





BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Steve Brown, Chairman

ATTEST:

Floyd Jones, Clerk

Dennis Davenport
Interim County Attorney





		Code Enforcement- Tourist Acc...14-08 Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Tourist Accomodation Ordinance 2014-08 Backup








Consent Agenda #8

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): County Administrator Steve Rapson
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: |Consent

Wording for the Agenda:

Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-07 enacting a new County Code entitled "The Code of Fayette County,
Georgia."

Background/History/Details:

On March 23, 2007, the Board of Commissioners adopted Ordinance 2007-04 that enacted a new County Code. Since that time, Fayette
County has adopted, modified, or removed / replaced its ordinances, but it never enacted a new County Code throughout that time. On
January 24, 2013, the Board of Commissioners approved staff's recommendation to recodify Fayette County's Ordinances. That work
has been ongoing throughout 2013 and much of 2014.

The proposed Code of Fayette County represents 79 ordinances that have been passed from June 2007 with the adoption of Ordinance
2007-05 through January 2014 with the adoption of Ordinance 2014-02.

The proposed Code of Fayette County involved the work of the county attorneys, several county departments, and the county clerk. The
adoption of Ordinance 2014-07 will formally enact the new County Code.

The new County Code will be able to be accessed at http://library.municode.com/index.aspx?clientld=11841 upon adoption of Ordinance
2014-07.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-07 enacting a new County Code entitled "The Code of Fayette County,
Georgia."

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable. Throughout this process, and invoices have been paid through the Legal Library Fund Account.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:
Only one ordinance that was passed in 2013 is not included in this current codification. Ordinance 2013-22 was partially adopted by the
Board on November 14, 2013, with the Board to consider the remaining portions of the ordinance at a later date. That partially approved
ordinance, as well as preparation for reconsideration by the Board, is with the County Attorney's office.




fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #8





March 31, 2014

Mr. Floyd Jones
County Clerk, Fayette County, Georgla
Emailed as attachment to: fjones@fayettecountyga.gov

Re: Fayette County Recodification
Dear Mr. Jones:

I am pleased to adwvise that the new County Code has been cleared to press and will
ship within the next few days.

The new Code embraces legislation through January 23, 2014. Enclosed 1s a
suggested adopting ordinance for the new Code. I recommend that you have the
County Attorney review it and have it adopted at an early date.

We will also need a copy of each ordinance that has been adopted since January 23,
2014, not previously sent to us for inclusion in the first supplement. We can receive
ordinances via e-mail at ords@mail.municode.com, or you may send disks and/or
hard copies of the ordinances to Steffanie Rasmussen of our sales department.
Stephanie will contact you shortly and will work with you to make sure that
Supplements are published on the schedule that you desire.

Sincerely,

MUNICIPAL CODE CORPORATION
MAILING ADDRESS: P.O. Box 2235 Tallahassee, FL 32316
PHYSICAL ADDRESS: 1700 Capital Circle, SW Tallahassee, FL. 32310
FAX: 850-575-8852
LOCAL TELEPHONE NUMBER: 850-576-3171



































ORDINANCE NO. 2014-07

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND ENACTING A NEW CODE FOR
PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CERTAIN ORDINANCES NOT
INCLUDED THEREIN; PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR THE VIOLATION
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE MANNER OF AMENDING SUCH
CODE; AND PROVIDING WHEN SUCH CODE AND THIS ORDINANCE
SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR FAYETTE COUNTY,
GEORGIAAND ITISHEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF THE
SAME:

Section 1. The Code entitled "The Code of Fayette County, Georgia," published by
Municipal Code Corporation, consisting of chapters 1 through 110, each inclusive, is
adopted.

Section 2. All ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted on or before
January 23, 2014, and not included in the Code or recognized and continued in force by
reference therein, are repealed.

Section 3. The repeal provided for in section 2 hereof shall not be construed to revive any
ordinance or part thereof that has been repealed by a subsequent ordinance that is
repealed by this ordinance.

Section 4. Unless another penalty is expressly provided, every person convicted of a
violation of any provision of the Code or any ordinance, rule or regulation adopted or
issued in pursuance thereof shall be punished by a fine not exceeding $1,000.00 or
imprisonment for a term not exceeding 60 days, or any combination thereof. Except as
otherwise provided: (1) With respect to violations of the Code that are continuous with
respect to time, each day the violation continues is a separate offense; and (2) With
respect to violations of this Code that are not continuous with respect to time, each day
the violation continues is a separate offense. The penalty provided by this section, unless
another penalty is expressly provided, shall apply to the amendment of any Code section,
whether or not such penalty is reenacted in the amendatory ordinance. In addition to the
penalty prescribed above, the county may pursue other remedies such as abatement of
nuisances, injunctive relief and revocation of licenses or permits.

Section 5. Additions or amendments to the Code when passed in such form as to indicate
an intention to make the same a part of the Code shall be deemed to be incorporated in
the Code, so that reference to the Code includes the additions and amendments.

Section 6. Ordinances adopted after January 23, 2014, that amend or refer to ordinances
that have been codified in the Code shall be construed as if they amend or refer to like
provisions of the Code.





Section 7. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the
Board of Commissioners for Fayette County, Georgia.

SO ENACTED this 24t day of April 2014.

Steve Brown, Chairman

Attest:

Floyd Jones, County Clerk





		Commissioners- Code Code Ordi...14-07 Agenda Request with Backup

		Commissioners- Code Code Ordi...14-07 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Code Code Ordinance 2014-07 Backup

		Commissioners- Code Code Ordinance 2014-07 Backup

		Commissioners- County Code Backup

		Commissioners- County Code Backup-1

		Commissioners- County Code Backup-2



		Commissioners- County Code Backup-1



		Microsoft Word - Commissioners- County Code Backup-2





		-3








New Business #11

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): County Administrator Steve Rapson
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:

Consideration of staff's recommendation to consolidate the City of Fayetteville's Fire Department into the Fayette County Fire
Department, and for the consolidation of the departments to become fully operational on July 1, 2014.

Background/History/Details:

The Fayette County Board of Commissioners and the Fayetteville City Council have been considering and reviewing the merits and
challenges of consolidating the City of Fayetteville's Fire Department into Fayette County's Fire Department. These considerations were
based on redundant operations by both departments within the City of Fayetteville as well as a projected funding shortfall by the City of
Fayetteville.

Numerous meetings have taken place between the staffs and elected officials of both jurisdictions in an effort to smoothly and efficiently
consolidate the city's fire department into the county's fire department. The issue of consolidation was spoken of at length at the April 4,
2014 Board of Commissioners Retreat and at the April 9, 2014 Public Joint Meeting of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners and
the City of Fayetteville Council. The consolidation effort has been reported in both local and Atlanta media.

The Fayetteville City Council will hold a public meeting concerning Fire Consolidation on Wednesday, April 23, 2014.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Consideration of staff's recommendation to consolidate the City of Fayetteville's Fire Department into the Fayette County Fire
Department, and for the consolidation of the departments to become fully operational on July 1, 2014.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
No funding is requested.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Yes Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:

This recommendation is the result of City of Fayetteville and Fayette County working together for the long-standing safety, protection and
betterment of all Fayette's citizens.




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #11





FAYETTE COUNTY, GA.
FIRE CONSOLIDATION
PROPOSAL

Board of Commissioners Retreat
April 4, 2014






Fire Services Consolidation





Departmental Comparison

Fayetteville Fayette County
- Coverage Area — 10 Sq. Miles - Coverage Area — 172 Sq. Miles
- Stations — 2 (1 Co-Location) - Stations — 8 (1 — Co-Location)
- Apparatus (aily Minimum) - Apparatus (paily Minimum)
. 2 Engines - 6 Engines
- 2 Quints

- 1 Aerial

_ _ - 5 Medic Units
- 1 Battalion Captain

- 2 —Squads (Flex 1 or 2)

- Full Time Staff - 1 - Rescue
- Operations - 21 - 1 — Battalion Chief
- Admin - 3 - Full Time Staff
- Part Time - 9 - Operations - 129
- Admin - 16

- Part Time -0






2013 Incident Data Comparison

Fayetteville

- Total Incidents 2,877
- Rescue/Medical 1,789 (62.2%)
- Service Calls 172 (6.0%)

- Good Intent 527 (18.3%)

- 405 Cancelled Calls (14.1%)

- Hazardous Calls 94 (3.3%)
- False Alarms 231 (8.0%)

- Fires 57 (2.0%)

- 27 Building

- 7 Cooking

- 3 Chimney

- 10 Vehicle

- 10 Grass/Trash/Other

- Severe Weather 7 (<0.2%)

Fayette County

- Total Incidents 8,105

- Rescue/Medical 6,258 (77.2%)
- Service Calls 501 (6.2%)

- Good Intent 567 (7.0%)

- 304 Cancelled Calls (3.8%)

- Hazardous Calls 189 (2.3%)
- False Alarms 404 (5.0%)
- Fires 168 (2.1%)

- 32 Building

- 17 Cooking

- 7 Chimney

- 19 Vehicle

- 93 Grass/Trash/Other

- Severe Weather 18 (0.2%)





I
2013 Calls for Service Comparison





2013 Calls for Service Comparison

Fayetteville Fayette County

- Total Incidents 506 - Total Incidents 2,934
- Rescue/Medical 273 (54.0%) - Rescue/Medical 2,531(86.3%)
- Service Calls 29 (5.7%) - Service Calls 97 (3.3%)
- Good Intent 112 (22.1%) - Good Intent 160 (5.5%)

. 87 Cancelled Calls (17.2%) - 84 Cancelled Calls (2.9%)
- Hazardous Calls 24 (4.7%) + Hazardous Calls 29 (1.0%)
- False Alarms 35 (6.9%) ' Eglse ZA;ar(T;o/?O (2.4%)
- Fires 30 (5.9%) . V\'/'f:therg io_é’z% )
+ Weather 3 (0.7%) - Public Relations 13 (0.4%)

- CPR/Fire Safety






Financial Modeling Assumptions

- Revenue:
- Fayette County’s Unincorporated Millage Rate 3.070
- Fayetteville 2013 Digest
- Fayetteville 2013 Fire Services Budget

- Expenditures:
- Fayette County Pay & Classification System

- Fayette County Defined Benefit and Defined
Contribution plans

- Fayette County Healthcare Benefit plans
- Fayette County Fire Services Command Structure





Financial Analysis — Major Considerations

- Staffing transition and approach to placing staff on the
Fayette County Pay & Classification System

- Employee Benefit impacts for Retirement Plans and
Healthcare Benefits

- Operating Impacts associated with economy of scale
savings and in-house staff ability training

- Integration of Command Staff fire personnel

- Staffing compensation considerations to smooth transition
and maintain pay parity, longevity and experience

- Certification standards and considerations for consistency
of operations countywide





Financial Modeling — Where we are...

Category Rollup Fayette Fayetteville

PropertyTaxes 5,928,500 2,076,190
Insurance Premium Tax 2,175,000 0
Impact Fees 125,000 0
Tower Rental 60,000 0
All Other 35,000 0
Total Revenues 8,323,500 2,076,190
Category Rollup || Fayette Fayetteville

Salary and Benefits 7,096,602 2,164,812
Services 211,820 130,912
Supplies 255,957 138,911
Assets 7,125 0
Transfers To General Fund 316,491 0
Transfers To Capital Projects 37,225 0
Transfers To Vehicles 350,000 0
Total Expenditures 8,275,220 2,434,635
Surplus/(Shortfall) 48,280 (358,445)






Financial Modeling — Retirement Plans

- Fayette County offers the choice of either a Defined Benefit (DB) Plan
or Defined Contribution (DC) Plan.

- Fayette County contributes 3.8% to whichever plan the employee
selects.

- Option #1 - Defined Benefit Plan is managed by ACCG; has a required 2.5%
employee contribution with a 10 year vesting period, 1.25% salary times years of
service, with a 3.8% County contribution.

- Option #2 - Defined Contribution Plan is a “walk away” plan; has no matching
requirement with a 2 year vesting period, with a 3.8% County contribution.

- Fayetteville - Defined Benefit Plan is managed by GMA; has a required 2.0%
employee contribution with a 10 year vesting period, 1.50% salary times years of
service.

- Voluntary Employee Contribution 457 Plan:

- Fayette - contributes an amount equal to 50% up to the first 5.0% an employee
defers, for a maximum match of 2.5% with a 5 year vesting period.

- Fayetteville - contributes an amount equal to 50% up to the first 4.0% an
employee defers, for a maximum match of 2.0% with a 5 year vesting period.

- Net Decrease ($109,860)





Financial Modeling — Retireme

City Retirement Plan

County Retirement Plan

Nt Plans

DB Plan Retirement DB/DC Plan | Retirement Variance

Job Description 13.21% Sal 457/Match 3.8% Sal 457/Match DB Plan 457 Match
Fire Chief $11,295.35 $0.00 $3,249.23 ($8,046.12)
Deputy Fire Chief $10,044.46 $0.00 $2,889.40 ($7,155.06)
Fire Captain Technical Servi $8,280.13 $0.00 $2,381.87 ($5,898.26)
Fire Captain $8,624.03 $1,243.58 $2,480.80 $1,305.76 ($6,143.24) $62.18
Fire Captain $8,211.18 $1,184.04 $2,362.04 $1,243.24 ($5,849.15) $59.20
Fire Captain $6,479.49 $0.00 $1,863.90 ($4,615.60)
Fire Lieutenant $5,638.50 $813.02 $1,621.97 $853.67 ($4,016.52) $40.65
Fire Lieutenant $6,750.91 $973.44 $1,941.97 $1,022.11 ($4,808.93) $48.67
Fire Lieutenant $7,454.28 $0.00 $2,144.31 ($5,309.98)
Fire Lieutenant $5,955.78 $0.00 $1,713.25 ($4,242.54)
Fire Lieutenant $7,649.24 $1,102.92 $2,200.39 $1,158.07 ($5,448.85) $55.15
Fire Fighter IV $5,317.39 $191.75 $1,529.60 $201.34 ($3,787.78) $9.59
Fire Fighter Il $4,606.37 $0.00 $1,325.07 ($3,281.29)
Fire Fighter | $4,384.65 $0.00 $1,261.29 ($3,123.36)
Fire Fighter IV $5,076.56 $731.90 $1,460.33 $768.50 ($3,616.23) $36.60
Fire Fighter llI $4,946.59 $713.18 $1,422.94 $748.84 ($3,523.65) $35.66
Fire Fighter llI $5,126.25 $554.32 $1,474.62 ($3,651.63)
Fire Fighter lll $4,881.60 $0.00 $1,404.25 ($3,477.36)
Fire Fighter IV $5,076.56 $731.90 $1,460.33 $768.50 ($3,616.23) $36.60
Fire Fighter IV $5,076.56 $731.90 $1,460.33 $768.50 ($3,616.23) $36.60
Fire Fighter IV $5,076.56 $522.86 $1,460.33 $549.00 ($3,616.23) $26.14
Fire Lt. (Temp Assignment) $5,772.29 $832.26 $1,660.46 $873.87 ($4,111.83) $41.61
Fire Fighter Il $4,606.37 $0.00 $1,325.07 ($3,281.29)
Fire Fighter IV $5,076.56 $731.90 $1,460.33 $768.50 ($3,616.23) $36.60
Fire Administrative Clerk $3,554.40 $0.00 $1,022.46 ($2,531.94)

$154,962.05 $11,058.97 $44,576.52 $11,029.88 ($110,385.53) $525.23

" Fayetteville Voluntary 457 Plan - contributes an amount equal to 50% up to 2.0%.






Financial Modeling — Healthcare Plans

- Fayette County offers a Traditional Open Access POS
(Point of Service) and HSA (Health Saving Account)
Medical Plan, Dental and Vision plans.

- Open Enrollment process.

- Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA)

- Health Advocate.

- Wellness programs and benefits.

- Life and Long-term Disability Insurance — paid county.
- Munis Self Service — employee benefit portal.

- Net decrease ($123,634)





Financial Modeling — Healthcare Plans

City Prem Share Yr County Prem Share Yr Variance

Job Description Coverage Lvl Medical All Other Medical All Other Medical All Other
Fire Chief Family $20,706.48 $1,303.08 $13,437.84 $742.56 (57,268.64) (5560.52)
Deputy Fire Chief Emp/Children | $10,927.56 $820.20 $8,685.82 $637.52 (52,241.74) (5182.68)
Fire Marshal - Part-Time Emp/Child $6,616.08 $771.00 (56,616.08) (5771.00)
Fire Captain Tech Swc Emp/Children $6,616.08 $771.00 $8,685.82 $637.52 $2,069.74 (5133.48)
Fire Captain Family $20,706.48 $1,254.96 $13,437.84 $742.56 (57,268.64) (5512.40)
Fire Captain Family $20,706.48 $1,254.96 $13,437.84 $742.56 (57,268.64) (5512.40)
Fire Captain Emp/Children | $11,648.40 $1,200.24 $8,685.82 $637.52 ($2,962.58) (5562.72)
Fire Lieutenant Emp/Children | $11,648.40 $1,151.76 $8,685.82 $637.52 (52,962.58) (5514.24)
Fire Lieutenant Family $20,706.48 $1,210.68 $13,437.84 $742.56 (57,268.64) (5468.12)
Fire Lieutenant Emp/Children | $11,648.40 $1,151.76 $8,685.82 $637.52 (52,962.58) (5514.24)
Fire Lieutenant Emp/Children | $11,648.40 $1,151.76 $8,685.82 $637.52 (52,962.58) (5514.24)
Fire Lieutenant Family $20,706.48 $1,233.00 $13,437.84 $742.56 (57,268.64) (5490.44)
Fire Fighter IV Emp/Children | $11,648.40 $1,200.24 $8,685.82 $637.52 (52,962.58) (5562.72)
Fire Fighter Il Family $20,706.48 $1,048.44 $13,437.84 $742.56 (57,268.64) (5305.88)
Fire Fighter | Employee $6,616.08 $572.16 $4,740.32 $235.82 (51,875.76) (5336.34)
Fire Fighter IV Employee $6,616.08 $572.16 $4,740.32 $235.82 (51,875.76) (5336.34)
Fire Fighter Il Family $20,706.48 $1,094.28 $13,437.84 $742.56 (57,268.64) (5351.72)
Fire Fighter Il Emp/Children | $11,648.40 $1,108.56 $8,685.82 $637.52 ($2,962.58) (5471.04)
Fire Fighter Il Emp/Children | $10,227.48 $1,090.20 $8,685.82 $637.52 (51,541.66) (5452.68)
Fire Fighter IV Family $20,706.48 $1,105.32 $13,437.84 $742.56 (57,268.64) (5362.76)
Fire Fighter IV Employee $7,567.92 $638.40 $4,740.32 $235.82 (52,827.60) (5402.58)
Fire Fighter IV Emp/Spouse | $12,936.60 $643.92 $9,206.86 |  $500.24 ($3,729.74) ($143.68)
Fire Lt. (Temp Post) Family $20,706.48 $1,129.56 $13,437.84 $742.56 (57,268.64) (5387.00)
Fire Fighter Il Family $20,706.48 $1,129.56 $13,437.84 $742.56 (57,268.64) (5387.00)
Fire Fighter IV Employee $7,567.92 $638.40 $4,740.32 $235.82 (52,827.60) (5402.58)
Firefighter IV (Job Share) $667.92 $399.36 (5667.92) ($399.36)

$0.00 $353,314.92  $25,644.96 $240,718.92 $14,606.80 ($112,596.00) ($11,038.16)






Financial Modeling — Operating

- Line item operating expenditures reductions; primarily from
small equipment, professional and technical services,
education, training, cleaning supplies and misc. items.

- Proposed reductions determined by line item review of
existing approved budget by Command Staff based upon
economy of scale and in-house capability.

- Paramedic training and certification funding is included as
envisioned under staffing proposal.

- Net Decrease ($26,639)





Financial Modeling — Staffing Observations

- Full-time staffing has decreased 33.3% since FY2012

- Frontline operations shared with part-time (Job-Share)

- Staffing levels set at minimum staffing for fire operations

- Medical calls account for 62.1% of all call for service

- Fire calls (Including smoke related calls) account for 2.0%
- Fire calls resulting in an actual fire — 27 Structure

- Pinewood Station minimum presence — 2 officer/per shift





Salary Analysis 2012 vs. 2014

2012 Salary 2013 Salary Salary 2014 Current’|| 2012 Salary

Job Description Addendex D Existing Variance |[Percent| Annual Salary || vs 2014 Salary( Percent
Fire Chief $77,556.44 $81,434.34 $3,877.90 5.0% $85,506.06 $7,949.62 | 10.3%
Deputy Fire Chief $72,415.98 $72,415.98 $0.00 0.0% $76,036.78 $3,620.80 5.0%
Fire Captain Tech Svc $59,717.00 $59,696.00 ($21.00) 0.0% $62,680.80 $2,963.80 5.0%
Fire Captain $62,175.36 $62,175.36 $0.00 0.0% $65,284.13 $3,108.77 5.0%
Fire Captain $59,198.88 $59,198.88 $0.00 0.0% $62,158.82 $2,959.94 5.0%
Fire Captain $46,720.00 $46,714.20 (55.80) 0.0% $49,049.91 $2,329.91 5.0%
Fire Lieutenant $40,651.00 $40,651.00 $0.00 0.0% $42,683.55 $2,032.55 5.0%
Fire Lieutenant $48,670.96 $48,670.96 $0.00 0.0% $51,104.51 $2,433.55 5.0%
Fire Lieutenant $53,742.00 $53,742.00 $0.00 0.0% $56,429.10 $2,687.10 5.0%
Fire Lieutenant $42,966.00 $42,938.48 (527.52)[ -0.1% $45,085.40 $2,119.40 4.9%
Fire Lieutenant $55,147.56 $55,147.56 $0.00 0.0% $57,904.94 $2,757.38 5.0%
Fire Fighter IV $38,335.96 $38,335.96 $0.00 0.0% $40,252.76 $1,916.80 5.0%
Fire Fighter II" $31,622.00 $33,209.80 $1,587.80 5.0% $34,870.29 $3,248.29 [ 10.3%
Fire Fighter | $31,622.00 $31,611.32 (510.68) 0.0% $33,191.89 $1,569.89 5.0%
Fire Fighter IV" $33,203.00 $36,599.68 $3,396.68 [ 10.2% $38,429.66 $5,226.66 | 15.7%
Fire Fighter Il| $35,662.64 $35,662.64 $0.00 0.0% $37,445.77 $1,783.13 5.0%
Fire Fighter Il| $36,957.98 $36,957.96 (50.02) 0.0% $38,805.86 $1,847.88 5.0%
Fire Fighter Ill $35,194.12 $35,194.12 $0.00 0.0% $36,953.83 $1,759.71 5.0%
Fire Fighter IV $36,607.00 $36,599.68 (57.32) 0.0% $38,429.66 $1,822.66 5.0%
Fire Fighter IV $36,607.00 $36,599.68 (57.32) 0.0% $38,429.66 $1,822.66 5.0%
Fire Fighter IV $36,607.00 $36,599.68 (57.32) 0.0% $38,429.66 $1,822.66 5.0%
Fire Lt. (Temp Post)” $38,721.80 $41,615.60 $2,893.80 7.5% $43,696.38 $4,974.58 | 12.8%
Fire Fighter Il $33,209.80 $33,209.80 $0.00 0.0% $34,870.29 $1,660.49 5.0%
Fire Fighter IV $36,607.00 $36,599.68 (57.32) 0.0% $38,429.66 $1,822.66 5.0%

$1,079,918.48 $1,091,580.36  $11,661.88 1.1% $1,146,159.38 $66,240.90 6.1%

! Salary increase reflects employee promotion

% Fy2014 Budget includes a 5% raise for all fire employees






Salary Ar

alysis 2012 vs. 2014

2012 Salary 2013 Salary Salary 2014 Current” | 2012 Salary

Job Description Addendex D Existing Variance ||Percent| Annual Salary | vs 2014 Salary[ Percent

Fire Marshal - Part-Time $62,296.00 $45,943.30 | ($16,352.70)| -26.3%| $48,240.47 | ($14,055.54)| -22.6%)|
Fire Lieutenant $42,883.00 (542,883.00) (542,883.00)
Fire Fighter | $31,622.00 ($31,622.00) ($31,622.00)
Firefighter Il $33,203.00 ($33,203.00) ($33,203.00)
Fire Fighter lIl $34,863.40 ($34,863.40) ($34,863.40)
Fire Fighter lIl $38,060.36 ($38,060.36) ($38,060.36)
Fire Fighter lIl $34,863.40 (534,863.40) (534,863.40)
Fire Fighter lIl $38,446.00 ($38,446.00) ($38,446.00)
Firefighter IV $36,607.00 ($36,607.00) ($36,607.00)
$352,844.16 $45,943.30 ($306,900.86) $48,240.47 ($304,603.70)
Fire Administrative Clerk $25,625.60 | $25,625.60 $26,906.88 $26,906.88
Firefighter IV (Job Share) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Fire Fighter Il - Job Share $25,000.00 [ $25,000.00 $26,250.00 $26,250.00
Fire Fighter Il - Job Share $25,000.00 [ $25,000.00 $26,250.00 $26,250.00
Firefighter Il - Job Share $25,000.00 [ $25,000.00 $26,250.00 $26,250.00
Fire Fighter Il - Job Share $25,000.00 | $25,000.00 $26,250.00 $26,250.00
Fire Fighter Il - Job Share $25,000.00 [ $25,000.00 $26,250.00 $26,250.00
Firefighter Il - Job Share $25,000.00 | $25,000.00 $26,250.00 $26,250.00
Firefighter Il - Job Share $25,000.00 [ $25,000.00 $26,250.00 $26,250.00
Fire Training - Job Share $31,185.00 | $31,185.00 $32,744.25 $32,744.25
$231,810.60 $231,810.60 $243,401.13  $243,401.13

$1,432,762.64 $1,369,334.26 ($63,428.38)" -4.4% $1,437,800.97 $5,038.33 0.4%





Salary Analysis 2012 vs. 2014

Position Reconcilation Analysis

2012 Salary || 2013 Salary kom Current

Type Position Addendex D|| Existing |Variance| Percent [Annual Salary|Variance| Percent
Full-Time 33.0 24.0 (9.0) -27.3% 22.0 (11.0) -33.3%
Full-Time (Vacant) 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.0
Part-Time 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0
Total 33.0 34.0 1.0 3.0% 33.0 0.0 0.0%

Type of Change Amount

Salary Increases $66,240.90

Abolishments/Reclassifications

($304,603.70)

Part-time Hiring $243,401.13
Total Change $5,038.33
Type of Change Amount

Full-Time (11.00)
Vacant Position 2.00
Part-Time 9.00
Total Change 0.00






Fayette County — Organizational Structure

- Organization of the Fire Service - The organizational
structure of a fire department consists of a chain of command.

- Chain of command - creates a structure for managing the
department and commanding fire ground operations.

- Ranking System - Firefighters usually report to a Lieutenant.
The Lieutenant is responsible for a single company (such as
an engine company) on a single shift. Lieutenants reports to
Captains. Captains are responsible for a fire company and for
coordinating the company’s activities with other shifts.
Captains report to the Battalion Chiefs. Battalion Chiefs serve
as the chief officer on duty on nights and weekends and
reports to Headquarters.





Fayette County — Organizational Structure

- Unity of Command - A theory that each firefighter answers
to only one supervisor. Each supervisory answers to only
one boss. This ensures that everyone is answerable to the
Fire Chief and establishes a direct route of responsibility
from the Chief to the Firefighter.

- Span of Control - The number of people that one person
can supervise effectively. Some experts believe that span of
control should extend to no more than five people in a
complex environment.

- Division of Labor - A way of organizing an incident by
breaking down the overall strategy into smaller task. Some
departments are divided into units based upon functions.





Fayette County — Command Structure

- Company - This is the basic unit. This is made up of a single
piece of apparatus and its crew. The company can be supervised
by an officer. This is usually a Captain or Lieutenant.

- Battalion - This is made up of multiple stations and the
Companies that are quartered there. This unit of vehicles and
personnel is usually supervised by a Battalion Chief. He serves as
the chief officer on duty on nights and weekends.

- Division (Or Division Chiefs) - This is the division of staffing for
the Headquarters command staff. Division Chiefs are responsible
for operational functions within the entire department. Our primary
functions within our organizational structure are: Administrative,
Field Operations® and Technical Services.

1 Direct report to Deputy Fire Chief





2
Fayette County — Staffing Structure

- Firefighter/Emergency Medical Technician - (FF/EMT) - Firefighters
are the basic workers and any number of tasks from deploying hose lines
to extinguishing fires. Usually companies are not responsible for any
command functions and do not supervise other personnel.

- Fire Apparatus Operator (FAO) - Driver. The person who drives the
vehicle and operates the pump or aerial. He is a specialist who knows
everything about that piece of apparatus and is responsible for getting
the fire apparatus and personnel to the fire scene safely.

- Lieutenant/Paramedic - (Lt.) - This is the officer over a single company.
Assigned to an engine, truck, rescue company and is responsible for
responding to fire and other emergencies in his community.

- Captain/Paramedic - (Capt.) - This officer commands 2-3 companies
and is in charge of the crew and apparatus, while at the station and fire
scene. They are responsible for the initial firefighting strategy, personnel
safety and tactics used on the fire scene by all personnel. They may be
called upon to fill in for the Battalion Chief during his or her absence.





B
Fayette County — Staffing Structure

- Battalion Chief/Paramedic - (BC) - Operational supervisor over
several companies. Often the highest ranking officer on duty on a
24 hours basis. Captains report to Battalion Chiefs. Battalion
Chiefs are responsible to the whole shift. They coordinate and
command fire ground operations. They also ensure that all
companies are properly staffed for each shift.

- Deputy Chief — Second in command over Fire and EMS services.
Battalion Chief’s report directly to the Deputy Chief. The Deputy
Chief is in charge of functioning areas within the fire department
(such as training, logistics, operations, etc)

- Fire Chief —Highest-ranking member of a fire department. He
organizes and directs the Fire and EMS to minimize the loss of
life, injury or property. The Fire Chief not only leads his firefighters
as they fight fires, but serves as chief administrator of the fire
department.





e
BLS vs. ALS Differences

- Both for pre-hospital life support and transportation
- Fayetteville staff are BLS (Basic Life Support):
- Typically unit consists of two EMTs;
- No transport license;
- First Responder State license;
- Fire Engines not functioning as ALS engines
- Equipped with Epi pens and Oral glucose.
- Fayette County staff are ALS (Advanced Life Support):
- Unit consists of a Paramedic and EMT;
- Transport qualified;
- Fire Engines functioning as ALS engines;
- Ability to administer injections and intravenous fluids and intubation;

- Equipped with airway equipment, cardiac life support, cardiac monitors
with EGC transmission to hospital.





I
Transition Plan — Approach Staffing

- Fayetteville Command Staff will be integrated into our
existing Fayette County Command Staff structure to enhance
operations and augment county abilities.

- Company Command Staff (Captains and Lieutenants™) will be
transitioned into leadership roles at better than existing salary
conditioned upon obtaining Paramedic certification.

- Line Staff will be transitioned at better than existing salary.

- Fayette County will provide the training and pay for the
Paramedic Course ($4,500) as part of the consolidation.

- Company Command Staff will have the option of a pay
reclassification to LT, FAO or FF/EMT.

" Paramedic certification is a mandatory requirement for Company Command positions at Fayette County.





Command Staff
Possible Reclassifications

Existing Voluntary Demotion

JOB DESCRIPTION Salary’ Captain LT FAO FF/EMT

Fire Captain $65,284.13 $65,485.04 | $59,326.21 | $59,326.21 | $56,467.54
Fire Captain $62,158.82 $62,329.60 | $56,467.54 | $59,326.21 | $56,467.54
Fire Captain $49,049.91 $60,809.37 | $49,909.08 | $49,909.08 | $49,909.08
Fire Lieutenant $42,683.55 $49,909.08 | $43,036.44 | $43,036.44
Fire Lieutenant $51,104.51 $51,156.81 | $51,156.81 | $51,156.81
Fire Lieutenant $56,429.10 $56,467.54 | $56,467.54 | $56,467.54
Fire Lieutenant $45,085.40 $49,909.08 | $45,215.16 | $45,215.16
Fire Lieutenant $57,904.94 $58,379.23 | $59,326.21 | $56,467.54
Fire Lt. (Temp) $43,696.38 $49,909.08 | $44,112.35 | $44,112.35

TIncluding the budgeted FY2014 Fayetteville 5% pay increase






Employee Transition Plan

Deputy Chief Captain — BFP & Community
Education

Captain - Shift Commander Captain - Operations

Lieutenant Lieutenant - Operations

Firefighter / Paramedic Firefighter / Paramedic

Firefighter 1,2,3,4/EMT Firefighter / EMT





Transition Plan — Fire Chief

- Technical Services Division Chief — Command Staff Position

- Placed on Pay Scale at Higher than budgeted salary’
- Technical Services Division Chief responsibilities:
- Accreditation
- Regulatory Compliance
- Strategic Planning
- ISO (Insurance Services Office) Coordination
- Policy, Procedures and Compliance

- Bureau Fire Prevention
- Fire Marshal

- Fire Inspections
- Fire Investigations
- Community Education
- Fayette County Community
- Fayette County School System

1 Including the budgeted FY2014 Fayetteville 5% pay increase





I
Transition Plan — Deputy Fire Chief

- Captain - Community Education
- Placed on Pay Scale at Higher than budgeted salary’

- Community Education responsibilities:
- GIS (Geographical Information Services) Spillman
« CAD (Computer Aided Dispatch) Coordinator
- Accreditation Support
- Regulatory Compliance
- Strategic Planning
- 1SO (Insurance Services Office) Coordination
- Policy, Procedures and Compliance
- Fire Marshal Support
- Fire Inspections
- Fire Safety Education

" Including the budgeted FY2014 Fayetteville 5% pay increase





Transition Plan - Captains

- Captain — Operations
- Placed on Pay Scale at Higher than budgeted salary’

- Develop Plan for Transition over 3 Year period.
- Paramedic Course (as Needed)
- Associates Degree (as Needed)

- Paramedic Course $4,500 Paid by Fayette County
- (Option to LT, FAO or FF/EMT Position)

- Placed on Pay Scale at level closest to Current Salary or Scale Top
Out.

- Fayette County awards Kelly Days and remainder paid in
overtime vs. Comp time accrual;

"Including the budgeted FY2014 Fayetteville 5% pay increase





Transition Plan - Lieutenants

- Lieutenant — Operations
- Placed on Pay Scale at Higher than budgeted salary’

- Develop Plan for Transition over 2 Year period.
- Paramedic Course (as Needed)

- Paramedic Course $4,500 Paid by Fayette County

- (Option to FAO or FF/EMT Position)

- Placed on FF/EMT Scale at Level Closest to Current Salary or
Scale Top Ouit.

- Fayette County awards Kelly Days and remainder paid in
overtime vs. Comp time accrual;

"Including the budgeted FY2014 Fayetteville 5% pay increase





I
Transition Plan — Fire Fighters |-V

- Fire Fighter/EMT — Operations
- Placed on Pay Scale at Higher than budgeted salary’

- Fayette County awards Kelly Days and remainder paid in
overtime vs. Comp time accrual;

" Including the budgeted FY2014 Fayetteville 5% pay increase





Transition Plan — Job Share

- Convert two Job-Share to full-time status

- Preferential status for a one year period for the following:
- Hiring for an eligible vacant position
- Backfilling of an extended leave position





Proposed Organizational Chart

Chief of Fire & Emergency Services
David Scarbrough

RS
FirelEMS Deputy Chief of Fire & Emergency A et
Administration Services Division Chief

[ Tom Bartlett
[ e | 4Eﬂ3.ﬁlﬂm9_

l -:m,lnm | ] Lieutanant Davis |

Field Operations

Administrative Services Fire Stations Technical Services
Division Chief Division Chief
Steven Folden i B‘EE!R = Alan Jones

BC Woods BC Hill BC MacFall
Capt. Mosris Capl. Peace Capl. Strickland
| 1 Capd. Peaciock Capnt. Harns Capt Mathews | I
1 istics/Su rt
Training Log sw-:.:w Bureau of Fire Pravention Community Education
| [ [ [
: Lieutenanis Lieitenants Ligulenants . : Captain
Capl Roberts Captain Pollard Fire Marshal Jimmy Hall Capt Partridge
| [ Paramadics FParamedics Parameadica T T
Inspectar § Inestigator Cathy Norwood
Stacy McEachem pe g :
Lt Babb Gla?ical Support FAC FAL FAL) Capt. Rieck Clerical Suppart
| [ FF'EMT FFEMT FFEMT |
Civilian Inspacion Investigator
b Cellehen Tiflary Canner Lt Korands






B
Current Equipment Allocation





B
Consolidation Response Times





Future Promotional Opportunities

- 6 - FAO Positions
- Fayetteville to have first testing Opportunity

- 1 - Lieutenant Position
- Open to all eligible staff

- Fire Station Opening (Veterans Pkwy) - Pinewood
- 3 - FAO Positions
- 3 - Lieutenant Positions





I
Consolidated Staffing Matrix

Engine/ Battalion Total Fayetteville
Quint Chief Current
2 6

Station 1 2 2

Station 2 2 2 0 4

Station 3 2 2 2 6

Station 5 2 2 1 5

Station 6 2 0 2

Station 7 2 0 2

Station 10 3 1 2 6

Station 11 2 2 1 2 7

Station 91 2 2 2 0 6 3+1-BC (4)
Station 92 3 0 3 &
Pinewood 3 1 4 0
New

Total 51*

*Combines 43 County and 8 City for daily staffing of 51. Assumes 20 line personnel, 2 open, & 2 job shares (from
the 9) converted to full time for a total of 24 from Fayetteville. 'Varies with job sharing assignments.





™
Consolidation Justification

- Retains all full-time fire staff and fire station
locations;

- Enhances existing delivery of fire services and
operations;

- Alleviates future annexation issues;

- Ability to create strategic long-range planning for
facilities and equipment;

- Better promotional opportunities;

- All fire engines become ALS rated under the
proposal — improving medical capability;
- Creates fire fleet maintenance capability;





Justification Consolidation

- Consolidated efforts will focus on the creation of
one "culture" and one set of operating procedures
which combines the "best practices” in use in
both organizations;

- Improves the coordination and efficiency of fire
and emergency medical services;

- Better Unity of Command, Span of Control and
Division of Labor;

- Property tax abatement impacts revenue growth
to fund future fire services;

- Expedites Veterans Parkway Fire Station by two
years (Pinewood).





T
Veteran's Fire Station (Pinewood)

- Fayette County would expedite bringing this Fire Station
on-line in FY2016 vs. FY2018 — 2 years earlier

- Improving response times to Fayetteville and adjacent
Unincorporated Fayette County

- Veteran Fire Station would become fully operational with a
fire company - Engine and 4 Firefighters

- The staffing and fire station will enhance ISO ratings and
aid in economic development efforts underway in this area

- Would provide additional support to target hazards in the
area such as the hospital , assisted living facilities, and
schools





Transition Plan — Change isn't easy

- Fire Chief, Deputy Fire Chief, Administrative Services
Division Chief and Technical Services Division Chief will
lead transition process and develop the steps, tasks and
processes to implement.

- Not all tasks will be complete — often tasks and process
changes lead to other tasks and processes — normal.

- Share information regularly— weekly or biweekly updates.
- Communication is critical to smooth transition — all levels.
- Facts need to be communicated to minimize rumors.

- Perception can be offset with sound planning and
effective communication.

- Goal is to be fully operational - July 1, 2014





Transition Plan — Timeline

- April 4t - Friday

- 3:.00pm Fayette County Retreat - Fire Consolidation Proposal review and
consideration

- Final Fire Consolidation Proposal posted online that evening

- April 9t - Wednesday

- 9:00am - Fire Consolidation proposal presented to Fayette County
Firefighters - Fayette County Chambers;

- 6:00pm - Joint Fayetteville and Fayette County Fire Consolidation
Presentation — Fayette County Chambers

- April 17th - 7:00pm - Fayetteville City Council Decision
- April 24t - 7:00pm - Fayette County Commissioner Decision
- April 25t — June 27t — Finalizing Consolidation FY2015 Budget





		Commissioners- Fire Consolidation Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Fire Consolidation Backup








Presentation /' Recognition #3

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): Chairman Steve Brown
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: |Presentation/Recognition

Wording for the Agenda:

Background/History/Details:

Proclamation of May 2014 as "Foster Care Month," and the week of May 12-18,2014 as "Foster Parent Appreciation Week."

Please refer to the attached proclamation for further information.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Ms. Susan Boggs, Director of Fayette County's Department of Family and Children Services, has asked for Fayette County to proclaim
May 2014 as "Foster Care Month," and the week of May 12-18, 2014 as "Foster Parent Appreciation Week."

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Proclamation of May 2014 as "Foster Care Month," and the week of May 12-18,2014 as "Foster Parent Appreciation Week."

Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

No

No

If so, when?

Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:

Reviewed by Legal

County Clerk's Approval Yes




fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation / Recognition #3





WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

THEREFORE:

A PROCLAMATION

National Foster Care Month

Families are the primary source of love, identity, self-esteem and
support for children and youth, and they are the foundation of our
communities; and

Today the State of Georgia is providing foster care for over 14,000
children, some of whom are placed in the homes of relatives; and

Foster families across the state who have opened their homes and
extended love and security to these children and have supported
their birth families in meeting the goals necessary to reunify
parents and their children; and

The State of Georgia has a need for more foster homes for children
so they may have a safe, secure and stable living environment.
Foster families give of themselves to provide a valuable societal
benefit and a loving home to children in need; and

Numerous private and public social service agencies work to
increase public awareness of the needs of foster children in
Georgia and the role that we must play in addressing this
community responsibility; and

We, Fayette County Commissioners, do hereby proclaim May
2014 as FOSTER CARE MONTH and May 12"-18", 2014 as
FOSTER PARENT APPRECIATION WEEK in Fayette County
and urge our citizens to volunteer their talents and energies on
behalf of children in foster care, foster parents and professional
foster care program staff.

In witness thereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the
Seal of the Executive Department to be affixed this day of May
in the year of our Lord two thousand nine.





		Commissioners- National Foste...Month Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- National Foster Care Month Backup








Presentation | Recognition #1

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): Chairman Steve Brown
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: |Presentation/Recognition

Wording for the Agenda:

Background/History/Details:

Proclamation of April 26, 2014 as "Fayette County Pet Appreciation Day," and recognition of the Fayette County Humane Society.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

The second annual Pet Appreciation Day includes a non-profit event with all proceeds going toward the benefit and care of dogs and cats
at the Fayette County Animal Shelter. The event will be held in Peachtree City on April 26, 2014. Children, adults, and pets are invited.
Participants are invited to dress their pets for the Pet Costume Contest.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Proclamation of April 26, 2014 as "Fayette County Pet Appreciation Day," and recognition of the Fayette County Humane Society.

Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

No

No

If so, when?

Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:

Reviewed by Legal

County Clerk's Approval Yes




fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation / Recognition #1





FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

FAYETTE COUNTY PET APPRECIATION DAY

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

A PROCLAMATION

The citizens of Fayette County enjoy their pets as a great source of companionship,
affection and fun, loving the way our animals give us unconditional love; and

Some of our companion animals help disabled people function and provide wonderful
therapy for shut-ins and small children, causing us to appreciate life more; and

We have outstanding pet rescue and adoption resources available through the non-
profit Fayette Humane and our wonderful staff at the Fayette County Animal Shelter;
and

Fayette County supports thoughtful pet ownership along with having cats and dogs
spayed and neutered, so we do not contribute to overpopulation and the needless
slaughter of animals.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS DOES HEREBY
PROCLAIM APRIL 26, 2014 AS:

FAYETTE COUNTY PET APPRECIATION DAY

and we extend our gratitude to the staff of the Animal Medical Clinics for creating this day of
awareness and their efforts to assist the Fayette County Animal Shelter. Be it also proclaimed that
the Board of Commissioners extends its full support for Fayette Humane and their efforts to arrange
pet adoptions and sponsor spay and neuter programs for low income residents. We urge and invite
all Fayette County citizens to visit our Fayette County Animal Shelter and to adopt a new family pet.

So Proclaimed this 24™ Day of April 2014

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA

Steve Brown, Chairman






		Commissioners- Pet Appreciati...ation Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Pet Appreciation Day Proclamation Backup








Presentation /' Recognition #2

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): Matt Bergen, Fayette County Water
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: |Presentation/Recognition

Wording for the Agenda:
Proclamation of April 2014 as "Safe Digging Month in Fayette County."

Background/History/Details:
Governor Nathan Deal has proclaimed April as "Safe Digging Month" in Georgia.

Safe Digging Month is designed to bring awareness to the damage, loss of service, environmental damage, and threat to public safety
caused by those who have not located underground lines prior to digging.

Damage prevention is a shared responsibility. By using safe digging practices, contractors and homeowners in Fayette County can save
time and money while keeping everyone's infrastructure safe and connected.

In an effort to facilitate safe digging practices, the Federal Communications Commissioner 811; a number that provides contractors and
homeowners with a simple number to contract utility operators to request the location of underground lines at the intended dig site.

An online resource site has been developed and can be accessed at: www.georgia811.com/digsafelymonth.aspx.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Proclamation of April 2014 as "Safe Digging Month in Fayette County."

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation / Recognition #2





WHEREAS,

Thousands of times each year, the underground infrastructure in Georgia is damaged by those who do not have
underground lines located prior to digging, resulting in service interruption, environmental damage and threat to
public safety, and;

WHEREAS,

In 2005, the Federal Communications Commission designated 811 to provide contractors and homeowners a simple
number to contact utility operators to request the location of underground lines at the intended dig site, and:

WHEREAS,

The Fayette County Utility Coordinating Committee, a stakeholder-driven organization dedicated to the prevention
of damage to underground utilities in Georgia, promotes the National 811 Notification System in an effort to reduce
these damages, and;

WHEREAS,

Damage prevention is a shared responsibility; by using safe digging practices, the contractors and homeowners of
Fayette County can save time, money and help keep our infrastructure safe and connected, and;

THEREFORE,

I do hereby proclaim, on behalf of Fayetie County, the month of Aprif 2014 as;

Fayette County Safe Digging Month

And encourage contractors and homeowners throughout Fayette County to always call 811 before digging. Safe digging
is no accident!!

Date






		Commissioners- Safe Digging Backup Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Safe Digging Backup








New Business #9

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Commissioners Presenter(s): Chairman Steve Brown / David Barlow
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:
Consideration of the Selection Committee's nomination of James L. Preau to the Fayette County Water Committee.

Background/History/Details:

The Fayette County Water Committee is comprised of six voting members and two non-voting members who serve at the pleasure of the
Board of Commissioners. Meetings are scheduled to be held on the second and fourth Wednesdays of each month at 8:00 a.m.
Generally, the meetings take place at the Fayette County Water System's Conference Room located at 245 McDonough Road,
Fayetteville, Georgia.

The open position on the Water Committee was advertised twice. No applicants applied with the first advertisement. The second
advertisement resulted in the County receiving two applicants. The Selection Committee, comprised of Chairman Steve Brown and
Commissioner David Barlow, interviewed both applicants.

The Selection Committee has recommended Mr. Preau to the at-large position on the Fayette County Water Committee. There are no
definitive term limits associated with those appointed to the Water Committee. Therefore, each nominee serves at the pleasure of the
Board.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Approval of the Selection Committee's nomination of James L. Preau to the Fayette County Water Committee.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #9

























		Commissioners- Water Committee Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Water Committee Agenda Request with Backup

		Commissioners- Water Committee Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Water Committee Backup










Presentation | Recognition #4

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Board of Commissioners Presenter(s): Chairman Steve Brown
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: |Presentation/Recognition

Wording for the Agenda:

Recognition of the Sandy Creek SkillsUSA Chapter.

Background/History/Details:

Davis, Cesar Spaniol and Tara McAfee.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

The Sandy Creek SkillsUSA chapter is the second largest SkillsUSA chapter in Georgia. As reported by the Fayette County News, the
chapter set a new record for itself with 28 students who qualified to compete in 22 different events at the state level, and it set a new
chapter record with students bringing home gold, silver and bronze medals from ten competitions.

Four of the medal winning students will advance to the 2014 SkillsUSA National Leadership and Skills Conference in Kansas City,
Missouri in June 2014. The students are: Ty Simpson, Madison Riley, Kasey Melkonian and Taylor Mobley.

The Board will also recognize medal winners: Carlisle Vidourek, Anthony Sarkis, Saridh Galvan, Helen Smith, Katherine Gilmer, Keri

Recognition of the Sandy Creek SkillsUSA Chapter.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

No

No

If so, when?

Backup Provided with Request? No

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:

Reviewed by Legal

County Clerk's Approval Yes




fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation / Recognition #4










New Business #12

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Environmental Health Presenter(s): County Manager Robert Kurbes
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: [New Business

Wording for the Agenda:
Consideration of a request from the Environmental Health Department to adopt proposed Environmental Health Fee Schedule revisions.

Background/History/Details:

Per a directive at the January 2013 Board of Health Meeting, the Environmental Health Department completed a review and comparison
of its current Environmental Health Fee Schedule for services and programs it provides. A review and comparison of the fees was
undertaken to review the current fee schedule and consider adjustments for specific fees. Many other counties were researched in effort,
including Newton, Rockdale, Clayton, Cherokee and Douglas Counties. The proposed fees have been submitted based on the research.

The Fee Schedule has been reviewed several times since the original schedule was developed in the early 1980s. Recently, in late
2013, the Fee Schedule was updated to address the department's newest program- The Body Art Program. Prior to the addition of new
fees for The Body Art Program, the Fee Schedule was last reviewed and modified in March 2007; mostly to address concerns with the
sewage system permits for both new construction and repairs to existing septic systems.

The Department has added a proposed Body Art Program Late Fee to provide consistency with other annual fee programs such as Food
Service, Tourist Accommodations and Swimming Pool programs. The Environmental Health Department's current septic system permit
fees have not been submitted for adjustment since they were last reviewed and modified in 2007.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Approval of a request from the Environmental Health Department to adopt proposed Environmental Health Fee Schedule revisions.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:
The Board discussed proposed fee schedule changes for several departments at the April 4, 2014 Board of Commissioners Retreat.
Environmental Health's proposed changes to the fee schedule was a part of that discussion. The Health Board has reviewed the
proposed fees and recommends Board of Commissioners approval.




fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #12





Favette County Environmental Health Department
140 Stonewall Avenue W e Suite 200 e Fayetteville, Georgia 30214
Phone (770) 305-5415 e Fax (770) 305-5183

March 8, 2014

Memorandum
To: Fayette County Board of Health
From: Robert F. Kurbes

Environmental Health County Manger
RE: Environmental Health Fee Schedule

As per the January Board of Health Meeting, I have completed a review and
comparison of our current Environmental Health Fee Schedule for services and
programs provided by our department.

The fee schedule has been reviewed several times since the schedule was developed in
the early 1980’s. Most recently, the fee schedule was updated in late 2012 to address
the newest program of our department, The Body Art Program. Prior to this addition
of new fees for the new program, the fee schedule was last reviewed and modified in
March of 2007, mostly to address concerns with the sewage system permits for both
new construction and repairs to existing septic systems. As they were just recently
created with the new program, no existing Body Art fees were considered. I have
added a proposed Body Art Program Late Fee to provide consistency with our other
annual fee programs such as Food Service, Tourist Accommodations and Swimming
Pool programs. I also did not consider any adjustments to the current septic system
permit fees as they were reviewed in 2007.

This review and comparison was undertaken to review the current fee schedule and
consider adjustments for specific fees. I utilized mostly counties within District 4, but
did review some similar sized counties in the metro area including Newton/Rockdale
Counties. I also looked at larger metro counties including Clayton, Cherokee, and
Douglas Counties.

The following table shows our department’s current fee’s for adjustment
consideration, the ranges of other county fees and a suggestion of the adjusted fee.





Program Current Fee

Body Art
Artist Late Fee $0.00

On-Site Sewage
Subdivision Review $50/1ot

Food Service
Plan Review/Permit application:

0-50 Seats $300.00
51-100 Seats $500.00
>100 Seats NA
Annual Inspection Fee:

0-50 Seats $200.00
51-100 Seats $300.00
>100 Seats $400.00
Annual Inspection Late Fee:

0-50 Seats $100.00
51-100 Seats $300.00
>101 Seats $500.00
Reinspection Fee:

0-50 Seats $75.00
51-100 Seats $75.00
>100 Seats $75.00
Temporary Permit $50.00

Tourist Accommodations

Plan Review/Permit
Application $300.00

Annual Inspection Fee  $150.00

Annual Inspection
Late Fee $150.00

Comparison Range

NA

$50-$104/lot + Base Fee
Base Fee range 250-350.

$300 - $500
$600-$650
$700-$800

$300-$350
$500- $600
$650-$700

$200 — 2 x fee
$400 — 2 x fee
$500 — 2 x fee

$100 -$300
$100 -$300
$100-$300

$75-$350

$400-$450

$200-$400

$200-$350.00

Suggested Fee

$25.00

$50.00/1ot + $300.00

$500.00
$600.00
$800.00

$300.00
$450.00
$600.00

$300.00
$450.00
$600.00

$125.00
$125.00
$125.00

$125.00

$500.00

$250.00

$250.00





Public Swimming Pools

Plan Review/Permit
Application $300.00 $300-$900 $500.00

Annual Inspection Fee ~ $100.00 $200 - $300 $150.00

Annual Inspection
Late Fee $50.00 $50-$200 $150.00

I hope this contains the information you were requesting. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me at 770-305-5147 or rfkurbes @dhr.state.ga.us.















		Environmental Health- Fee Schedule Agenda Request File

		Environmental Health- Fee Schedule Backup

		Environmental Health- Fee Schedule Backup

		SKMBT_C25214041611490










Consent Agenda #5

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Fayette County Juvenile Court Presenter(s): Katie Cunningham, Clerk
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: |Consent

Wording for the Agenda:

Approval of a request from the Fayette County Juvenile Court for authorization to file continuation and enhancement grant applications,
on behalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, with the Governor's Office for Children and Families, and authorization for the
Chairman to execute said documents.

Background/History/Details:

On July 22, 2013, Fayette County was awarded a grant from the Governors Office for Children and Families in the amount of $59,800.00.
This grant allowed the Fayette County Juvenile Court, in collaboration with the Department of Justice and Grace Harbour Counseling
Center to implement Thinking for a Change; an evidence based program for youth. This program has been effective in reducing the
felony commitments and STP sentences in Fayette County.

Fayette County Juvenile Court desires to apply for the continuation of funding in order to maintain the Thinking for a Change program for
another year. In addition, the court is requesting authority to submit an Enhancement Proposal for funds to develop a second evidence
based program for youth.

These programs will help divert juveniles from either entering the juvenile justice system or from further involvement in the system. By
focusing on diversion / early intervention measures, these programs will help promote a positive relationship between youth, their families
and their communities.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of a request from the Fayette County Juvenile Court for authorization to file continuation and enhancement grant applications,
on behalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, with the Governor's Office for Children and Families, and authorization for the
Chairman to execute said documents.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
Not Applicable.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:
On June 13, 2013, the Fayette County Juvenile Court requested authorization to file a grant application with the Governor's Office for
Children and Families, and the Board unanimously approved the request. These requests represent a continuing effort between the
Fayette County Board of Commissioners and the Fayette County Juvenile Court to provide for the betterment and a second chance for
Fayette's juveniles.




fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #5





At the direction of the Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding Committee, the Criminal Justice
Coordinating Council (Council) is pleased to announce that it is seeking applications for
competitive funding for qualified counties in the State of Georgia.

2014 Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Program
Request for Proposals (RFP)

Eligibility

Applicants are limited to local county commissions/boards of commissioners to apply on behalf
of juvenile courts within Georgia. High priority will be given to the counties who commit the
highest numbers of juveniles to the Department of Juvenile Justice (see Appendix A). The
availability of funds is dependent on appropriations from the U.S. Department of Justice and the
Georgia State Legislature. The Office reserves the right to reduce the amount of funds available
based on government budgetary actions. The U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile

Justice and Delinquency Prevention, (CFDA 16.523 & 16.540) administers a portion of these
funds at the national level.

Award Period
July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2015

Award Amount
Up to $500,000

Deadline
All applications are due at 5:00 p.m. on April 28, 2014

Contact Information
For assistance with the requirements of this solicitation, contact:

Matthew Pitts, Grants Specialist, at 404-656-5160 or Matthew.Pitts@children.ga.gov

Release Date: March 28, 2014





2014 Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Program
Request for Proposals (RFP)

Deadline: Applications are due at 5:00 p.m. on April 28, 2014

Criminal Justice Coordinating Council

The Criminal Justice Coordinating Council (CJCC) is designated by the Governor of Georgia as
the State Administering Agency for criminal justice and victims’ assistance programs. Created
by the General Assembly (O.C.G.A. § 35-6A-2), the Council is comprised of twenty-four
members representing various components of the criminal justice system. CJCC is charged with
fiscal oversight of the Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Program.

Governor’s Office for Children & Families

The Governor’s Office for Children & Families (GOCF) is designated by the Governor of
Georgia as the Designated State Agency for administering federal juvenile justice programs.
Created by the General Assembly (O.C.G.A. § 49-5-130), the Office is charged with supporting
and empowering communities to serve Georgia’s children and families. Beginning July 1, 2014,
these federal juvenile justice programs will be administered by the Criminal Justice Coordinating
Council.

Overview

In 2011, the Special Council on Criminal Justice Reform was formed to study Georgia’s criminal
justice system and was charged by Governor Nathan Deal with recommending policy changes.
On December 18, 2012, the Council released their final report to the Governor:
http://gov.georgia.gov/press-releases/2012-12-18/criminal-justice-reform-report-released

“We know there’s room for dramatic improvement in the results we see in the juvenile justice
system.” — Governor Nathan Deal

In keeping with Governor Deal’s goal of increasing public safety through a more effective
juvenile system, CJCC and the Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding Committee offers this request
for proposals seeking local juvenile justice projects that aim to reduce the number of youth
served out of home. This goal can be realized by using available grant funds to develop
programs that address the needs of youth who are typically committed to the Department of
Juvenile Justice.

For 2014, applicants are required to include evidence-based program models that have
demonstrated a reduction in juvenile recidivism.

Applicants are encouraged to review the Office of Justice Program’s Crime Solutions website to
ensure that their juvenile intervention proposal has a methodical and measurable approach to
reducing juvenile recidivism. This can be accessed at http://www.crimesolutions.gov. Specific
required evidence-based interventions are listed on pages 13 and 14 of this application.




http://www.crimesolutions.gov/



Eligibility

Applicants are limited to local county commissions/boards of commissioners to apply on behalf
of juvenile courts within Georgia

High Priority will be given to applications that specifically formulate strategies to reduce
the applicant county’s annual felony commitment rate to the Department of Juvenile
Justice and reduce the applicant county’s annual number of Short Term Program
admissions.

An eligible applicant must meet all of the following criteria:
e Be a public government entity;
e Serve as the fiscal agent for the grant and the point of contact to CJCC,;
o Be responsible, liable, and oversee financial, program and post-award reporting
requirements.

Applications to support juvenile court projects must be made by county commissions/boards of
commissioners on behalf of the juvenile court. Moreover, all local units of government are
required to be in compliance with the Georgia Service Delivery Strategy Act in order to be
eligible for state-administered financial assistance.

For more information on Service Delivery Strategy visit the link below:
http://www.dca.ga.gov/development/PlanningQualityGrowth/Pages/Regional/SDS.asp

Grant Award Agreement

Grant Award Amount: Applicants are applying for one year of funding through this RFP. New
Applicants are eligible to apply for a maximum of $500,000 for this grant year. Continuation
applicants are asked to apply for an amount not to exceed their first year award. Applicants
seeking to expand or enhance existing programs must submit a separate application in addition
to their response to this solicitation. Please refer to the Enhancement solicitation on CJCC'’s
website.

Grant Award Period: The grant award period is from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. All
new or enhanced services must be fully implemented within sixty (60) days of the grant award
agreement beginning date. All continuation services must be fully implemented within thirty (30)
days of the grant award agreement beginning date.

Continuation Funding: A continuation proposal is required annually. An initial grant does not
guarantee continued funding. The annual submission allows grantees to improve or modify
objectives or activities, as well as assess the performance of the previous year. Continuation
grants are awarded to applicants that demonstrate the following:

1. Professional management of grant funds and compliance with administrative
requirements;

2. Accurate and prompt submission of required program and financial data and reports;

3. Positive performance history with achievement of program goals and objectives; and

4. Cohesive continuation plan for their program.



http://www.dca.ga.gov/development/PlanningQualityGrowth/Pages/Regional/SDS.asp



Please note that continuation funding is contingent on several factors including achievement of
goals, organizational capacity, performance history, contractual compliance, and availability of
funds.

Modification of Funds

The Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding Committee reserves the right to make changes to the
application budget at the time of the grant award and will communicate any changes to the
applicant. CJCC may negotiate all or part of any proposed budget after execution of the grant
award agreement due to funding or program requirements provisions. If, during the term of the
grant award period, the funds appropriated are reduced or eliminated by the Georgia State
Legislature, the Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding Committee may immediately reduce or
terminate the grant award by written notice to the grantee.

Reporting Requirements

CJCC requires that grantees comply with and fully participate in the financial, program, and
evaluation reporting for this grant program.

Finance

This is a reimbursement grant. CJCC may award first-time recipients an initial payment for the
first three months of the grant. However, subsequent to the first three months, the grant will
continue on a reimbursement only basis. Grantees receiving continuation funds, will not receive
an advance.

If awarded funds, your county will be required to submit check stubs and copies of invoices to
CJCC for reimbursement on a monthly or quarterly basis.

Subgrant Expenditure Report (SER): Grantees must submit SER Reports on a monthly or
guarterly basis. Grantees are required to maintain supporting documentation on file such as
timesheets, equipment purchases, travel logs, supply purchases, inventory records, and
consultant contracts. This documentation may be requested at any time.

Grantees must attend any scheduled grant management workshop (if required) prior to the
release of grant funds.

Program

Grantees must submit programmatic reports on a monthly and/or quarterly basis as requested.
Failure to submit programmatic reports in a timely fashion could result in an end to grant
funding.

Planning Period (New Applicants Only): In order to allow for the successful integration of
evidence-based services into court operations, CJCC will provide a 2-month planning period as
an option for new local projects. This will allow time for staff to be hired, trained, and contracts
with service providers to be established. The planning period is optional and all new projects
must be operational no later than September 1, 2014.





Final Report: A Final Report is due at the end of the grant award period. This report must be
received and approved prior to the release of the final payment. The final report is due no later
than July 30, 2015.

Evaluation: CJCC will conduct a study of grantee programs to determine effectiveness.
Grantees will have the following roles and responsibilities related to evaluation:

1. Collect, enter, and maintain participant-level implementation and outcome data monthly.
2. Data collection training and use of the Grants Management System (GMS) is required.
3. Submit youth enrollment, activity attendance, and necessary reports to evaluator.

4. Must participate if chosen as a focus site for evaluation.

Program Design

Purpose

In order to demonstrate potential cost-savings to taxpayers by incentivizing evidence-based
options, the overarching goal of this offering is the reduction of felony commitments to the
Department of Juvenile Justice and Short-Term Program sentences.

The purpose of this grant opportunity is to provide funding for local programs designed to serve
youth in the community who would otherwise be committed to Georgia’s Department of Juvenile
Justice (DJJ). Applicants are encouraged to examine their local data from the previous fiscal
year in order to understand the profiles of youth who were committed to DJJ before, and who,
with appropriate community-based services, could be served at home.

Considerable evidence has been found to show that assessing each youth’s risk of re-arrest can
help with classifying youth for both appropriate levels/types of programming, as well as, the
necessary intensiveness of services. Therefore, applicant counties will have the benefit of
utilizing a standardized risk assessments to aid in decision-making. The instruments include, at
a minimum, the Department of Juvenile Justice’s Pre-Disposition Risk Assessment (PDRA),
Detention Assessment Instrument (DAI), and/or Criminogenic Needs Assessment (CNA).

Bolstering a continuum of community support services and supervision has been shown to
reduce recidivism, while promoting a positive relationship between youth, their families, and the
community. Support services may include family and community reintegration and prevention
services, basic life skills, job skills & employment training, job placement, educational support,
as well as providing mentoring and apprenticeship opportunities.

Communities applying for these funds will be expected to bring together system stakeholders,
community leaders and residents to identify and access existing local resources for the
development of a multifaceted response to prevent further penetration in the system. This
community-focused planning approach will allow for the maximum usage of available
community resources and ensure broad community support.

CJCC and the Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding Committee ask that applicants fully describe
how their project will reduce risk factors of participants through the use of an evidence model
that addresses family engagement, reduces negative peer association, increases pro-social
activities, and is tailored to the individual cognitive and maturational levels of their participants.





Program Requirements

Religion Grantee programs may not promote, discuss, or teach religion. Program activities and
services are required to be accessible to any interested participant, regardless of religious
affiliation.

Federal Criminal Background Checks All Grantees must conduct federal criminal background
checks on all personnel who will have direct contact with youth served by the grant project.
These background checks must take place prior to the provision of services by program
personnel and the grantee must maintain a copy of these records for CJCC auditing purposes.

Internet Security Policy CJCC requires all grantees to establish and enforce an Internet
Security Policy when minor participants and/or staff have access (supervised or unsupervised)
to the Internet. This includes any technology provided by CJCC funding and technology utilized
by participants during a CJCC funded program component.

Other Applicants must comply with all forms, assurances, and certifications attached to this
RFP. Projects may not provide incentives (e.g., trophies/plaques, rewards for individual
accomplishments, gift certificates, gas cards, etc.). Items such as motivational tools, training
aids, and educational materials may be purchased. These items must be provided to all
participants. Projects are allowed to provide food/snacks to all participants as part of a
“substantial work” activity.

Program Period

The initial grant award period is July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2015

Target Population

Youth who have been referred to juvenile court for a felony charge, including youth adjudicated
for a designated felony offense, that would result in possible commitment to Department of
Juvenile Justice or youth who would have previously been admitted to the Short-Term Program.
All youth receiving services from this grant award MUST score a medium to high on the Pre-
Disposition Risk Assessment (PDRA).

Goals and Objectives

Each applicant must utilize the following goals and objectives for its project. Applicants may
add additional goals or objectives specific to their program.

Goals

1. Reduce felony commitments to Department of Juvenile Justice and Short Term Program
(STP) admissions in the target county.

2. Increase the use of evidence-based practices in Georgia's juvenile justice system by
initiating community-based juvenile justice programs.

3. Reduce the recidivism rate of youth involved with Georgia's juvenile justice system.

4. Reduce annual secure detention rate of target county.

5. Reduce annual secure confinement rate of target county.





6. Demonstrate a cost-savings to citizens of Georgia through provision of research-informed
services to youth in juvenile justice system.

Performance Objectives
All Projects

1. Project will demonstrate a 20% reduction from fiscal year 2012 in the rate of annual
felony commitments to DJJ and Short Term Program (STP) admissions. Counties can
find 2012 numbers in order to calculate target at:
http://juveniledata.georgia.gov/RgpReports.aspx?report=2012DataTargets *

2. Project will demonstrate reduction in annual Secure Confinement rate.
3. Project will demonstrate reduction in annual Secure Detention rate.
4. At least 75% of project participants will complete program requirements.

5. At least 55% of youth completing services will not re-offend as calculated using
recidivism definition.
As defined by: A new charge (within 3 years of the initial post-adjudication community
placement) which results in a juvenile court delinquency adjudication OR adult criminal
court conviction.

6. Project will report cost-savings per youth by calculating average cost to provide targeted
intervention subtracted from average cost to detain youth.
(Selected projects will be provided a marginal cost rate in order to perform this calculation).

Note: Performance targets will be used as a means to determine future award allocations
and/or continuations.

PROPOSAL SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS

The application must be submitted electronically using the link on the Council’s website at
http://cjcc.georgia.gov/. The application should be submitted via an adobe form. Application
should include: application narrative, application budget request in Excel format, and application
attachments with all signature pages. All of the aforementioned proposal documents are also
required to be submitted electronically by scanning and uploading the documents to the online
application. The application must follow the outline as described on page 20 of this RFP,
beginning with the application face sheet (Attachment A-1). The proposal package must be
completed and submitted in accordance with RFP guidelines for submission.

! *For court circuits or partnering applicants with services that span two or more counties,
please report these rates for all counties in your proposed geographic catchment area. Targets
will be measured as the aggregate for all counties in the proposal.



http://juveniledata.georgia.gov/RgpReports.aspx?report=2012DataTargets

http://cjcc.georgia.gov/



Submission Date

Applications must be submitted by 5:00pm on April 28, 2014. Only complete applications
received by the deadline will be reviewed. Applications submitted after that date will be
classified as late and may not be considered. When an application is received by the
Council, there is no commitment on the part of CJCC or the Juvenile Justice Incentive
Funding Committee to fund an application or to fund it at the amount requested. All areas
of the budget are subject to review and approval. Decisions related to these budget areas are
based on both eligibility and reasonableness. The Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding
Committee has full discretion to determine the reasonableness of budget items based on both
objective and subjective decision-making tools. See "Restrictions on Use of Funds" subsection
below to determine whether budget items requested are allowable prior to submitting your
budget. Applications for funding will undergo several reviews. At any point during these reviews,
a decision not to fund a project or any part thereof may be made. These decisions are within the
complete discretion of CJCC and the Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding Committee.

Disqualification Factors

Any application electronically time-stamped after 5:00pm on the April 28, 2014 deadline will be
regarded as late, excluding extenuating circumstances, and may not be considered for funding.
It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure the proposal is received by the specified
deadline.

Additionally, CJCC may not consider funding any applicant that fails to comply with all
application requirements. Disqualification factors may include any of the following:
¢ Failure to include application narrative, application budget, and application attachments;
e Failure to provide appropriate number of copies and format requested;
e Applicant is not a public government entity;
¢ Submission fails to include an original signature of the applicant’s executive officer on
the application face sheet; or
e Application lacks original signatures where appropriate.

Questions

CJCC asks that applicants direct all questions to Matthew Pitts, Grants Specialist. Applicants
may reach Mr. Pitts by email Matthew.Pitts@children.ga.gov, or by phone at (404) 656-5160.
Although questions will be permitted until the date of the RFP submission, they will be answered
subject to staff availability. As such, applicants are strongly encouraged to pose all questions
as early as possible in the RFP process.





Performance Deliverables (New Projects)

REPORTING DUE ON OR
PERIOD PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS BEFORE THE
FOLLOWING
DATES
Initial 7/1/2014-9/1/2014:
Allotment e Fully executed grant award agreement and attachments 9/3/2014
7/1/2014-10/1/2014:
FIRST e Quarterly Progress Report-including performance 10/3/2014
PERIOD objectives
¢ Attendance at CJCC Grant Management Workshop
10/1/2014-1/1/2015 Reporting Period:
SECOND ¢ Quarterly Progress Report-including performance 1/3/2015
PERIOD objectives
1/1/2015-4/1/2015 Reporting Period:
THIRD e Quarterly Progress Report-including performance
PERIOD objectives 4/3/2015
* 5% reduction in felony commitments to DJJ and
admissions to Short Term Program achieved
4/1/2015-6/30/2015 Reporting Period:
FINAL
PERIOD e Quarterly Progress Report- including performance 7/3/2015

objectives
* 20% reduction in felony commitments to DJJ and
admissions to Short Term Program achieved.

*For any deliverable not met and reported by the due date, a penalty may be imposed at the discretion of
the Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding Committee.

*Please be aware that Graduated Sanction Violations under DJJ’s Probation Management Program

(PMP) are included in overall STP/Felony Commit numbers. If said Violation resulted in an admission to
RYDC it was included in the baseline target number in 2012 data and will be counted in this grant year’s
target number. Juvenile Courts & Department of Juvenile Justice staff are strongly encouraged to share
this information with one another in order to measure potential impact.






Performance Deliverables (Continuation Projects)

REPORTING DUE ON OR
PERIOD PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS BEFORE THE
FOLLOWING
DATES
Initial 7/1/2014-8/1/2014: 8/3/2014
Allotment ¢ Fully executed grant award agreement and attachments
7/1/2014-10/1/2014:
FIRST o Quarterly Progress Report-including performance
PERIOD objectives 10/3/2014
e Attendance at CJCC Grant Management Workshop
10/1/2014-1/1/2015 Reporting Period:
SECOND ¢ Quarterly Progress Report-including performance 1/3/2015
PERIOD objectives
1/1/2015-4/1/2015 Reporting Period:
THIRD e Quarterly Progress Report-including performance
PERIOD objectives 4/3/2015
* 5% reduction in felony commitments to DJJ and
admissions to Short Term Program achieved
4/1/2015-6/30/2015
FINAL e Quarterly Progress Report- including performance
PERIOD objectives 7/3/2015

* 20% reduction in felony commitments to DJJ and
admissions to Short Term Program achieved.

*For any deliverable not met and reported by the due date, a penalty may be imposed at the discretion of
the Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding Committee.

*Please be aware that Graduated Sanction Violations under DJJ’s Probation Management Program

(PMP) are included in overall STP/Felony Commit numbers. If said Violation resulted in an admission to
RYDC it was included in the baseline target number in 2012 data and will be counted in this grant year’s
target number. Juvenile Courts & Department of Juvenile Justice staff are strongly encouraged to share
this information with one another in order to measure potential impact.

10






PROPOSAL NARRATIVE

The following information provides a description of necessary components to be contained in
the narrative portion of your proposal. Limit the narrative to eleven (11) pages and use the
outline format described in this section. The narrative is a detailed statement of the work to be
undertaken and answers who, what, when, where, why, and how statements about the grant
proposal. CJCC requires that applicants restate and number each Narrative Section
followed by the response.

1. Statement of Need/Summary (Y2 page)

Provide a clear and concise statement of need, including the following:
a. Statement of the community problem

For the purpose of this RFP applicants are instructed, at a minimum, to use each of the
following metrics as justification of need for programming for fiscal year 2012:

At-Risk Population
New Instances of Secure Detention (RYDC)
Cases Resulting in Commitment to DJJ

New Instances of Confinement in Secure Juvenile Correctional Facilities
(YDC)

This information for each county can be found at:
http://juveniledata.georgia.gov/DataReports.aspx?report=RRIDataEntryReport

b. A description of how the problem relates to the mission of the implementing agency.

c. Overview of the Target Population to be served.

d. Description of the chosen evidence-based intervention for proposal and why it was
selected.

e. Brief description of the activities requesting CJCC funds.

2. Administration (Y2 page)

a. Name the implementing agency. Provide a brief description of the implementing agency.
Name the applicant and fiscal agents, if these agencies are different from the
implementing agency. The fiscal agent must be a county commission/board of
commissioners.

b. List the agency’s qualifications and experience with managing grants.

c. List the Community Partners and their description and contribution, if any, to the
proposed program.

d. After the initial allotment, this grant will transition to a reimbursement-only grant. Does
the fiscal agent have the ability to maintain a positive cash-flow once reimbursements
are provided on a quarterly basis?

11



http://juveniledata.georgia.gov/DataReports.aspx?report=RRIDataEntryReport



3. Target Population (¥ page)

Provide a detailed description of the clearly defined target population to be served in the grant
period, including the following:

a.

@mpooso

Target group/age range: a) middle school; b) high school; or ¢) both middle and high
schools;

How and Why Target Population was selected?

Number of projected youth to be served;

Gender: a) male only; b) female only; or ¢) male and female;

County or counties to be served,;

Other demographics, including at-risk population(s); and

List assessment instruments to be used for selected target population and how they will
be used to screen youth.

(More fully described in Section 4.d. regarding Intake).

4. Methods and Procedures (6 pages)

Service Delivery
a. Describe the overall format and design of the program, addressing the following:

e Program type (i.e., Youth Reporting Center, community-based, school-based,
or other);

e Program time (i.e., during school hours, after school, weekends, summer,
and/or year-round);

e Program frequency (i.e., the number of times the program is implemented or,
in other words, the number of program cycles);

e Program duration (i.e., the length of the program in days, weeks, and/or
months);

e Program hours (i.e., the minimum number of program hours per youth).

b. Complete the Program Timeline (Attachment A-2). Provide a detailed timeline from July

1, 2014 —June 30, 2015 of planned grant activities including, but not limited to, program
start and end dates for each site, special events, and planning, and planning period
activities.

List the specific site(s) where programming will occur (i.e., the site name and the street
address). Please describe how the proposed program site is a safe and conveniently
accessible location for youth and parents to receive services. Attach any
Memorandum(s) of Understanding for sites not under the jurisdiction of the applying or
implementing agency (Attachment A-3).

Fully describe the intake process. List the criteria to determine which individuals will be
offered program services. Applicants must provide a detailed description of how the DJJ
Detention Assessment Instrument (DAI), Pre-Disposition Risk Assessment (PDRA), and
Criminogenic Needs Assessment (CNA) will be utilized to ensure consistency and
uniformity in decision-making.

Applicants must provide a detailed description of how the Pre-Disposition Risk Assessment
(PDRA) will be utilized to ensure consistency and uniformity in decision-making. More
information can be found at the following:

12





http://www.djj.state.ga.us/Policies/DJJPolicies/Chapter20/DJJ20.11DetentionDecision.pdf

e. Describe how parental consent is obtained for youth to participate in the program.
Explain if additional information (e.g., intake form, participant application, and/or needs
assessment) is obtained for a youth to be enrolled in the program.

f. Describe the services and supports provided to all individuals in the target population
using CJCC grant funds and which agencies will provide these services.

Continuation applications should continue to report on the evidence-based interventions
implemented in Year One. If applicant plans to make a change to a different intervention in
Year Two, please detail this change and why it is being made. Applicants switching
interventions MUST select an intervention from the table below. If the applicant chooses
to switch interventions, the applicant MUST submit a budget no greater than their first year
grant award amount. Continuation applicants wishing to expand or enhance evidence
based services which results in a need for additional funding will be allowed to apply for
additional funding through a separate Enhancement Request process. Applicants who are
starting a new EB service will be allowed a 2 month implementation period for that service,
if needed. Continuation applications are allowed to continue current interventions in Year
Two if they so choose.

e State the proposed primary curriculum or evidence-based interventions that will be

employed during this grant period. Describe how this will be implemented.

New applicants must select an evidence-based intervention that has been shown to be
effective, from the list below:

Evidence Based Interventions:

Seven Challenges ( 7C) The seven challenges program is designed specifically for
adolescents with drug problems, to motivate a decisions and
commitment to change- and to support success in implementing
desired change. The program simultaneously helps young people
address their drug problems as well as their co-occurring life skill
deficits, situational problems, and psychological problems.

The challenges provide a framework for helping youth think through
their own decisions about their lives and their use of alcohol and
other drugs. Counselors using The Seven Challenges Program
teach youth to identify and work on the issues most relevant to
them. In sessions, as youth discuss the issues that matter most,
counselors seamlessly integrate the Challenges as part of the
conversation.

Aggression Replacement Aggression Replacement Training® concentrates on development
Training (ART) of individual competencies to address various emotional and social
aspects that contribute to aggressive behavior in youths. Program
techniques are designed to teach youths how to control their angry
impulses and take perspectives other than their own. The main goal
is to reduce aggression and violence among youths by providing
them with opportunities to learn pro-social skills in place of
aggressive behavior.

13



http://www.djj.state.ga.us/Policies/DJJPolicies/Chapter20/DJJ20.11DetentionDecision.pdf



Brief Strategic Family
Therapy (BSFT)

Brief Strategic Family Therapy (BSFT) is a family-based
intervention designed to prevent and treat child and adolescent
behavior problems. The goal of BSFT is to improve a youth’s
behavior by improving family interactions that are presumed to be
directly related to the child’s symptoms, thus reducing risk factors
and strengthening protective factors for adolescent drug abuse and
other conduct problems. BSFT targets children and adolescents
who are displaying—or are at risk for developing—behavior
problems, including substance abuse.

Functional Family Therapy
(FFT)

Functional Family Therapy is a short-term (approximately 30
hours), family-based therapeutic intervention for delinquent youth at
risk for institutionalization and their families. FFT is designed to
improve within-family attributions, family communication and
supportiveness while decreasing intense negativity and
dysfunctional patterns of behavior. Parenting skills, youth
compliance, and the complete range of behavior change (cognitive,
emotional, and behavioral) domains are individualized and targeted
for change based on the specific risk and protective factor profile of
each family.

Multi-Systemic
Therapy (MST)

Multi-systemic Therapy® is an intensive family- and community-
based treatment that addresses the multiple causes of serious
antisocial behavior in juvenile offenders. The MST program seeks
to improve the real-world functioning of youth by changing their
natural settings - home, school, and neighborhood - in ways that
promote pro-social behavior while decreasing antisocial behavior.
Therapists work with youth and their families to address the known
causes of delinquency on an individualized, yet comprehensive
basis. By using the strengths in each system (family, peers, schoal,
and neighborhood) to facilitate change, MST addresses the multiple
factors known to be related to delinquency across the key systems
within which youth are embedded.

Thinking 4 Change (T4C)

Thinking for a change is a cognitive-behavioral curriculum
developed by the National Institute of Corrections that concentrates
on changing the Comprehensive thinking of offenders. T4C is a
cognitive-behavioral therapy (CBT) program that includes cognitive
restructuring, social skills development, and the development of
problem- solving skills.

e State and describe any other developmental activities program participants will
receive in addition to the curriculum or intervention listed above. Explain how
each of these developmental activities will be implemented.

¢ Insert a chart that indicates the activity, the type of activity, and the number of
hours per activity per youth that will be supported, in whole or part, by these

grant funds.

e An example chart follows:

14






Staffing

Number of Hours

Activity Type per Youth*
Primary Evidence-Based

Juvenile Justice Multi-Systemic Therapy 6
Intervention

Developmental Connections 3
Developmental Enrichment Activities 1
Developmental Tutoring 2
Total Program Hours Per 12
Youth

*Approximate
* Secondary activities (i.e. electronic monitoring) and interventions will be considered

part the applicants 30% administrative cost

Describe the CJCC grant-funded services provided to youth in the target group who
may or may not be receiving intensive services, if applicable.

Describe the parent involvement and/or community awareness activities provided using
CJCC grant funds, if applicable.

Describe the primary roles and responsibilities for each grant-funded position. Attach
a job description for each position discussed (Attachment A-4).

Explain the plan for orientation and training of grant-funded staff.

5. Goals, Objectives, and Evaluation (2 pages)

a.

List the required program goals as outlined in the RFP. List any additional program
goals in a clearly defined and measurable manner.

List the required program objectives as outlined in the RFP. List any additional
program objectives in a clearly defined and measurable manner.

Explain fully how all stated goals and objectives will be reached and evaluated.

Explain how they currently collect data on youth served and how they plan to expand
this collection to include source of referral information.

15





6.Sustainability (1 page-Continuation Applications Only)

a. Describe the specific activities that will take place during this upcoming grant period to
ensure sustainability.

b. List the current funding sources and amount of funding for your organization.
c. ldentify potential state, federal, and or/private funding streams for program support.

d. Identify any staff or volunteers that have assigned, dedicated efforts towards
sustainability.

e. ldentify potential ways to increase current evidence-based service capacity for target
population.

f. Describe any local actions taken to specifically support evidence-based services
7. Previous Accomplishments (Y2 page)

Provide a detailed description of any previous successful interventions or grant funding received
for similar programs. Include a detailed summary of activities, number/percent of youth served
to-date, and supporting data to demonstrate whether or not the project objectives and goals
were met.

If problems were encountered in previous grants or objectives were not fully achieved, please
provide a full description detailing issues and corrective action(s) taken to address.
This information is an essential component of all applications.

FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY & PROPOSAL BUDGET WORKSHEET

The applicant agency must provide an adequate accounting system (see Accounting
System/Internal Control Questionnaire) described in Forms, Assurances, and Certifications, and
should meet the following criteria as outlined below:

1. Accounting records provide information needed to identify each grant awarded (State,
Federal, Local Government, and Private) to applicant by identifying the receipt of funds for
each grant and the expenditure of funds for each grant award;

2. Entries in accounting records refer to subsidiary records and/or documentation which
support the entry and can be readily located;

3. The accounting system provides accurate and current financial reporting information; and
4. The accounting system integrates with an adequate system of internal controls to safeguard
the funds and assets covered, check the accuracy and reliability of accounting data,

promote operational efficiency, and encourage adherence to prescribed management
policies.

16





Proposal Budget Worksheet: Complete the Budget workbook (Attachment A-6). The Excel
workbook contains a budget summary for the applicant. The budget summary must provide
computation of requested funds and justification of costs in relation to activities. A detailed
budget narrative should be submitted for clarity of expenses requested in the different budget
categories. Applicants must provide details on each cost item in the budget. For example, if an
applicant includes a cost item for “Speaker Contracts,” the applicant must describe what the
purpose is, who the speaker is, what event is happening, and a justification of including this cost
and value-add to the grant.

Grantees are responsible for obtaining and executing necessary agreements with partners or
contractors providing services under this agreement. Documentation and copies of agreements
can be requested by CJCC at any time during the contract period. A maximum limit of 30% on
indirect costs will be permitted. The following is a brief list of common indirect costs and costs
that will need to be justified as direct costs:

Indirect Costs:

e Grants Manager o Pens, paper, etc.
e Finance e Insurance
Director/Accountant/Bookkeeper ¢ Employee travel to grantee
e Trainer trainings
e Bookkeeping costs e Printing
e Financial and/or programmatic e Meeting Expenses
audit costs e Copier
e Rent and/or mortgage on e Postage
administrative offices e Vehicle Maintenance
e Utilities on administrative offices e Background Investigations

e Office supplies for staff

Costs that will require justification to be considered direct service:
e Trainings
e Conferences
e Travel
o Outside of direct service travel
Equipment
e Administrative Staff and Supervisors
o Who also provides direct service
o Supervision of any staff is not direct service, only hands-on work with community
e Volunteers
e Copier
o Use of the copier for direct service
Cell phones for direct service employees requiring travel
e Meeting expenses for outreach and awareness activities
Any direct services interventions that are not listed on the chart on pages 13 and 14.

17





Allowable and Unallowable Costs: A list of allowable and unallowable costs is provided at the
back of the budget workbook. Examples of allowable expenses are defined under the budget
categories.

Supplanting
Funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and cannot replace or
supplant funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose.

APPLICATION ATTACHMENTS: APPLICATION FORMS,
ASSURANCES, CERTIFICATIONS, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The applicant is required to comply with the following as described in the RFP attachments. The
grantee will be responsible for ensuring that any service delivery partners comply with the
following forms applicable to the partner.

A-1  Application Face Sheet: Signed by county commissioner of the applying agency.
A-2  Program Timeline: A detailed timeline of grant activities.

A-3  Memorandum(s) of Understanding: Signed agreement(s) between the applying
agency and program site(s) not under the jurisdiction of the applying agency, if
applicable.

A-4  Job Descriptions: Job description for each grant-funded position.

A-5  Forms, Assurances, and Certifications: To certify intent to comply with all of the
following, the chief executive officer of the applying agency must review, complete, sign,
and submit all of the following forms:

Questionnaire Accounting and Financial Capability Information

Non-Supplanting Certification

Service Delivery Strategy Act Compliance Certification

Immigration and Security Form

Child Abuse Reporting, Background Investigation, Internet Security Policy

Requirements

arwdpE

A-6  Budget Worksheet: Submit budget detail worksheet electronically.

Application Review

The Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding Committee will review all eligible applications. The
Juvenile Justice Incentive Funding Committee will not review incomplete applications and CJCC
will not permit applicants to add information to their application after submission, unless
clarification or additional information is requested.

POST-AWARD REQUIRED ACTIVITIES

Applicants are strongly encouraged to include costs that might be associated with the required
and non-required activities (e.qg., travel, lodging, food, etc.) within their proposed budgets.

CJCC Grant Management Workshop

If an applicant is awarded a grant, grantee may be required to attend a CJCC grant
management workshop.

18





Site Visits

CJCC staff may conduct a fiscal and/or programmatic site visit to each grantee during the grant
period. Additional visits may be conducted, but each grantee will have at least one visit from
CJCC staff during the grant year. Site visits will be scheduled with the grantee in advance. Site
visits will be conducted to monitor the program for progress, implementation, adherence to
outcomes, and to view program and financial documents.

Additional Training, Technical Assistance, and Events

CJCC will offer a number of non-mandatory post-award training and technical assistance
opportunities and special events.

Grantees will be informed of events via e-mail, and the events will be posted on the CJCC

website. CJCC staff also will give ongoing, individual technical assistance and other support
activities to grantees as needed or requested throughout the year.

Application Submission Instructions

Disqualification Factors:
o Applicant is not a public government entity
e Submission fails to be electronically time-stamped by the deadline date
e Submission fails to include the original signature of the executive officer of the applicant
on the application face sheet
e Application lacks original signatures where appropriate

Format:

— Number of every page submitted as part of your application

— Use type that is 12-point font size and one inch margins

— The application narrative should be typed on white paper that is 8 ¥2 x 11 inches

— Include a footer identifying the applying agency

— Adhere to page limits

— Application documents should be in word excel, or PDF format with the exception of the
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

— Applicants must restate and number each proposal narrative question followed by the
response

19





Application:
Use the table below to ensure that all requested information is included and your documents are
appropriately named and saved as a word or excel document.

Maximum Applicant
Required Application Document p s Checklist
age Limit
(Y/N)
Application Face Sheet (Attachment A-1) NA
Application Narrative: 11
A. Statement of Need/Summary Yo
B. Administration Y
C. Target Population Yo
D. Methods and Procedures 6
E. Goals, Objectives, and Evaluation 2
F.  Sustainability 1

G. Previous Accomplishments

Ya

Application attachments:

A-2 Program Timeline

A-3 Memorandum(s) of Understanding (Word or PDF Format)
A-4 Job Descriptions

A-5 Forms, Assurances, and Certifications N/A
A-6 Budget Worksheet
A-7 Budget Narrative
A-8 Proposal Narrative

20





2014 Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant
Program Enhancement Proposal

Eligibility

Applicants are limited to local county commissions/boards of commissioners that apply on behalf of
juvenile courts within Georgia. This award is only for juvenile courts that have an existing Juvenile
Justice Incentive Grant (JJIG) currently and are applying for a 2014 continuation grant. The
enhancement proposal must be filled out in addition to the 2014 JJIG RFP.

Award Period
July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2015

Award Amount
Up to $500,000

Deadline
All applications are due at 5:00 p.m. on April 28, 2014

Contact Information
For assistance with the requirements of this solicitation, contact:

Matthew Pitts, Grants Specialist, at 404-656-5160 or Matthew.Pitts@children.ga.gov

Release Date: March 28, 2014





Section 1: Overview

Enhancement Proposal Overview

The purpose of this Enhancement Proposal is to give programs who are applying for
continuation funding the opportunity to make modifications to the current services that are being
provided. Programs have the opportunity to apply for enhancements (adding capacity for
current services i.e. more slots) and /or expansion (adding an additional EB service to their
existing menu). If awarded an enhancement opportunity, programs must adhere to all guidelines
and regulations set forth in the 2014 Juvenile Incentive Grant Program RFP.

Section 2: Application Process:

Applications must include:

1. Cover Sheet
2. Proposal Narrative
3. Budget Narrative and Detail Worksheet

PROPOSAL NARRATIVE

Enhancement Proposal Narrative:

The following information provides a description of the necessary components to be contained
in the narrative portion of your proposal. Limit the narrative to 3 pages and use the outline
format described in this section. The narrative is a detailed statement of the work to be
undertaken and answers who, what, when, where, why, and how statements about the
enhancement proposal. CJCC requires that applicants restate and number each Narrative
Section followed by the response.

1. Statement of Need/Summary (1 page)

Provide a clear and concise statement of need, including the following:

Why the expansion/enhancement is needed to improve your program outcomes.

A description of the target population to be served by the enhancement/expansion.
What is your programs current capacity?

Does your program have a waiting list? If yes, please provide the most current number
of youth on the list.

oo oW





2. Methods and Procedures (1 1/2 pages)

Service Delivery

What, specifically, will the Enhancement Proposal funds go toward?

a. What is the proposed enhancement and how will it fit into the current framework of
existence.

b. If the enhancement award is to change to a different evidence based intervention,
please detail why this change is being made.

c. Does the applicant have a service provider in place to handle the enhancement
opportunity? Please list the provider information if already determined.

d. How much time will it take to implement the proposed enhancement?

e. By how much will the award increase the existing capacity? Please be as a specific
as possible and include the formula you used.

f.  How will funds be used, specifically? More supplies? More court staff or program
personnel?

3. Goals and Objectives (¥2 Page)

a. Explain fully how the proposed enhancement proposal will help the applicant to achieve
goals and objectives set out in the JIGP RFP?

Budget Summary

Provide a detailed budget summary highlighting the cost of the enhancement program, including
all direct or indirect costs. This budget summary is used to explain how the costs were
estimated and justifies the need for the cost. Additionally, include the budget detail worksheet
that can be downloaded for the CICC website: www.cjcc.georgia.gov.

Finance

This is a reimbursement grant. Because this is an enhancement opportunity award and the
court programs are fully implemented and operational, there will be no advances available.

Please feel out the Enhancement Budget (Attachment 1) with expenses only related to this
enhancement request. Refer to the Juvenile Incentive Grant Program for allowable vs. non-
allowable costs.



http://www.cjcc.georgia.gov/



How to Apply

Applicants for the Enhancement

Applicants will upload this application in conjunction with their continuation JIGP grant
application. All forms and regulations that are included in the Continuation JIGP application will
adhere to the Enhancement Proposal.





OMB APPROVAL NO. 1121-0140
EXPIRES 01/31/2006

STANDARD ASSURANCES

The Applicant hereby assures and certifies compliance with all applicable Federal statutes, regulations,
policies, guidelines, and requirements, including OMB Circulars A-21, A-87, A-102, A-110, A-122, A-
133; Ex. Order 12372 (intergovernmental review of federal programs); and 28 C.F.R. pts. 66 or 70
(administrative requirements for grants and cooperative agreements). The applicant also specifically
assures and certifies that:

1. It has the legal authority to apply for federal assistance and the institutional, managerial, and financial
capability (including funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project cost) to ensure
proper planning, management, and completion of the project described in this application.

2. It will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that
constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain.

3. It will give the awarding agency or the General Accounting Office, through any authorized
representative, access to and the right to examine all paper or electronic records related to the financial
assistance.

4. It will comply with all lawful requirements imposed by the awarding agency, specifically including
any applicable regulations, such as 28 C.F.R. pts. 18, 22, 23, 30, 35, 38, 42, 61, and 63.

5. It will assist the awarding agency (if necessary) in assuring compliance with section 106 of the
National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (16 U.S.C. § 470), Ex. Order 11593 (identification and
protection of historic properties), the Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C.§
469 a-1 et seq.), and the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. § 4321).

6. It will comply (and will require any subgrantees or contractors to comply) with any applicable
statutorily-imposed nondiscrimination requirements, which may include the Omnibus Crime Control and
Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3789d); the Victims of Crime Act (42 U.S.C. §10604(e)); The
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. § 5672(b)); the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. §7 94); the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C.§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§1681,
1683, 1685-86); and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07); see Ex. Order 13279
(equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community organizations).

7. If a governmental entity—

a) it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C.§ 4601 et seq.), which govern the treatment of persons displaced as a
result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and

b) it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C.§§ 1501-08 and §§7324-28, which limit certain
political activities of State or local government employees whose principal employment is in connection
with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal assistance.

Signature Date






Attachment A-1

State of Georgia - Criminal Justice Coordinating Council
Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Program

Application Face Sheet

SECTION 1: APPLICANT AGENCY (for contracting purposes)
Applicant Agency (Legal Name):
Legal Mailing Address:

City: __ County: __ State:___ Zip:
Federal Employer .LD.#:_ DUNS#:___ Congressional District #: __
Executive Officer Name: Title:
Street Address: ___
City: __ State: Zip:
Telephone: FAX: Email: __

SECTION 2: FISCAL AGENT (if not the applicant agency)
Applicant’s Fiscal Agent (Legal Name): __
Street Address: _
City: State: Zip:

SECTION 3: FISCAL CONTACT

Fiscal Contact Name: Title:

Street Address: __

City: State: Zip:

Telephone: FAX: Email: __

SECTION 4: PROGRAM CONTACT

Program Contact Name: __ Title: __
Street Address: __

City: State: Zip:

Telephone: FAX: Email: __

SECTION 5: GRANT AMOUNT REQUESTED: $





A-1 Application Face Sheet

SECTION 6: AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES

1, the undersigned, an authorized representative of the applicant, have read, understand, and agree to all relative conditions specified in
the Governor’s Office for Children and Families Request for Proposal and having read all attachments thereto do submit this application
on behalf of the applicant agency. If awarded a grant to implement the provision herein, | do certify that all applicable federal and state
laws, rules, and regulations thereto will be followed.

APPLICANT AGENCY: FISCAL AGENT (if not applicant
agency)

Signature, Executive Officer Date Signature, Executive Officer Date
Title Title

SECTION 7: APPLICANT AGENCY FISCAL INFORMATION
1. Month of Fiscal Year End:

2. Attach to the application, the applicant agency’s financial statements as required by RFP Section
6, A-5.

3. s applicant agency: [ ] Public Government Entity [1 Non-Profit 501(c)(3) Entity

4. s applicant agency delinquent on any federal debt? [ ] NO []YES If yes, attach a detailed
explanation.

5. Did applicant agency receive 80 percent or more of its annual gross revenue in federal awards in its
preceding fiscal year; and $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenue from federal awards and in so
doing is required to comply with “Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act”? [ ] NO ]
YES If yes, attach names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated officers of the
grantee.

SECTION 8: TARGET POPULATION

Target group (check one): [_] Middle School [ ] High School [ ] Middle and High School
Gender served (check one): [ ]Maleonly [ ] Femaleonly [ ] Male and Female
Agerange:Age _ toage_

Number of youth to be served:

SECTION 9: SERVICE DELIVERY AREA
Primary county to be served:

List other counties to be served:

Congressional District(s) to be served:





A-1 Application Face Sheet

SECTION 10: PROGRAM ACTIVITIES

Justice:
[] Community Service /Restitution
[ 1 Evening Report Center
[] Juvenile Drug Court
[] Diversion Services
[] Tutoring
[] Counseling Services

[] Other Evidence-based curriculum/Intervention (List Primary Intervention and secondary):






A-1 Application Face Sheet

APPLICATION FACE SHEET- INSTRUCTIONS

GENERAL INSTRUCTION: Click on the gray highlighted areas to type responses. Do not press enter. To check boxes: double
click box, select “Checked” under Default Value, and click “OK”.

SECTION 1: APPLICANT AGENCY (for contracting purposes)

Complete this section to provide legal information for contracting purposes.

1. Enter legal name, address, federal employer identification number, and DUNS number of the applicant agency. The
address may include a sub-division of the applicant agency, but may not include the name of an individual.

2. Enter the number of the congressional district for the city/county of the applicant agency.

3. Enter contact information as indicated for the Executive Officer who has the legal authority to enter into contractual
agreements on behalf of the applicant agency.

SECTION 2: FISCAL AGENT
Complete this section if the applicant agency has a fiscal agent that manages its financial resources. If applicant agent is also
the fiscal agent, please note as “SAME".

SECTION 3: FISCAL CONTACT

Enter the contact information of the person responsible for financial reporting. For entities that have a fiscal agent, indicate the
fiscal agent’s financial contact person. For non-profit entities, enter the contact information for individual that manages the
financial accounts for the applicant agency.

SECTION 4: PROGRAM CONTACT
Enter the contact information of the primary person responsible for managing the program. If the person is not known at time of
application, enter contact information of interim person responsible for managing the program.

SECTION 5: GRANT AMOUNT REQUESTED
Using whole dollars enter the total grant amount requested for the grant award period.

SECTION 6: AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES
The application face sheet must be signed in BLUE INK by the Executive Officer who has the legal authority to enter into
contractual agreements on behalf of the applicant agency and on behalf of the fiscal agent (if applicant has a fiscal agent).

SECTION 7: APPLICANT AGENCY FISCAL INFORMATION

1. Enter the month of the applicant agency’s fiscal year end;

2. Check one box to indicate if the applicant agency is a public government entity OR non-profit 501(c)3 entity;

3. Check one box to indicate if the applicant agency is delinquent on any federal debt. If the applicant agency is delinquent on
federal debt, attach to the application the following: Federal Agency, Federal Program, CFDA number, Federal contact
person’s name and phone number and detailed explanation; and

4. Attach to the application, a copy of applicant’s financial statements as required by RFP Section 6. If applicant agency is a
non-profit entity attach to the application, a copy of the 501(c)3 non-profit letter issued by the Internal Revenue Service.

5. Check yes if applicant agency receives 80 percent or more of its annual gross revenue in Federal awards in its preceding
fiscal year; and $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenue from Federal awards. If yes, the applicant agency is required
to comply with “Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act” by attaching to the application, the names and total
compensation of the five most highly compensated officers of the applicant agency.

SECTION 8: TARGET POPULATION

The target population is the youth who receive abstinence education and all youth development activities. Check one target
group and gender served. Enter the age range for the target population. Enter the number of youth to be served during the
grant period.

SECTION 9: SERVICE DELIVERY AREA
List the service area by: 1) Primary county; 2) Other counties; and 3) Congressional district for the primary county to be served.

SECTION 10: PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
Check the additional service you propose to add to your existing program through this grant opportunity.





Attachment A-2

State of Georgia - Criminal Justice Coordinating Council
Juvenile Justice Inventive Grant Program

Program Timeline

Applicant Agency:  [Type Name of the Applicant Agency here]

Month Grant Activities

July 2014

Aug 2014

Sept 2014

Oct 2014

Nov 2014

Dec 2014






A-2 Program Timeline

Month Grant Activities

Jan 2015

Feb 2015

March 2015

April 2015

May 2015

June 2015






A-5: Forms, Assurances, and Certifications

Attachment A-5
State of Georgia - Criminal Justice Coordinating Council
Juvenile Justice Incentive Grant Program

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM/INTERNAL CONTROL QUESTIONNAIRE
Applies to All Applicants

SECTION A: ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

1. Which of the following best describes the accounting system? If the applicant is using a commercial accounting
package, attach a copy of the cover page of the run manual.

(JManual (JAutomated (JCombination

2. Is there a chart of accounts? If yes, CJCC may request to view these prior to issuing an award.
(Yes (No

3. Are the following books of accounts maintained? Please check “yes” or “no”.

Description Yes | No
General Ledger

Project Cost Ledger

Cash Receipts Journal
Payroll Journal

Accounts Receivable Ledger
Accounts Payable Ledger
Purchase Journal

N

. Does the accounting system adequately identify receipts and expenditures for each grant or contract?
(JYes (INo

5. Does the accounting system provide for recording of expenses for each program by budget cost category?
(JYes (INo

6. Are time distribution records maintained for each employee to account for 100 percent of his/her hours?

Please attach a sample of a completed time sheet.

(JYes (INo

7. Are recording keeping duties for the receipts and the payment of cash separated?
(JYes (JNo

8. Are all accounting entries supported by documentation that gave rise to the transaction?
(JYes (JNo

9. Are budgetary controls in effect to preclude incurring obligations in excess of total funds available for an award?
(JYes (INo






A-5: Forms, Assurances, and Certifications

10. Are budgetary controls in effect to precluding incurring obligations in excess of total funds available for a budget

cost category?
(Yes

(INo






A-5: Forms, Assurances, and Certifications

SECTION B: FUND CONTROL

1. Is a separate bank account maintained for grant/contract funds?
(Yes (INo

2. If federal grant/contract funds are maintained in same bank account as fiscal agent funds, can the federal grant

funds and related costs and expenses be readily identified?
(Yes (No

SECTION C: COMMENTS/EXPLANATIONS

SECTION D: CERTIFICATION

| certify that the above information is complete and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Signature Date
Applicant Agency, Executive Officer

Signature Date
Fiscal Agent, Financial Officer
(If fiscal agent is not the applicant agency)






A-5: Forms, Assurances, and Certifications

NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION
Applies to All Applicants

Regulations adopted by the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council (CJCC) require certification to the effect that grant
funds will not be used to increase state or local funds that would, in the absence of such grant aid, be made

available for the purpose of this grant program.

CERTIFICATION:

| certify that grant funds will not be used to supplant state or local funds that would otherwise be available for
implementation of this grant program. | further certify that the program proposed in the grant application meets all
the requirements of the applicable CJCC Request for Proposals; that all the information presented is correct; that
there has been appropriate coordination with affected agencies; and that the applicant will comply with the
provisions of the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council, all applicable federal and state laws, and the above-

mentioned certification should a grant be awarded.

Authorizing Official:

Signature Date
Applicant Agency Executive Officer






A-5: Forms, Assurances, and Certifications

SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY ACT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION
Applies to Local Government Entities Only
www.dca.servicedelivery.org

CERTIFICATION:
[, (County Commission Chair) , certify that (County Name)

County is in compliance with the Service Delivery Strategy Act (House Bill 489). | also understand that if my county is
not in compliance, the county and city governments contained herein are not eligible to receive state administered

financial assistance, grants, loans, or permits.

Authorizing Official:

Signature Date
County Commission Chairperson






A-5: Forms, Assurances, and Certifications

IMMIGRATION AND SECURITY FORM
Applies to All Applicants

A. In order to insure compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L. 99-603 and the
Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act OCGA 13-10-90 et.seq., Contractor must initial one of the

sections below:

Contractor has 500 or more employees and Contractor warrants that Contractor has complied with the
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L. 99-603 and the Georgia Security and Immigration

Compliance Act by registering at https://www.vis-dhs.com/EmployerRegistration and verifying information of

all new employees; and by executing any affidavits required by the rules and regulations issued by the Georgia
Department of Labor set forth at Rule 300-10-1-.01 et.seq.

Contractor has 100-499 employees and Contractor warrants that no later than July 1, 2008, Contractor
will register at https://www.visdhs.com/EmployerRegistration to verify information of all new employees in order
to comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L. 99-603 and the Georgia Security

and Immigration Compliance Act; and by executing any affidavits required by the rules and regulations issued by

the Georgia Department of Labor set forth at Rule 300-10-1-.01 et.seq.

Contractor has 99 or fewer employees and Contractor warrants that no later than July 1, 2009,

Contractor will register at https://www.visdhs.com/EmployerRegistration to verify information of all new

employees in order to comply with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), D.L. 99-603 and the
Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act; and by executing any affidavits required by the rules and

regulations issued by the Georgia Department of Labor set forth at Rule 300-10-1-.01 et.seq.

B. Contractor warrants that Contractor has included a similar provision in all written agreements with any
subcontractors engaged to perform services under this Contract.

Authorizing Official:

Signature Date
Applicant Agency Executive Officer

Firm Name:
Street/Mailing Address:
City, State, Zip Code:
Telephone Number:
Email Address:






A-5: Forms, Assurances, and Certifications

OTHER CERTIFICATIONS
Applies to All Applicants

Regulations adopted by Criminal Justice Coordinating Council (CJCC) require certification to the effect that grant
funds will not be used to increase state or local funds that would, in the absence of such grant aid, be made
available for the purpose of this grant program.

1.

Any person associated with the program that has reasonable cause to believe that a child has been or is
being abused, shall be required to report or cause report to be made with regard to the abuse as provided in
0.C.G.A. 19-7-5.

Background investigations (Georgia Crime Information Center) are required on all persons with direct contact
with children and youth. It is left to the discretion of the SOC governance partners to determine the
methodology for completing these investigations.

Establish/enforce an Internet Security Policy when minor participants and/or staff have online access
(supervised or unsupervised). This includes any technology provided by CJCC funding and technology used
by participants during a CJCC-funded program.

The grantee agrees to comply with Public Law 103-227, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994, which
requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owed or leased or contracted for
by the grantee and used routinely or regularly for the provision of healthy care, day care, early childhood
development services, education or library services to children under the age of 18. Failure to comply with
the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty up to $1,000 for each
violation and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the grantee.

The grantee and direct service partners are required to follow employment best practices by verifying
employment eligibility for new hires through E-Verify operated by Department of Homeland Security in
partnership with the Social Security Administration. E-Verify is an Internet-based system that allows an
employer, using information reported on an employee's Form [-9, Employment Eligibility Verification, to
determine the eligibility of that employee to work in the United States. There is no charge to employers to
use E-Verify.

Link for Employers: Visit USCIS' "For Employers" section and -9 Central

Link of Employees: Visit USCIS.gov for more information on E-Verify for employees

Authorizing Official:

Signature Date
Applicant Agency Executive Officer




http://www.uscis.gov/portal/site/uscis/menuitem.eb1d4c2a3e5b9ac89243c6a7543f6d1a/?vgnextoid=e7f29589cdb76210VgnVCM100000b92ca60aRCRD&vgnextchannel=e7f29589cdb76210VgnVCM100000b92ca60aRCRD

http://www.uscis.gov/I-9Central

http://www.uscis.gov/portal/site/uscis/menuitem.eb1d4c2a3e5b9ac89243c6a7543f6d1a/?vgnextoid=d6f988e60a405110VgnVCM1000004718190aRCRD&vgnextchannel=d6f988e60a405110VgnVCM1000004718190aRCRD



A-5: Forms, Assurances, and Certifications

ASSURANCES (Applies to All Applicants)

The Applicant hereby assures and certifies compliance with all Federal statutes, regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements, including
OMB Circulars No. A-21, A-87, A-110, A-122, A-133; E.O. 12372 and Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative
Agreements 28 CFR, Part 66, Common rule, that govern the application, acceptance and use of Federal funds for this federally-assisted project.

Also, the Applicant assures and certifies that:

1. It possesses legal authority to apply for the grant; that a resolution, motion or
similar action has been duly adopted or passed as an official act of the applicant's
governing body, authorizing the filing of the application, including all
understandings and assurances contained therein, and directing and authorizing
the person identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in
connection with the application and to provide such additional information may be

2. It will comply with requirements of the provisions of the Uniform Relocation
Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-648) which
provides for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced as a result of
Federal and federally - assisted programs.

3. It will comply with provisions of Federal law which limit certain political
activities of employees of a State or local unit of government whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by
Federal grants. (5 USC 1501, et seq.)

4. It will comply with the minimum wage and maximum hours provisions of the
Federal Fair Labor Standards Act if applicable.

5. It will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions
for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for
private gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have
family, business, or other ties.

6. It will give the sponsoring agency or the Comptroller General, through any
authorized representative, access to and the right to examine all records,
books, papers, or documents related to the grant.

7. It will comply with all requirements imposed by the Federal sponsoring agency
concerning special requirements of law, program requirements, and other
administrative requirements.

8. It will ensure that the facilities under its ownership, lease or supervision
which shall be utilized in the accomplishment of the project are not listed on the
Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) list of Violating Facilities and that it will
notify the Federal grantor agency of the receipt of any communication from the
Director of the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility to be used
in the project is under consideration for listing by the EPA.

9. It will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a)
of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Public Law 93-234, 87 Stat. 975,
approved December 31, 1976, Section 102(a) requires, on and after March 2,
1975, the purchase of flood insurance in communities where such insurance is
available as a condition for the receipt of any Federal financial assistance for
construction or acquisition purposes for use in any area that has been identified by
the Secretary of the Department of Housing and Urban Development as an area
having special flood hazards. The phrase "Federal financial assistance" includes
any form of loan, grant, guaranty, insurance payment, rebate, subsidy, disaster
assistance loan or grant, or any other form of direct or indirect Federal assistance.

Authorizing Official:

Signature Date
Applicant Agency Executive Officer

10. It will assist the Federal grantor agency in its compliance with Section 106
of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 as amended (16 USC 470),
Executive Order 11593, and the Archeological and Historical Preservation
Act of 1966 (16 USC 569 a-1 et seq.) by (a) consulting with the State Historic
Preservation Officer on the conduct of investigations, as necessary, to identify
properties listed in or eligible for inclusion in the National Register of
Historic Places that are subject to adverse effects (see 36 CFR Part 800.8) by
the activity, and notifying the Federal grantor agency of the existence of any
such properties, and by (b) complying with all requirements established by the
Federal grantor agency to avoid or mitigate adverse effects upon such
properties.

11. It will comply, and assure the compliance of all its subgrantees and
contractors, with the applicable provisions of Title | of the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended, the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act, or the Victims of Crime Act, as appropriate;
the provisions of the current edition of the Office of Justice Programs
Financial and Administrative Guide for Grants, M7100.1; and all other
applicable Federal laws, orders, circulars, or regulations.

12. It will comply with the provisions of 28 CFR applicable to grants and
cooperative agreements including Part 18, Administrative Review Procedure;
Part 20, Criminal Justice Information Systems; Part 22, Confidentiality of
Identifiable Research and Statistical Information; Part 23, Criminal
Intelligence Systems Operating Policies; Part 30, Intergovernmental Review
of Department of Justice Programs and Activities; Part 42,
Nondiscrimination/Equal Employment Opportunity Policies and Procedures;
Part 61, Procedures for Implementing the National Environmental Policy
Act; Part 63, Floodplain Management and Wetland Protection Procedures;
and Federal laws or regulations applicable to Federal Assistance Programs.

13. It will comply, and all its contractors will comply, with the nondiscri-
mination requirements of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of
1968, as amended, 42 USC 3789(d), or Victims of Crime Act (as
appropriate); Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; Subtitle A, Title I of the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) (1990); Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975; Department of
Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations, 28 CFR Part 42, Subparts C, D, E,
and G; and Department of Justice regulations on disability discrimination, 28
CFR Part 35 and Part 39.

14. In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative
agency makes a finding of discrimination after a due process hearing on the
grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, or disability against a
recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the
Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs.

15. It will provide an Equal Employment Opportunity Program if
required to maintain one, where the application is for $500,000 or more.

16. It will comply with the provisions of the Coastal Barrier Resources Act
(P.L. 97-348) dated October 19, 1982 (16 USC 3501 et seq.) which
prohibits the expenditure of most new Federal funds within the units of
the Coastal Barrier Resources System.






U.S. Department of Justice
Office of Justice Programs
Office of the Comptroller

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are required to attest. Applicants should also
review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form. Signature of this form provides for compliance
with certification requirements under 28 CFR Part 69, "New Restrictions on Lobbying" and 28 CFR Part 67, "Government-wide Debarment and
Suspension (Nonpro-curement) and Government-wide Requirements for Drug- Free Workplace (Grants)." The certifications shall be treated as a
material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the Department of Justice determines to award the covered transaction,
grant, or cooperative agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and implemented at 28 CFR Part 69, for persons entering into a grant or cooperative
agreement over $100,000, as defined at 28 CFR Part 69, the applicant certifies that:

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure of
Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions;

(c) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including
subgrants, contracts under grants and cooperative agreements, and subcontracts) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS (DIRECT RECIPIENT)

As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 28 CFR Part 67, for prospective participants in primary
covered transactions, as defined at 28 CFR Part 67, Section 67.510-

A. The applicant certifies that it and its principals:
(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal
court, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of
fraud or a criminal offense in connection with public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal
or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or
receiving stolen property;

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of
any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause
or default; and

B. Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, he or she shall attach an explanation to this application.

3. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 28 CFR Part 67, Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 CFR Part
67 Sections 67.615 and 67.620-

A. The applicant certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is
prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about--

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph
(a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under the grant,






(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a
violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no
later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency, in writing, within 10 calendar days after
receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or
otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of
convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to:
Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, ATTN: Control
Desk, 810 7 "Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531. Notice shall
include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of
receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any
employee who is so convicted--

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up
to and including termination, consistent with the requirements of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug
abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such
purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or
other appropriate agency;

(9) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free
workplace through implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e),
and (f).

B. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for
the performance of work done in connection with the specific grant:

Place of Performance (Street address, city, county, state, zip code)

Check (Jif there are workplaces on file that are not identified
here.

Section 67, 630 of the regulations provides that a grantee that is a
State may elect to make one certification in each Federal fiscal
year. A copy of which should be included with each application
for Department of Justice funding. States and State agencies may
elect to use OJP Form 4061/7.

Check (Jif the State has elected to complete OJP Form 4061/7.

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES
WHO ARE INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and
implemented at 28 CFR Part 67, Subpart F, for grantees, as
defined at 28 CFR Part 67; Sections 67.615 and 67.620-

A. As a condition of the grant, | certify that | will not engage in
the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or
use of a controlled substance in conducting any activity with the
grant; and

B. If convicted of a criminal drug offense resulting from a
violation occurring during the conduct of any grant activity, | will
report the conviction, in writing, within 10 calendar days of the
conviction, to: Department of Justice, Office of Justice

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, | hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the above certifications.

1. Grantee Name and Address:

2. Application Number and/or Project Name

3. Grantee IRS/Vendor Number

4. Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative
5. Signature

6. Date

0JP FORM 4061/ RFPI ACFS O.JP FORMS 40A1/2 40A61/3 AND 4061/4 WHICH ARF ORSOI FTF *

S Government Printina Office* 1996 - 405-037/40014






Budget Detail Worksheet for State Grants

Purpose: The Budget Detail Worksheet shall be used to prepare your budget. In addition to this document, you
must also complete and submit a budget narrative.

Applicant Agency:

A. Personnel - List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Show the annual salary rate and the
percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensation paid for employees engaged in grant activities
must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the applicant organization.

Name/Position Computation Cost

Position1

Position 2

Position 3

Position 4

Position 5

Position 6

Position 7

Position 8

Position 9

Position 10

SUB-TOTAL $0.00

B. Fringe Benefits - Fringe benefits should be based on actual known costs or an established formula. Fringe
benefits are for the personnel listed in budget category (A) and only for the percentage of time devoted to the
project.

Name/Position Computation Cost

Position 1

Position 2

Position 3

Position 4

Position 5

Position 6

Position 7

Position 8

Position 9

Position 10

SUB-TOTAL $0.00

Total Personnel & Fringe Benefits $0.00






C. Travel - Iltemize travel expenses of project personnel by purpose (e.g., staff to training, field interviews,
advisory group meeting, etc.). Show the basis of computation (e.g., six people to 3-day training at SX airfare, $X
lodging, $X subsistence). In training projects, travel and meals for trainees should be listed separately. Show the
number of trainees and the unit costs involved. Identify the location of travel, if known. Indicate source of
Travel Policies applied, Applicant or Federal Travel Regulations.

Purpose of Travel Location Item Computation Cost

Travel Entry 1

Travel Entry 2

Travel Entry 3

Travel Entry 4

Travel Entry 5

Travel Entry 6

Travel Entry 7

TIOTAL $0.00

D. Equipment - List non-expendable items that are to be purchased. Non-expendable equipment is tangible
property having a useful life of more than two years and an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more per unit. (Note:
Organization’s own capitalization policy may be used for items costing less than $5,000). Expendable items
should be included either in the “supplies” category or in the “Other” category. Applicants should analyze the
cost benefits of purchasing versus leasing equipment, especially high cost items and those subject to rapid
technical advances. Rented or leased equipment costs should be listed in the “Contractual” category. Explain
how the equipment is necessary for the success of the project. Attach a narrative describing the procurement
method to be used.

Equipment Items Computation Cost

Equipment Entry 1

Equipment Entry 2

Equipment Entry 3

Equipment Entry 4

Equipment Entry 5

Equipment Entry 6

Equipment Entry 7

TOTAL $0.00






E. Supplies - List items by type (office supplies, postage, training materials, copying paper, and expendable
equipment items costing less that $5,000, such as books, hand held tape recorders) and show the basis for
computation. (Note: Organization’s own capitalization policy may be used for items costing less than $5,000).
Generally, supplies include any materials that are expendable or consumed during the course of the project.

Supply Items Computation Cost

Supply Entry 1

Supply Entry 2

Supply Entry 3

Supply Entry 4

Supply Entry 5

Supply Entry 6

Supply Entry 7

Supply Entry 8

Supply Entry 9

Supply Entry 10

Supply Entry 11

Supply Entry 12

Supply Entry 13

Supply Entry 14

Supply Entry 15

TOTAL $0.00

F. Construction - As a rule, construction costs are not allowable. In some cases, minor repairs or renovations
may be allowable. Check with CJCC before budgeting funds in this category.

Purpose Description of Work Cost

Construction Entry 1

Construction Entry 2

Construction Entry 3

Construction Entry 4

TOTAL $0.00






G. Consultants/Contracts - Indicate whether applicant’s formal, written Procurement Policy or the Federal
Acquisition Regulations are followed.

Consultant Fees: For each consultant enter the name, if known, service to be provided, hourly or daily fee (8-
hour day), and estimated time on the project. Consultant fees in excess of $450 per day require additional

justification and prior approval from CJCC.

Name of Consultant  Service Provided Computation Cost

Consultant Fee 1

Consultant Fee 2

Consultant Fee 3

Consultant Fee 4

SUB-TOTAL $0.00

Consultant Expenses: List all expenses to be paid from the grant to the individual consultants in addition to
their fees (i.e., travel, meals, lodging, etc.)

Item Location Computation Cost

Consultant Expense 1

Consultant Expense 2

Consultant Expense 3

Consultant Expense 4

SUB-TOTAL $0.00

Contracts: Provide a description of the product or service to be procured by contract and an estimate of the
cost. Applicants are encouraged to promote free and open competition in awarding contracts. A separate
justification must be provided for sole source contracts in excess of $100,000.

Item Cost
Contract 1
Contract 2
Contract 3
Contract 4
SUB-TOTAL $0.00

Total Consultants/Contracts $0.00






H. Other Costs - List items (e.g., rent, reproduction, telephone, janitorial or security services, and investigative
or confidential funds) by major type and the basis of the computation. For example, provide the square footage

and the cost per square foot for rent, or provide a monthly rental cost and how many months to rent.

Description

Computation

Cost

Other Cost 1

Other Cost 2

Other Cost 3

Other Cost 4

Other Cost 5

Other Cost 6

Other Cost 7

Other Cost 8

Other Cost 9

Other Cost 10

Other Cost 11

Other Cost 12

Other Cost 13

Other Cost 14

Other Cost 15

TOTAL

$0.00






Budget Summary - When you have completed the budget worksheet, transfer the totals for each category to
the spaces below. Compute the total direct costs and the total project costs. Indicate the amount of Federal
requested and the amount of non-Federal funds that will support the project.

Budget Category Amount
A. Personnel $0.00
B. Fringe Benefits $0.00
C. Travel $0.00
D. Equipment $0.00
E. Supplies $0.00
F. Construction $0.00
G. Consultants/Contracts $0.00
H Other $0.00

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $0.00
State Grant Request $0.00

Non Grant Amount




































UNALLOWED COSTS AND ACTIVITIES

UNALLOWED COSTS

Acquisition of land

Bonus or commissions

Cost incurred outside the award period

Construction costs including capital improvements

Corporate formation

Federal employees' compensation and travel

Grant preparation fee

Imputed interest charges (late fees)

Organized fundraising activities (e.g., campaigns, endowment drives, and solicitation of gifts), which
includes salary of any individual(s) engaged in direct fundraising activity for the organization. An
organization may engage in activity to "institutionalize" the grant-funded project for sustainability
purposes; however, grant funds may used for the purpose of raising funds to finance non-related grant
programs and/or complementary program activities.

Mileage rate may not exceed the travel regulation as published by the State Accounting Office. Current
rate is $.555 per mile for authorized use of personal car.

Military-type equipment

UNALLOWED ACTIVITIES

Direct services may not teach or promote religion

Supplanting funds: Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for direct service activities
and must not replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose.

Commingling of funds: Physical segregation of cash depositions are not required, however, the
accounting system of all contractors and sub-contractors must ensure that agency funds are not
commingled with funds from other federal agencies. Each award must be accounted for separately.
Commingling of funds is prohibited on either a program-by-program or project-by-project basis.

Political activities including endorsement of any political candidate or party, use of machinery, equipment,
postage, stationary, or personnel on behalf of any candidate or any question of public policy subject to
referendum, in accordance with O.C.G.A.. 50-20-3(f)






		Juvenile Court- Grant Application Agenda Request File

		Juvenile Court- Grant Application Agenda Request with Backup

		Juvenile Court- Grant Application Agenda Request File

		Juvenile Court- Grant Application Backup

		Backup-a

		Backup-b

		Backup-c

		Backup-d

		Backup-e

		Backup-f

		Backup-g

		Backup-h












Consent Agenda #6

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Solid Waste and Recycling Presenter(s): Vanessa Birrell
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: |Consent

Wording for the Agenda:

Approval of staff's recommendation to declare a walk-in freezer as unserviceable and to authorize staff to sell the walk-in freezer on
GovDeals. com with proceeds from the sale returning to Fayette County's General Fund.

Background/History/Details:

Solid Waste purchased a Master Built 10' X 20' Walk-In Freezer with stainless steel floor in 2003 for $12,597. Animal carcasses were
stored in the freezer before incineration. Escalating fuel prices, repair costs and environmental impacts made continued operation of the
incinerators more costly than using Waste Management to transfer the carcasses to a landfill. The Board of Commissioners approved
selling the incinerators on GovDeals.com on August 11, 2011.

Solid Waste has continued to repair and power the freezer since the incinerators were decommissioned. The age of the freezer is
increasing the frequency and the cost of repair. Waste Management is transporting carcasses daily, removing the need for a freezer.
The freezer's estimated scrap metal value exceeds $50.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

Approval of staff's recommendation to declare a walk-in freezer as unserviceable and to authorize staff to sell the walk-in freezer on
GovDeals. com with proceeds from the sale returning to Fayette County's General Fund.

If this item requires funding, please describe:
No funding is required.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? No

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Yes Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  |Yes County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:




fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #6










Consent Agenda #/

COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST
Department: Street Lights Presenter(s): Phil Mallon
Meeting Date: Thursday, April 24, 2014 Type of Request: |Consent

Wording for the Agenda:
Approval of staff's recommendation to add Claudia's Cove to the Fayette County Street Light Program.

Background/History/Details:

The Fayette County Street Lighting Program illuminates streets in participating subdivisions in accordance with standards of the
American National Standard Practice for Roadway Lighting, 1973. In September, 1983, the Board of Commissioners created Fayette
County Street Light Districts. Platted subdivisions are eligible to become a Street Light District when there are less than ten property
owners that are 100% in favor of creating a Street Light District or more than ten lots with 66.67% approval. This petition represents eight
parcels that are 100% in favor of creating a street light district.

The developer has purchased four 100-watt decorative lights. Each light is $12.25 per month for a total monthly bill of $49.00. This
assessment will be added to the parcels in Claudia's Cove and the expense shared by the property owners on the annual property tax bill
effective 2014. The annual assessment for participants in Claudia's Cove Street Light District will be $78.00.

This request was made by LIH Trustin Cove, LLC., the property owners of all eight lots in Claudia's Cove.

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?
Approval of staff's recommendation to add Claudia's Cove to the Fayette County Street Light Program.

If this item requires funding, please describe:

These additional lights will cost $49.00 per month per Coweta Fayette EMC. Assessments for street lights are levied on the tax bills for
participants in the street light program. The residents agree to pay the additional assessments required to add these lights.

Has this request been considered within the past two years? |No If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* No Backup Provided with Request? Yes

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also
your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance Not Applicable Reviewed by Legal

Approved by Purchasing  [Not Applicable County Clerk's Approval Yes

Administrator's Approval

Staff Notes:

Similar requests have been forwarded to the Board over the recent months. This issue was addressed at the April 4, 2014 Board of
Commissioners Retreat. At the Retreat, the Board directed staff to implement a pre-payment fee with a 20% surcharge and a $100.00
application fee. The Board did not vote on that directive.




fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #7















		Street Light- Claudia's Cove Agenda Request File

		Street Light- Claudia's Cove Backup







